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DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE I OFFICE OF THE INSPECTOR GENERAL 

September 7, 2021 
SENT VIA EMAIL 

Subject: Freedom of Information/Privacy Act Reguest [18-OIG-1311 

This is in response to your Freedom of Information Act request to the Office of the Inspector General 
(OIG), seeking copy of each investigation closed 2016 and 2017 and 2018 to date regarding sexual misconduct, 
sexual harassment or rape. We have searched our records on March 11, 2020. 

The OIG located 159 pages of responsive records. It has been determined that certain portions of such 
records should be withheld from disclosure pursuant to FOIA, 5 U.S.C. § 552(b)(6) and (b)(7)(C) as follows: 

5 U.S.C. § 552(b)(6), protects personnel and medical files and similar files the disclosure of 
which would constitute a clearly unwarranted invasion of personal privacy; and 
5 U.S.C. § 552(b)(7)(C), protects records or information compiled for law enforcement 
purposes, but only to the extent that the production of such law enforcement records or 
information could reasonably be expected to constitute an unwarranted invasion of 
personal privacy. 

Consequently, enclosed are 159 pages of responsive records released to you in part. 

If you are not satisfied with OIG's determination in response to this request, you may 
administratively appeal by writing to the Director, Office of Information Policy (OIP), United States 
Department of Justice, 441 G Street, NW, 6th Floor, Washington, D.C. 20530, or you may submit an 
appeal through OIP's FOIA STAR portal by creating an account following the instructions on OIP's 
website: https://www.justice.gov/oip/submit-and-track-reguest-or-appeal. Your appeal must be 
postmarked or electronically transmitted within 90 days of the date of my response to your request. 
If you submit your appeal by mail, both the letter and the envelope should be clearly marked 
"Freedom of Information Act Appeal." 

950 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20530-0001 I (202) 514-3435 



For your information, Congress excluded three discrete categories of law enforcement and 
national security records from the requirements of the FOIA. See 5 U.S.C. 552(c) (2006 & Supp. IV 
2010). This response is limited to those records that are subject to the requirements of the FOIA. 
This is a standard notification that is given to all our requesters and should not be taken as an 
indication that excluded records do, or do not, exist. 

You may contact our FOIA Public Liaison, Deborah Waller at (202) 616-0646 for any further 
assistance of your request. Additionally, you may contact the Office of Government Information 
Services (OGIS) at the National Archives and Records Administration to inquire about the FOIA 
mediation services they offer. The contact information for OGIS is as follows: Office of Government 
Information Services, National Archives and Records Administration, 8601 Adelphi Road-OGIS, 
College Park, Maryland 20740-6001, e-mail at ogis@nara.gov; telephone at (202) 741-5770; toll free 
at 1-877-684-6448. 

Attachment 

Sincerely, 

frM?aelhte ~ 
Jacqueline Lightle 
Government Information Specialist 
Office of the General Counsel 



C.S. llcp;1r1111t•1H or .lust ice 

Office of 1he Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTJGATJON 

I 

SUBJECI' 

Big Spring Correctional Center 
13ig Spring. Texas 

OFFICE CO DUCTING I 'VESTIGATION 

Dallas Field Office (El Paso Area Office) 

01S1 RIBUTION TATUS 

fXf Field Orficr UFO II OPEN 

CASE NUMBER 

DO.I COi\lPONENT 

Federal Bureau o f Prisons 

II OPEN l'ENl>ING l'llOSECUTION 

IXI AICINV l'Rf.VIOUS REl'OHT SUBI\IITrED: II YES 

fXI ("ompoucnt BOP Oatc of l'rcviuus Hcporl: 

II US,\ 

II Olhl'f" 

SYNOPSIS 

CLO ED 

NO 

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Office of the Inspector Genera l (OlG) initiated this investigation u )On the 
receipt of infonnation from the Big Sp1ing Correctional Center (BSCC) that 

- vas suspected of having an inappropriate relationship with BSCC inmate 

~fhe OIG investigation did not S\lbstantiate the all egations that ~ ngagecl in innppropriate conduct with 
mmatcs. 

s taled during her OJG intervic\v that she had observed - and 
nter several BSCC - s - <•ether and spend extended periods of time, and once saw 

)ass a folded 1iecc of Ja JCr to l Iowevcr, she never saw them touching one ano ther. 
told the OIG that she had observed - 1lone with in the 

BSCC kitchen on numerous occasions, but never saw either of them touching one another. 

During hi s interview with the OIG. lenied being invo lved in a sexual relationship with-

When interviewed by the O IG, - provided c1n c1ffidavit denying that she had a sexual relationship with 
:w that she had corresponded with him in any manner. 

·1 he U.S. /\ttorncy·s Office for the Northern District of Texas (Lubbock Division) declined criminal prosecution 

IMTE July 23, 20 I 8 SI GNAT URE 

PR1•:1•,\ 1tED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

DATE J I 13 1Q) 8 SIC ,:--,\TUltE °'l""'"9""'..,.,.,,.,,.,"'°' ll y, - - \ Os,, UI o-UH,o,,,.,,~,..,.,, 0..,1 
_ _ ___________ _._ _____________ W,l-c==~ - - - n',/:~~;'11)1°'~'oo·;~•:::,~~;~!a 

__,...,, .... ]41tJ 

r,,r, 1t1 1101J111 l4 ,., -0\'00 
Al'l'nOnrn B\' S PECIAL AGENT I,\' C l l,\llGE Monte/\. Cason 

OIG Form 111-211112 (S11p..,-s,·d111~ 0/(i l-<11·111111-2117/.IIJ) (/1,/ 2.1117J 

f'umnns nl rh,· R,·1mr1 o/ h11,·s11go11tm mm 1w1 b,• <'<Clllfll 1111der 1he 1-iw•tlom of l11/orm111io11 Act (5 USC 552) nm/ th,• l'm·uc1· Act (5 USC 55111) 



of 

- ·esigncd from her position at the BSCC effective April 13, 2018. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to the BOP for its review. 

Pa,:c2 

Cnsc Number: -

D:itc: Jul>· 23, 2018 



U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT CASE NUMBER -
Dismas Charities Residential Reentry Center - Clarksburg 
Clarksburg, West Virginia 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Washington Field Office 

DJSTRIBUTION 

[X] Field Office WFO 

[X] AIGINV 

[X] Component BOP 

[] USA 

□ Other 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

STATUS 

[] OPEN [] OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: [] YES 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

[X] CLOSED 

[X] NO 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon receipt of information from the 
Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP), Office of Internal Affairs (OIA , that on Ma 11, 2018, Dismas Charities 
Residential Reentry ~ Clarksburg, W ~ a, was seen in her 
vehicle with resident - (registration#_ )_ Former resident ~tration # 
- ) reported to Dismas Charities Director Emil Gillispie, that he witnessed and - together in 
her vehicle. The information further alleged that was also having an inappropriate relationship with 
former resident (registration # ) while at the Dismas Charities RRC between July 25, 
2017 and February 16, 2018. 

was released from the Dismas Charities RRC after completing his 
~plan. On May 17, 2018, - was terminated due to allegations of misconduct. -
- was released from the Dismas Charities RRC after completing his mandatory program plan. 

The OIG did not substantiate the allegations that - was having an inappropriate relationship with RRC 
residents - and~ . Subsequent to the initiation of this investigation, the OIG received records from 
the BOP confirmin~ d been terminated approximately one month prior and both- ancllllll 
were released from the Dismas Charities RRC months or weeks before the OIG was provided this complaint. 

DATE September 5, 2018 I SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

DATE SIGNATURE Digitally signed by 

---------------'-----------------n,Y,t~'Si--r,1":;;~- MICHAEL TOMPKINS 
Date: 2018.09.05 
11 :05:08 -04'00' 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE Michael P. Tompkins 

OIG Form III-207/4B (08/08/05) Portions ofrhe Report of Investigation moy not be exempt under the Freedom of /11fom wtio 11 Act (5 USC 552) wul the Privacy Act (5 USC 552a). 



Upon learning that all parties in this investigation were no longer affiliated to the BOP, whether in custody or 
employed and the alleged inappropriate relationship occurred outside the RRC no criminal violations existed that 
could be presented for prosecutorial consideration. Since all administrative actions were exhausted, this 
investigation is closed. 

The OIG is providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

Page 2 

Case Number: -

Date: 
September 5, 
2018 



U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Federal Conectional Institution Schuylkill 
Minersville, Pennsylvania 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

New Jersey Area Office 

DISTRIBUTION STATUS 

181 Field Ol'fice NYFO □ OPEN 

CASE NUMBER 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

□ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

181 AJGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 

181 Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

□ USA 

□ Other 

SYNOPSIS 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the recei 

181 CLOSED 

181 NO 

the Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP) Office of Internal Affairs alle in that 
- engaged in an inappropriate relationship with inmate (BOP Register 
and communicated with him by letter through the U.S. Postal Service using an alias. 

The OIG investigation substantiated the a~ that 
and smuggled contraband (cigarettes) for-

engaged in an inappropriate relationship with 
declined to be interviewed by the OIG. 

~ voluntary interview with the OIG, admitted she was involved in a sexual relationship with 
- and provided- with ci arettes. stated that between July and October 2017, she 
en a ed in vaginal intercourse with on three occasions and provided packs of cigarettes to 

on three or four occasions. admitted she knew these actions were illegal and violated BOP 
policy. also admitted she rented a post office box which she used to communicate with-
using an alias and that she created a fictitious email to communicate with- as well. 

The U.S. Attorney's Office for the Middle District of Pennsylvania declined criminal prosecution of-
and_ _ · 

- resigned from her position at the BOP effective November 13, 2017. 

The OIG has concluded its investigation and is providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

DATE 09/10/2019 
PREPARED BY SENIOR SPECIAL AGENT 

DATE 09/10/2019 SIGNATURE 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE GUIDO MODANO 

O[G Form lli-210/2 (Superseding O/G Form llf-207/48) (04/2312007) 

Digitally signed by GUIOO MODANO 
Dale: 2019,09. 10 12.1)7:10 ·04'00' 

Portions of the Report of Investigation may not be exempt under the Freedom of In.formation Act (5 USC 552) and the Privacy Act (5 USC 552a). 



ADDITIONAL SUBJECTS 

(Reg.No. - ) 
Federal Inmate 
Federal Correctional Institution Schuylkill 
Minersville, Pennsylvania 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Office of the lnspector General 

PAGE: 2 

CASE NUMBER: -

DATE: 09/10/2019 



U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Federal Conectional Institution Allenwood 
White Deer, Pennsylvania 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

New Jersey Area Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

181 Field Ol'fice NYFO 

STATUS 

□ OPEN 

CASE NUMBER 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

□ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

181 AJGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 

181 Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

□ USA 

□ Other 

SYNOPSIS 

181 CLOSED 

181 NO 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the recei t of information from the 
Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP) Office of Internal Affairs alleging that 

, Federal Correctional Institu~Allenwood, Pen~nia, engaged in a sexual relationship 
with inmate (BOP Register ~ ) and provided- with a watch as a gift. 

The OIG investigation substantiated the allegation of a sexual relationship and the introduction of contraband by 
- · - declined to be interviewed by the OIG. 

During a voluntary interview with the OI~ admitted she was involved in a sexual relationship with_ 
and provided him with a watch as a gift. ~ ated that between February and March of 2018, she enga~ 
vaginal intercourse with- on two occasions and performed oral sex upon on two occasions. -
admitted she knew these actions were illegal, violated BOP policy and violated a code of 
ethics. 

- also stated that she gave- a Casio G-Shock watch as a gift on February 25, 2018. - stated the 
watches' only function was to provide the time and the date. - stated the watch had no other functions, such as 
inte1- et ca ability. - stated she asked- to return the watch to her a few days after giving it to him and 
that returned the watch to her that day. The watch was recovered by the BOP and confirmed _ 
assertions about its limited capability. 

- resigned from the BOP effective March 22, 2018. 

DATE 09/10/2019 
PREPARED BY SENIOR SPECIAL AGENT 

DATE 09/10/2019 SIGNATURE 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE GUIDO MODANO 

O[G Form lli-210/2 (Superseding O/G Form llf-207/48) (04/2312007) 

Digitally signed by GUIDO MODANO 
Da te : 2019.09.1 o 12:09:0S •04'00' 

Portions of the Report of Investigation may not be exempt under the Freedom of Inf ormation Act (5 USC 552) and the Privacy Act (5 USC 552a). 



The U.S. Attorney's Office for the Middle Distlict of Pennsylvania declined criminal prosecution of • . 

The OIG has concluded its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. The OIG is 
providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

Unless otherwise noted, the OIG applies the preponderance of the evidence standard in determining whether DOJ 
personnel have committed misconduct. The Merit Systems Protection Board applies this same standard when 
reviewing a federal agency's decision to take adverse action against an employee based on such misconduct. See 5 
U.S.C. § 7701(c)(l)(B); 5 C.F.R. § 1201.56(b)(l)(ii). 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Office of the lnspector General 

PAGE: 2 

CASE NUMBER: -

DATE: 09/10/2019 



U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECI" 

Reeves County Detention Center 
Pecos, Texas 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTJGATJON 

Dallas Field Office (El Paso Area Office) 

DISTRIBUTI ON STATUS 

121 Field Office DFO □ OPEN 

CASENUMDER 

0OJ COMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

□ OPEN PENDI NG PROSECUTION 

121 A I GINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: D YES 

121 Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

□ USA 

D Other 

SYNOPSIS 

121 

121 

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Office of the inspector General (OIG) initiated this investi 
the recei t of infom1ation from the Reeves County Detention Center (RCDC) allegin that 

CLOSED 

NO 

was involved in a sexual reiationsl~ nmate 
told RCDC investigative personnel that he and - had kissed and fond led 

The OIG investigation subst- at- was sexually involved with not only 
- but also with irn11at~ 

When she was initially interviewed by the OJG, rovided a signed sworn statement denying 
being sexually involved with any RCDC inmates. recanted her first statement and 
admitted that she had en- a ed in sexual activity, to include oral sex and sexual intercourse, with inmates 

- and- nd - both admitted to the OIG to engaging in sexual activity 
with but denied that they initiated the activity. - and lllllltlaimed that it was 

who initiated the sexual contact between them. 

- ·esigned from her position at the RCDC effective July 11 , 2016. 

On October 14, 2016, - vas arrested based on an Indictment out of the U.S. District Court for the 
Western District of Texas (Pecos Division) charging her · · ing Title 18 U.S.C. § 2243, sexual 
abuse of a ward. After fa iling to appear before the court, as indicted for violating Title 18 
U.S.C. § 3146, failure to appear. On March 9, 2018, 1/as arrested pursuant to an arrest wa1Tant 
for failure to appear. On March 23, 2018, - pleaded guilty to both charges of sexual abuse of a 
ward and failure to appear and was sentenced on Ju1y 25, 2018, to I 8 months in prison and 36 months of 

DATE Au st],2018 
PREPARED BY SPECL\L AGENT 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT I N C HARGE Monte A. Cason 
OIG f"orm 111-210/2 (Supersedi11g 0/G Form 111-207/4B) (04/23/2007) 
Porlio11s of the Repor/ of /11vestiga1io1111111y 1101 be exempt 1111der the Freedom of Information Ac/ (5 USC 552) mu/ Jhe Privacy Ac, (5 USC 552a). 



supervised release for sexual abuse of a ward, and an additional 18 months in prison (to run consecutive) 
with a life tenn of supervised release (to run concurrent) for failure to appear. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. The 
OIG is providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Office oflhe Inspector General 

PAGE: 2 

CASE NUMBER: -

DATE: August I, 2018 



U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General 

SUBJECT 

Firearms Tracing Center 
Martinsburg, West Virginia 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Washington Field Office 

DISTRIBUTION STATUS 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

CASE NUMBER 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives 

[XI Field Office WFO II OPEN u OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION [X] CLOSED 

IX] AIGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: II YES IXI NO 

[X] Component ATF Date of Previous Report: 

I I USA 

I I Other 

SYNOPSIS 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon receipt of information from the 
Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Ex losives ATF) Internal Affairs Division (IAD) on June 23, 2017. 
ATF contract employe alle ed that for the ast two ears she had been the 
victim of sexual harassment by alleged 
that it began as friendly banter and flirting, but progressed to inappropriate sexual emails, exposing 
himself and masturbating in front of her, and unwanted groping of her buttock and breasts. The OIG conducted 
this investigation jointly with West Virginia State Police (WVSP). 

Subsequent to the onset of the investigation, forensic analysis of- ATF-issued computer indicated his 
user profile conducted internet searches for pornographic material. 

~ntarily interviewed by the OIG and admitted to hav~ropriate workplace relationship 
~ in ATF office space. - admitted to grabbing- breasts and vagina, kissing her, 
forcing her to touch his penis, grabbi~forcing her head toward his pubic region, and masturbating to 
ejaculation in front of her. However- claimed- was a willing participant in all of these 
encounters, even after he confirmed to the OIG she verbally told him to stop, w~ull away from him when 
he attempted to grab her, and ac~nced herself from him in the office. - claimed it was all 
consensual and any rebuff from - was her teasing him and playing hard to get. - also admitted to 
watching pornographic material at work on his ATF issued computer for approximately 20 minutes per day, and 
masturbating in his office. 

DATE January 16, 2019 SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPEClAL AGENT 

DATE January 16, 2019 I SIGNATURE 
Date: 2019.01 .16 15:57:26 -05'00' 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE Russell W. Cunningham 

OIG Form 111-210/1 (S11persedi11g O!G Form lll-20714) (04/23107) 

Portions of the Report of Investigation may not bee.Tempt 11nder the Freedom oflnfomwtion Act (5 USC 552) and the Privacy Act (5 USC 552a). 



The OIG investigation determine~ violated ATF Order 2130.3 Harassment in the Workplace, Conduct 
Unbecoming of a Federal Employee, Sexual Misconduct, Inappropriate Behavior, Inappropriate Workplace 
Relationship, and A TF H 7250.1 a Using Government Property for Unauthorized Purposes. 

Subsequent to the OIG's interview of 
not interested in filing criminal charges against 
prosecution was declined. 

she notified the West Virginia State Police (WVSP) she was 
. WVSP subsequently closed their investigation and 

The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to the A TF for appropriate action. 

Page 2 

Case Number: __ 

Date: January 16, 2019 



U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

(***-**- ) 
(former) 

Federal Medical Center 
Lexington, Kentucky 

OFflCE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION DOJ COMPONENT 

CASE NUMBER 

Chicago Field Office Federal Bureau of Prisons 

DISTRIBUTION STATUS 

181 Field Office CFO □ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

181 AIGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 

181 Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

□ USA 

D Other 

SYNOPSIS 

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Office of the Inspector General OIG 
of information from Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP) inmate 

CLOSED 

181 NO 

that from approximately late 2014 through March 2016, Public Health Services (PHS) 
engaged in a sexual relationship with - The information further alle and 
communicated with each othe~ sing e-mails via . Lastly, the 

infonnation alleged- provided- with a wristwatch as a birthday gift. The DOJ-OIG conducted this 
case jointly with the Department of Health and Human Services Office of Inspector General (HHS-OIG). 

The DOJ-OIG investigation substantiated the allegations. 

- provided the DOJ-OIG with records of e-mail messa~ n - and- from June 30, 
2015, to September 13, 2015. A review of the e-mails revealed- used her personal e-mail address to 
communicate with - . The DOJ-OIG found in the e-mails references to physical contact between
and - and mention of a wristwatch - had given - as a gift. 

During an interview with the DOJ-OIG and HHS-OIG, _ admitted that she communicated with-
via e-mail and on her~ cell phone. - further admitted she provided with a wristwatch for 
his birthday. Lastly, - admitted she had inappropriate physical contact with by kissing him and 
masturbating him on at least two occasions in the spring of 2015. 

On October 3 1, 2018, - pleaded ~ e U.S. District Comt for the Eastern District of Kentucky to 18 
USC § 1791, introduction of contraband. - was sentenced to 24 months' unsupervised probation. 

- resigned from her position with the PHS effective October 13,2017. 

DATE December 31, 2018 SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

DATE December 31, 2018 SIGNATURE 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE 

Digilally 1ig1Wdby WILLIAM HANNAH 
Dllte:2018.1231 11:12:0l --06'00' 

SAC William J. Hannah 
OIG Form W -210/2 (Superseding O/G Form 11/-207/48) (04/2312007) 
Portions oft he Report of Investigation nwy not be exempt under the Freedom ofh!formation Act (5 USC 552) and the Privacy Act (5 USC 552a). 



The OIG has completed its investigation, and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. The OIG is 
providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Office of the lnspcctor General 

PAGE: 2 

CASE NUMBER: -

DATE: December 31, 2018 



U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Former 
Federal Correctional Institution 
Oakdale, Louisiana 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION DOJ COMPONENT 

CASE NUMBER 

Dallas Field Office Federal Bureau of Prisons 

DTSTRrBUTTON ST A TUS 

[X] Field Office DFO (HAO) [ I OPEN I l OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION [X] CLOSED 

[X] AIGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: I I YES [XI NO 

[XI Component BOP Date of Prc\'ious Report: 

f I USA 

I I Other 

DATE 

SYNOPSIS 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation u on recei t of information on 

-

t mber 15, 2017, from the Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP) that 
with the Federal Co1Tectional Institution (FCI) in Oakdale, Louisiana, had sexual contact with 

FCI inmate - . The BOP fuifither alle ed that - an~ had telephonic contact on 
- inmate phone account, she provided with contraband (food and cell phone), and 
exchanged written co1Tespondence wit 

This OIG investigation developed sufficient evidence that- had telephonic contact with - · 

This OIG investigation did not substantiate that - had sexual intercourse wit 
cell phone or other contraband to . , or exchanged written conespondence with 

smuggled a 

- agreed to an OIG interview wherein he admitted having sexual intercourse wititlll and 

iiing contraband but he refused to provide a sworn affidavit, said he would not testify against 
and refused subsequent interview requests. 

Video surveillance rec~s from the FCI security cameras during the time of the alleged sexual 
intercourse confirmed- and- entering a bathroom for an extended period but the video did 
not capture the alleged sexual act. 

December 14, 2018 SIGN ATURE 

PREPARED BY SPEClAL AGENT 

DATE December 14, 2018 SIGNATURE 

Af>PROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT 1N CHARGE 

OIG Form lll-210/2 (S11persedi11g O!G Fon 11 lll-20714B) (04123107). 

Monte A. Cason 

Digitally signed by MONTE CASON 
ON: ,~us, o.:U.S. Government, ou:.Oept 
of Justke ou;;;QIG, cn• MONTE CASON, 
0.9.2342.19200300. I00.1. 1=15001001052 
483 
Date: 2018.12.14 14 :SS:47 -05'00' 

Poniuns of the Report of ln vestigation may not be exempt under the Freedom of l11fon11ation Act (5 USC 552) cuul the Privacy Act (5 USC 552a). 



Dming the comse of the investigation, the OIG interviewed and reviewed statements from 
approximately 10 FCI employees who identified- voice talking to- on the FCI's 
monitored inmate phone system. 

In a voluntary audio-recorded OIG interview o_ , she denied s~ ing contraband, having 
sexual intercourse with ~ ed having telephonic contact witlllllllll, and denied exchanging 
written correspondence~ - - went absent without leave following her OIG interview 
and subsequently resigned her position with the BOP. 

The United States Attorney's Office for the Middle District of Louisiana declined prosecution of -· 
- resigned from her position at the BOP effective October 11 , 2017. 

The OIG has completed its investigation, all administrative actions are complete; this report is 
provided to the BOP for its information. 

Page 2 

Case Number: ~ 

Date: December 14, 2018 



U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

(***-**-Ill 

Reeves County Detention Center 
Pecos, Texas 

OFFJCE CONDUCTING JNVESTIGATlON 

Dallas Field Office (El Paso Area Office) 

DISTRIBUTION STATUS 

181 Field Office DFO D OPEN 

CASE NUMBER 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

D Ol'EN PENDING PROSECUTION 

181 AIGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: D YES 

181 Component B01' Da tc of Previous Report: 

0 USA 

0 Other 

SYNOPSIS 

181 CLOSED 

181 NO 

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon 
the receipt of information from the Bureau of Prisons OP) alleging that fonner Reeves County 
Detention Center (RCDC) was suspected of being involved in an 
inappropriate relationship with RCDC inmate S ecifically, fol~ 

[- udden resignation, photographs of a female suspected to be ere found i11-
prope1ty. 

The 010 investigation substantiated the allegation that - was involved in a sexual relationship with 
[_,hile she was employed at the RCDC. 

During her initial 010 interview,- provided a signed sworn affidavit denying involvement in 
inappropriate sexual relationships with RCDC imnates, nor to communicating with them or their families. 
In a second affidavit,- admitted that she had knowingly and intentionally lied during her initial 
interview. admitted being in a relationshi with as well as to 2erformin° oral sex on 

hile she was employed at the RCDC. xplained that she and engaged in 
hugging, kissing and fondling each other in the RCDC Education Deprutment Office. also 
acknowledged that this was the same location where she performed oral sex on 

During his 010 interview, 
fondling each other, and that 

admitted that he and - 1ad engaged in hugging, kissing and 
erformed oral sex on him. 

On December 12, 2017,- was indicted and a1Tested in the Western District of Texas (Pecos 
Division) and charged with violating Title 18 U.S.C. § 2243, sexual abuse of a ward, and Title I 8 U.S.C. 
§ l 001, false statement. On July 17, 2018,~ as found not guilty on both counts. 

DATE July 24, 2018 SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

DATE July 24, 2018 SIGNATURE 
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The OIG has completed its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. The 
OIG is providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

U.S.DcpartmcntofJustice 
Office of the Inspector General 
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DATE: July 24, 2018 



U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

(***-**- ) 
(f01mer) 

Federal Coffectional Institution 
Milan, Michigan 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Detroit Area Office 
DISTRIBUTION 

181 Field Office CFO 

181 AlGINV 

181 Component BOP 

□ USA 

□ Other 

CASE NUMBER 

DOJCOMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 
STATUS 

□ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 181 CLOSED 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 181 NO 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investi ation u on the 
recei t of information from Federal Bureau~P) allegin that BOP 

and inmate- (Reg. N ) were involved in a 
relationship at the Fed r ffectional Institution in Milan, Michigan (FMC Milan). In October 2017, 
confidential informant told the BOP the informant had witnessed multiple occasions where 
- and had gone into one of the rooms in the Education Department and remained inside 
with the door locked ween 15 minutes to 1 hour. Additionall~ mber 2017, a~ o 

, called the FCI Milan alleging - had contacte'llllllllllllllwife and 
told her tha was roman--icall involved with a female staff member at FCI Milan, and they 
planned to get married following release from prison. 

-

b nt to the onset of the investigation, BOP officers confiscated an Apple iPhone from a cell in which 
had previously been housed. An analysis of the phone revealed numerous communications with 

t~ ber ***-**~ That same telephone number was listed as the contact number for 
,_ ,, in a $600 Western Union transfer to - 's mother, _ ), on 
November 16, 2017. 

The OIG substantiated the allegation - had an inappropriate relationship with 
not determine ifth~ xual contact. The OIG did not substantiate the allegation 
the cell phone for -

but could 
smuggled in 

On October 1, 2017, - was assaulted by another inmate and then moved to the Special Housing Unit 

DA TE September 10, 2019 
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(SHU). BOP officers searched his cell and found a photograph of- standing with - in the 
visiting room and an address book with- work associated telephone numbers and e-mail 
addresses. BOP officers later confiscated several letters that - tried sending to - from the 
SHU, including two letters that he had given to another inmate. 

for - 's personal cellular tele hone and noted multiple calls with three 
phones associated with , which were office number and two numbers 
registered to nd. The OIG also noted six ca I t "(***-***- ). The 
OIG determin was a fictitious name used by , who was an associate of 
inmate (Reg. No. - ), who took over after he 
was placed in the SHU. Several attempts to interview - were made with negative results. The OIG 
did not find any evidence regarding who smuggled the iPhone into FCI Milan. 

- told the OIG and FBI she received a call from a woman, who she believed was , on 
two dates in September 2017. The woman said her husband might call - and ask questions about 
- and the woman asked not to respond. - received another call from the same woman on 
December 6, 2017. The woman said had been assaulted in the _Rrison and then laced in the SHU. 
The woman said to tell - she was thinkin about him, but wanted 
- because BOP officers were ettin them. also said (*** *** ad alled in 
November 2017 regarding the explained the mon- was for 
- . - called again in December 2017 to say she would send additional funds, but never 
did. 

- told the OIG and FBI that he met- sometime in 2014 and worked for her as a tutor in the 
Education Department where they spent 3 hours each day together. and - kissed a few 
times, but they never had sexual contact. wrote letters to and sent them to in an 
attempt to hide his relationship with from the BOP. asked - to cal so the 
two could get to know one another. vided contraband to or had 
provided anything to - on at FCI Milan, 
and the $600 sent to his mother was denied knowing --· - told the OIG and FBI she was more familiar wit1'1111111than other tutors, but their relationship 
was nothing more than friendly. denied kissing or havin~ontact with - . She also 
denied ever receivin letters from or calling his mother. - admitted she had discussed her 
family in front of and other inmates and reasoned she had done so because she was openly 
friendly. initially said she would submit to a voluntary polygraph examination, but then later 
declined. 

On December 7, 2017, the BOP terminate~ contract employment at FCI Milan and removed her 
clearance to enter the prison. 
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The United States Attorney's Office for the Eastern District of Michigan declined criminal prosecution of - · The OIG has completed its investigation and all c1iminal and administrative actions are complete. The OIG 
is providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

Unless otherwise noted, the OIG applies the preponderance of the evidence standard in determining whether 
DOJ personnel have committed misconduct. The Merit Systems Protection Board applies this same 
standard when reviewing a federal agency's decision to take adverse action against an employee based on 
such misconduct. See 5 U.S.C. § 770l(c)(l)(B); 5 C.F.R. § 1201.56(b)(l)(ii). 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General 

SUBJECT 

Federal Correctional Institution 
Florence, CO 

OFFICE CONDUCTINGINVESTIGATION 

Denver Field Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

181 Field Office DNFO 

STATUS 

□ OPEN 

ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

DOJCOMPONENT 

Bureau of Prisons 

CASE NUMBER 

□ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION CLOSED 

181 AlGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES NO 

181 Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

□ USA 

□ Other 

SYNOPSIS 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the receipt of information from 
the Bureau of Prisons (BOP) Office of Internal Affairs alle in° that on December 22, 2017, at the Federal 
Correctional Institution (FCI) Florence, Colorado, had inappropriate 
relations with inmate , Reg. No. , inside a storage closet. It was also alleged that 
- was coordinating the delivery of a package from his daughter to - outside the prison. 

The OIG investigation substantiated the allegation that- had ongoing sexual contact with inmate 
at FCI-Florence, who was under her custodial, supervisory, and disciplinary authority, and that 

received a bottle of perfume from - as a Cluistmas gift that she failed to report to prison 
officials. The investigation did not substantiate that - introduced narcotics or other contraband to 
inmates at FCI-Florence. 

- told the OIG that he and- had sexual contact on as many as eight occasions in the FCI
Florence Recreati~ tment storage closet from late November to late December 2017. Specifically, he 
stated that he felt - breasts, butt and crotch - vulva and vagina - with his hands through her clothing 
while touched and rubbed ~ s through his sweatpants, and that both were sexually aroused. 
Additionally, said he sen- a bottle of Gucc~ me as a Christmas gift through his daughter 
who mailed it to a flower shop in Pueblo, Colorado, where- previously worked. A review of 
- phone calls to his daughter confinned that his daughter sent perfume to the flower shop. 

DATE Se tember 4, 2019 SIGNATURE 
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- statements were corroborated b~ co-worker and inmate witness statements. -
statements were also corroborated by the OIG' s analysis of security camera video footage, monitored inmate 
phone calls, and e-mails regarding the suspicious relationship. 

The OIG learned from the FBI that in 2015 inmate 
Penitentiary (USP) in Leavenworth, Kansas, into introducing contraband including 
the case was declined for rosecution. Although the OIG developed evidence that 

at FCI-Florence similar to that at USP-Leavenworth, the OIG could not 
substantiate from analysis of phone data, money transfer records and other data that- or~ 
involved in introducin narcotics or other contraband to FCI-Florence. - told the OIG th~ 

but denied - or any employee introduced contraband to him. 

- admitted to sexual contact with inmate - consistent with his statement, on approximately a 
dozen occasions from around Thanksgiving to late December 2017, and to receiving the perfume from 
- that she failed to report to prison officials. - denied introducing any contraband t~ . 

On January 2, 2019, _ was arrested based on a one-count indictment and summons in U.S. District 
Court, District of Colorado, charging her with a violation of 18 U.S.C. § 2244(a)(4), abusive sexual contact 
of a ward. 

On May 22, 2019- pleaded guilty to the indictment and was sentenced on August 16, 2019, to 
3 years' probation of which she must register as a sex offender, and was ordered to pay a $5,000 fee for the 
Justice for Victims of Trafficking Act, and a $100 special assessment fee, both to be paid immediately. 

- resigned from the BOP effective January 6, 2018. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. The 
OIG is providing this report to the BOP for its information. 
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DEPARTMENT OF JUS TICE I OFFICE OF THE INSPECTOR GENERAL 

ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Federal Correctional Institution 
Aliceville, Alabama 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Atlanta Area Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

181 Field Office MFO 

181 AIGINV 

181 Component BOP 

D USA 

D Other 

CASE NUMBER -
DOJ COMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

STATUS 

0 OPEN 0 OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: D YES 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

181 CLOSED 

181 NO 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon receipt of information from the Federal 
Bureau of Prisons (BOP), Office of Internal Affairs, alleging that Federal 
Correctional Institution (FCI), Aliceville, Alabama, sexually abused FCI-Aliceville inmate 

During the course of the investigation, the OIG found indications that- may also have sexually abused FCI
Aliceville inmat~ and that he showed a lack of candor during his OIG interview regarding his 
inappropriate relationship with FCI-Aliceville inmates. 

The OIG investigation substantiated the allegations tha- engaged in a sexual relationship with FCI -Aliceville 
inmat es and that he lacked candor during his OIG interview. 

Former FCI-Aliceville told the OIG that he interviewed - at 
the Pickens County Hospital, Carrollton, Alabama, on December 26, 2017. During that interview, - alleged that 
she engaged in a sexual relationship with - in the past. Additionally, _ sa id that while she was receiving 

,_ threatened to use force against her if she provided details of their sexual 
relationship to anyone. - stated that- had access to her- due to him working an 
overtime shift where he was assigned to watch her. - corroborated - assertions by verifying that _ 
worked an overtime shift and was assigned to watch - on December 1, 2017. 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

DATE August22,2020 

James Boyersmith 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE 
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During her OIG interview- stated that - forced her to perform oral sex and to have intercourse with 
him in the FCI-Aliceville Education Department on September 18, 2017, October 1, 2017, and November 6, 2017. 
- recalled that her sexual encounters with - occurred in the storage closets in that department. In 
addition, - stated that on at least two of those occasions, - told her not to tell anyone about their 
sexual encounters because "it would be my word against yours." Add itionally, - sa id that after the sex with 
- she notated those encounters in her personal date book. The OIG reviewed specific entries in -
date book, and they corroborated her assertions. 

During her OIG interview, - said that she had oral sex and intercourse witrllllll on 20 different occasions in 
the Education Department from May 2016 through April 2018- stated that most of the sexual encounters 
she had with - occurred in the department closets or classrooms; however, she recalled one instance where 
she had sex with- in a prison staff bathroom located in B-unit. In addition, - stated that on April 22, 
2018, after she had sexual intercourse and performed oral sex on - she went to her cell and vomited. -
said that she spit a portion of her vomit into a medicine bottle and utilized tissue and swabs to wipe her mouth. 
- provided those items to the OIG as evidence of her sexual encounters witrllllll. The OIG reviewed the 
DNA evidence results obtained from the Alabama Department of Forensic Sciences for - and - and 
those findings corroborated - assertions. 

In a voluntary interview with the OIG, _ denied having a sexual relationship with any FCI-Aliceville inmates. 
- resigned his position as a- effective, February 3, 2020. 

On February 13, 2020, - was arrested based on a crimina l information out of the Northern District of Alabama 
(NDAL}, Tuscaloosa, Alabama, charging him with two counts of deprivation of rights under color of law, 18 U.S.C. § 

242, and one count of false statement. 18 U.S.C. § 1001. 

On April 30, 2020- plead guilty in the NDAL, Tuscaloosa, Alabama, for two counts of deprivation of rights 
under color of law, 18 U.S.C. § 242, and one count of false statement, 18 U.S.C. § 1001 . 

On August 19, 2020, - was sentenced to 42 months of incarceration, 3 years of supervised release, and 
ordered to pay a special assessment of $150. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and al l criminal and administrative actions are complete. The OIG is 
providing this report to BOP for its information. 

Unless otherwise noted, the OIG applies the preponderance of the evidence standard in determining whether DOJ 
personnel have committed misconduct. The Merit Systems Protection Board applies this same standard when 
reviewing a federal agency's decision to take adverse action against an employee based on such misconduct. See S 
U.S.C. § 7701 (c)(1 )(B); S C.F.R.§ 1201.56(b)(1 )(ii). 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

D. Ray James Correctional Facility 
Folkston, Georgia 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Atlanta Area Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

181 Field Ol'fice MFO 

181 AJGINV 

181 Component BOP 

□ USA 

□ Other 

CASE NlJl\,IBER 

DOJCOMJ>ONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

STATUS 

□ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 181 CLOSED 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 181 NO 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

The Department of Justice Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the receipt of 
information from the Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP), Office of Internal Affairs, Washington, D.C., alleging that 

D. Ray James Correctional Facility (DRJCF), Folkston, Georgia, 
engaged in an inappropriate relationship with DRJCF inmate _ _ 

The OIG investigation substantiated the allegation that - engaged in an inappropriate relationship with 
- · For this, she was terminated from her position. 

DRJCF and told the OIG that they reviewed video surveillance 
from the K-05 housing unit dated November 18, 2017, and November 19, 2017. The video showed 
spending an inappropriate amount of time witl- alone in the shower area on the aforementioned days, which is 
known by inmates and staff to be out of view of the prison' s cameras. - said that he interviewed _ 
regarding her behavior in the unit and - claimed that she had conducted contraband searches in the shower 
and that she requested- assistance to squeegee up water. 

- and 
records that showed 

told the OIG that all contraband searches are logged by staff and there were no 
conducted searches on November 18, 2017, or November 19, 2017. 

Inmates and told the OIG that - routinely joked with and disclosed her 

iinal information to unidentified inmates. - told the OIG that although he did not witness - and 
having sexual intercourse, he heard them on multiple occasions in the showers engaged in what sounded like 

sex. Specifically, _ said that he heard- making moaning sounds while in the shower with- in 
November and December 2017. - admitted to the OIG that he knew , but he denied he was ever alone 
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wittlllllll in the shower area or that he engaged in an inappropriate relationship with her. 

refused to be interviewed by the OIG- was tem1inated from her position at the DRJCF, 

The OIG investigation concluded that - engaged in an inappropriate relationship wit- based on 
witness testimony and the review of prison video surveillance. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. The OIG is 
providing this report to the BOP for its information. 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

I 

SUBJECT 

Federal Correctional Institution Petersburg Medium 
Hopewell, Virginia 

OFFICE CONDUCIJNG INVESTIGATION 

Washington Field Office 

DlSTRIBUTION STA1iU~ 

. . 

DOJ·COMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

-') 

IBI Field Office WFO D OPEN D OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 1B1 

D AIGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMJTIED: D YES IBI 

IBI Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

D USA 

D Other 

SYNOPSIS 

CLOSED 

NO 

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon~ 
of information from the Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP), Office of Internal Affairs (OIA) alleging that--
I- BOP Federal Correctional Institution (FCI) Petersburg Medium, 
sexually assaulted BOP I on December 1, 2012, in a hotel room at 
the in Prince George County, Virginia. The OIG conducted the investigation jointly with the 
Prince George County Police De artment {PGPD), Prince George, Virginia. At the time of the alle ed incident 
~~a _ _ and ~ ~ 
I at FCI Petersburg. 

The OIG investigation did not substantiate the allegation of sexual assault. 

On February 24,2018,- filed a formal police report with PGPD ~ that- nvited her to a hotel room 
where he was throwing a birthday party. Upon arriving at the room.--ealized that 2!!!L- w~ there. 
- ernained in the room withl- or the next several hours eventually kissing. - reported that 

- ook his penis out of his pants and kept putting- hand on it and moving her hand in an up and down 
motion making her stroke his penis. - took his pan~ attempted to remove - lllllblocked 
him from doing so and said, 'N~ I don't want that. ' - kept placing- [sic] hands on his penis, 
after she said, 'no'. Eventuallyl.....-straddled - and ejaculated on her clothed chest.,, 

In a follow-up interview withl- n April 2, 2018- eporte~ on top of- fully clothed and 
kissing him at one point. ~~-~ did niot report to investigators that-~--- ver attempted to prevent her from 
leaving the hotel room. 

On April 2, 2018!~ as interviewed by the OIG and PGPD and denied the sexual ~saultallegation, 
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claiming the sexual contact was consensual. - dmitted getting the hotel room and in~ to join 
him. Subsequent to her arrival, they talked, watched television, played cards and had pizza. ~ ffered some 
wine coolers to- over the course of several hours while in the room. 

According to....ilas the evening p~ d, they kissed, and Ill removed her shirt (top) while he fondled 
her breasts. As they continued to kiss, lllllllllllllltied to unbutton- pants but she verbally declined, and he 
stopped once she said no. - confirmed that he had removed his penis during this time and placed_ 
hand on it. Upo~ his hand, he fondled her breasts while she held and stroked his penis until he ejaculated 
on her stomach.[--said, "and I ejaculated on her stomach. And then when she got up, I got up to go get a rag 
to wipe it off. She's just lying there like this, looking up at the ceiling. And I said, are you okay[?] She's like, just 
lying there. So, she got up. She was like, I've got to go. I said, okay, go, you know. I said, well, what's wrong. 
She's like, I've got to go, I've got to go. And she just bolted out the room and left." - enied lllllllever 
~ his advances or saying no during the evening, other than when he tried to remove her pants and stopped. 
I- greed to undergo polygraph examination in an effort to clear his name. 

Hotel records and text messages from the date in question could not be retrieved. 

The OIG and PGPD interviewed seven witnesses tha1- informed about the December I, 2012, incident. The 
witnesses accounts are provided in sum below: 

( date and year unspecified) about a 
~ him that she and 
- dvances. 1 

intercourse.) 

at FCI Petersb~ ed that he thougl:!t 
oup outing that led to- oom at a hotel. 
ad vaginal intercourse at the hotel room, despite aying "no" to 

confirmed to investigators that there was no vaginal, anal, or oral 

• t FCI Petersb~ a phone call from 
- the evening of the alleged assault. The PGPD police record noted ~ ying, "she thought it 

was going to be a friendly thing then he blocked the door and would not let her leave. She had been penned 
[sic] to the bed and that he was trying to kiss her." 

• 

• when 
. eport 

"work wife" because they were close. She described,,.........-........ very professional. 
told about the incident by- he did not feel that it reached a criminal matter. She also stated that she 
does not ever want to not believe someone reporting sexual abuse, but she thinks that - s trying to get a 
reaction from people." 

. . . 
PGPD police report, "she told him that the offender 

I Petersburg, stated the following in the 
ade her get naked and tried to force oral 
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sex, and then ejaculated on her back. He went on to sa that he thinks there is more to the story [than] what 
he was told because at the time and that when 
he dated her she was very competitive in everything and is a former collegiate athlete and that she would 
have fought back." 

• stated that he kept in 
contact with[ He recalled that in 2015lllllllltold him that she 
had been sexually assaulted by a coworker, but she did not go into detail. He recalled telling- hat she 
should have reported the incident when it happened. She contacted him again later after she saw the 
coworker teaching a sexual awareness class at the p~ ecalled that - was seeking his 
guidance on the reporting process.I- contacted- again after she reported the incident, at which 
time she explained the entire incident to him. 

- ent two emails to~ er his interview. ~ ote, "in the Subject's [sic] 
defense, I hope this is a case of a good relationship gone bad and none of the events are true. However, my 
gut feeling tells me otherwise. Although, I have no evidence or knowledge to support, I do believe
when she indicated, he lured her into the hotel rooru.Ji:i:.! llSJWli. i .fictitious birthday or football party. I do 
believe they hugged, kissed, had wine and pizza." --eceived another email from 
~ stating, "I believe during the time this incident occurred out ranked sic 
- I believe at the time this incident occurred, was a GS-13 and was a 

GS-11. Additionally, I don't believe was assigned to Investigations un~ a_r or so, after this 
incident took pl~ d this information is accurate, it DOES NOT support 111111f111egation of fear 
to report due t~- position of power." 

On April 10, 2018, PGPD administered lllllllli pol~ amination using the federal zone 
testing format. The following are the relevant questions utilized with- responses: 

• Did you lie in your statement? No 

• Did you lie in any part of your statement? No 

• Did you plan to lie in any part of your statement? No 

Following review of the examination results, it was the opinion of the examiner tha1- esponses to the 
relevant questions were consistent with that of a deceptive person. During a post-test interview,- provided 
additional details to his statement that were not previously reported. ln the opinion of the polygraph examiner, 
those details would not lead this case any further to a determination of guilt, but could possibly explain the results 
of the deceptive polygraph examination. No additional testing was given. 

On April 10, 2018, the Prince George County Virginia Commonwealth Attorney's Office declined criminal 
prosecution. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to the Federal Bureau of Prisons for its review. 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Federal Conectional Complex 
Fonest City, Arkansas 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Dallas Field Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

181 Field Ol'fice DFO 

181 AJGINV 

181 Component BOP 

□ USA 

□ Other 

CASENUMllER 

DOJCOMJ>ONENT 

Federal Bureau of Plisons 

STATUS 

□ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 181 CLOSED 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 181 NO 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 
The Department of Justice Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investioation upon the receipt of 
information from the Bureau of Prisons (BOP) on March 2, 2018, that inmate alleged that Federal 
Corrections Institutional (FCI) Fonest City, Arkansas provided him with 
contraband in exchange for sexual favors. 

The OIG investigation did not substantiate that - provided contraband in exchange for sexual favors nor 
received payments from -

The OIG, along with BOP Special Inv~ ve Staff, interviewed - who provided several inconsistencies 
in his accounts of what had occurred. - claimed that he had turned in the allegations to BOP on February 
2, 2018; however, one of the emails that he said he provided to the BOP staff member was not written until a 
later date. - claimed that - had provided him with tobacco on January 29, 2018, and then "gave 
him a shot" for possessing the tobacco on that same date. On the contrary, several inmates provided affidavits 
to the OIG statin they witnessed or were aware that assessed the tobacco o~ 28, 2018. -
stated that knew his fiancee, , from , tha- had been in 
contact wi h via his ce~ at had sent money via Western Union or Money Gram to 
either or his daughter,_ . When interviewed by the OIG- and- denied 
knowing eac~ ior to seei~~ ther at the FCI in the visitation area. OIG~ enas revealed no 
contact from - phone wiUWIIIIIIIIIIII and no payments fro~ to either- or- . -
claimed that the last sexual encounter occuned in the staff bathroom in the unit where he lived. However, 
- was unable to accurately describe the staff bathroom; several BOP employees and inmates stated that 
they had never seen - anywhere near the staff bathroom; and they rarely saw - in that area. None 
of the staff or inmates interviewed by the OIG, including the inmate that cleans the bathroom on a daily basis, 
had seen - and - in the bathroom together. The OIG confirmed there were no video cameras in this 
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area. 

When interviewed by the OIG denied that he provided contraband in the form of tobacco to - in 
exchange for sexual favors. denied personally knowing any o acquaintances or family 
members, other than crossing paths with them during their visitation wit . Finally, - denied ever 
providing contraband to any inmate or exchanging any kind of payment with an inmate or their family. 

On August 8, 2018, U.S. Attorney's Office for the Eastern District of Arkansas declined criminal prosecution of 
- for providing a false statement. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to BOP for its information. 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Office of the Inspector General 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Federal Correctional Institution 
Terminal Island, California 

) 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION DOJ COMPONENT 

CASE NUMBER 

Los Angeles Field Office Federal Bureau of Prisons 

DISTRIBUTION STATUS 

[X] Field Office LAFO II OPEN II OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

[X] AIGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: LI YES 

[XI Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

II USA 

II Other 

SYNOPSIS 

IX) CLOSED 

[XJ NO 

The Department of Justice Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the receipt 
of information from the Federal Bw-eau of Prisons (BOP), Office of Internal Affairs, alleging that on 
February 28, 2018, in the laund facili at the Federal Correctional Institution (FCI) Terminal Island, 
California, engaged in inappropriate contact with inmate 

Subsequent to the onset of the investigation, the OIG found indications that - made false statements 
to the OIG regarding the events on February 28, 2018, during her compelled interview. 

The OIG investigation did not substantiate the allegation tha- had inappropriate contact with 
- but did substantiate that - made false statements to the OIG regarding the events on 
February 28, 2018. 

indicated to the OIG that she observed 
suspicious behavior between in the laundry facility area on February 28, 2018. 
Specifically, _ witnessed exit a staff bathroom with her uniform shirt com letel untucked, 
which was atypical behavior for , according to - Because she witnessed alone in 
the laundry room with proximately 30 minutes prior, - suspected that was hiding 
in the staff bathroom that had just exited. Under the ise of using the staffba hr 
sought to investigate. As she approached the bathroom, seemed to try to warn by stating 
in a loud voice tha- was entering the staff bathroom. then proceeded to walk quickly in front 
of- and entered the bathroom. According t~ , was in the bathroom for less than a 
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minute and proceeded to warn - not to enter the bathroom for 10 to 15 minutes as - had just 
used it. However, _ decided to enter the staff bathroom, and once inside, - observed that the door 
to the sprinkler room, a separate room within and connected to the staff bathroom, was unlocked, which was 
~ o remain locked at all times. According to - she entered the sprinkler room and discovered 
- hiding in the sprinkler room. 

- told the OIG that he entered the staff bathroom in order to relieve himself, but only after -
had exited. Further, - claimed that while in the staff bathroom, he entered the sprinkler room out 
of curiosit~ acknowledged that he was inside the sprinkler room when discovered b~ . 
However, - denied being in the staff bathroom with - or having any inappropriate contact 
with her. Similarly, - told BOP FCI Terminal Island Special Investigative Services Lieutenant 

that he went to use the staff bathroom, saw that the sprinkler room door was ajar, and went 
in the sprinkler room because he was curious. He also denied any sexual contact with- to _ _ 

Interviews of 14 inmate orderlies assigned to the laundry facility revealed that the staff bathroom was 
commonly used by inmates with the permission of BOP staff. In addition, the sprinkler room within the 
staff bathroom was either locked or never observed to be open. 

In her compelled OIG interview, - denied any ~ iate contact with- or other imnates. 
- also denied being in the staff bathroom with _ _ - acknowledged that she was issued 
a ke to the sprinkler room within the staff bathroom but noted that it was locked and fwther stated that 

was not found inside the sprinkler room. statement to the OIG contradicted both 
and- statements. In addition, stated that she was with- when-

was discovered and that he was discovered in the staff bathroom rather than the sprinkler room. 

The U.S. Attorney's Office for the Central District of California declined criminal prosecution of

The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to the BOP for appropriate action. 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

D. Ray James Correctional Facility 
Folkston, Georgia 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Atlanta Area Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

181 Field Ol'fice MFO 

181 AJGINV 

181 Component BOP 

□ USA 

□ Other 

CASE NlJl\,IBER 

DOJCOMJ>ONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

STATUS 

□ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 181 CLOSED 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 181 NO 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

The Department of Justice Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the receipt of 
information from the Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP), Office of Internal Affairs, Washington, D.C., alleging that 

D. Ray James Con-ectional Facility (DRJCF), Folkston, Georgia, engaged 
in an inappropriate relationship with DRJCF inmate 

The OIG investigation substantiated the allegation that - engaged in an inappropriate relationship with 
- For this, she resigned from her position. 

told the OIG that while listening to recorded inmate telephone calls, she 
communicating with a female she believed to be - utilizing telephone number 

stated she was familiar with- voice due to having interactions with her at the p1ison. There were 
multiple calls from December 9, 2017, through ~ 8, 2018. The OIG listened to the calls and the calls were 
sexual in nature and discussed adding money to - inmate account. 

Civilian , inmate - brother, told the OIG that he received a Mone Gram a ment in the 
amount of $100 from an individual that he knew only a~ on December 23, 2017. said that 
he never met - in person, however, the communicated via cell phone and text messaging to confirm that he 
received the aforementioned payment. stated he did not know what the payment was for and that 
this was the only payment he received from said that he applied the payment to his 
brother's inmate account. 

The OIG reviewed TracFone and Verizon Wireless telephone records that corroborated 
assertions that he communicated with- from December 1, 2017, throu 0 h Februar 8, 2018. The records 
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showed that - contacted utilizing cell phone numbe 

The OIG reviewed M~.~~~.l~~~!!._financial records that confirmed 
- sent him $100 _ , and that he applied the money to his 
OIG also reviewed Walmart co1Tespondence and surveillance video that showe 
MoneyGram at a Walmart in Alpharetta, Georgia, 

Inmate- refused to be interviewed during the OIG investigation. 

assertions that 
e ' s · nmate account. The 

received-

- ini~he OIG that she had an i~ate relatio~ with inmate - or that she 
provided- with money for inmate- account. - recanted her initial denials to the OIG 
and admitted: 1) to communicating with- on the inmate recorded telephone lines utilizing cell phone number 

, on multiple occasions from December 2017 through February 2018~ to staff that 
inmate utilized contraband cell phones to communicate with her; 3) sendin- two 
MoneyGram payments to apply to inmatcllllll prison account from December 2017 to February 2018; 4) that 
her nickname amongst her closest family members was - ; and 5) having an inappropriate relationship with 
inmate from December 2017 through February 2018. - denied engaging in sexual contact with inmate 

resigned her position from DRJCF following her OIG interview, effective 

The U.S. Attorney's Office for the Southern District of Georgia declined criminal prosecution of- for 
providing false statements during her OIG interview. 

The OIG investigation concluded tha- engaged in an inappropriate relationship with inmate- based on 
witness testimony, the review of financial and telephonic records, and - own admissions during her OIG 
interview. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. The OIG is 
providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Office of the Inspector General 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Federal Conectional Institution 
Danbury, Connecticut 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

New York Filed Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

181 Field Ol'fice NYFO 

181 AJGINV 

181 Component BOP 

□ USA 

□ Other 

CASE NUMBER 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

STATUS 

□ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 181 CLOSED 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 181 NO 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon 
the receipt of information from the Federal Bureau of Prisons BOP alle in that in a memorandum 
dated November 6, 2017, indicated that 
during an intake intervi , - alle ed that 

· · · ip with Federal Correctional Institution (FCI) Danbur 
. According to the memorandum written by_ , 

alleged that he spent one night wit on October 13, 2017, after his release from the FCI 
Danbury that same day and prior to reporting to the United States Probation Office (USPO) on October 
17, 2017, for his intake interview. 

The OIG investigation did not substantiate the alJegation that - was involved in an 
inappropriate r~ ith- . Furthermore, the OIG did not substantiate that - spent 
one night with- on October 13, 2017. 

The OIG interviewed_ , who stated that he "fabricated the story" that he initially told to the USPO 
during his intake interview on October 17, 2017. 

through her attorney _ , declined to be interviewed by the OIG. 

The U.S. Attorney's Office for the District of Connecticut declined criminal prosecution of _ _ 

resigned from her position at the BOP effective 
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The OIG has completed its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. The 
OIG is providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

Unless otherwise noted, the OIG applies the preponderance of the evidence standard in detennining 
whether DOJ personnel have committed misconduct. The Merit Systems Protection Board applies this 
same standard when reviewing a federal agency's decision to take adverse action against an employee 
based on such misconduct. See 5 U.S.C. § 7701(c)(l)(B); 5 C.F.R. § 1201.56(b)( l )(ii). 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Office of the lnspector General 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

***-**- ) 
(former) 

Federal Correctional Institution 
Memphis, Tennessee 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Miami Field Office 

OTSTRIBUTJON 

181 Field Office MFO 

181 AIGINV 

~ Component BOP 

□ USA 

□ Other 

CASE NUMBER 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

STATUS 

□ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION CLOSED 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES ~ NO 

Date of PrcYious Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon 
receipt of information from the Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP), Special Investigative Supervisor's Office 
SIS at the Federal Con-ectional Institution in Memphis, Tennessee. The complainant alleged that 

assigned to FCI-Memphis, engaged in an inappropriate relationship 

The OIG investigation substantiated the allegation that - engaged in an inappropriate relationship with 
_ , in violation of BOP Program Statement (PS) 3420.11 , titled "Standards of Employee Conduct," 
when she spoke wittllllll on the phone, communicated with him via e-mail and sent money to his BOP 
Trust Fund account utilizing her sister' s name. Furthermore, the OIG determined that - violated PS 
3420.11 when she provided false statements in connection with this investi~he OIG did not 
substantiate the allegation that - engaged in a sexual relationship with _ 

Information from Western Union, Talktone, and AT&T Internet Services revealed that - was in 
contact with and sent money to - while he was in the custody of the BOP. Western Union and 
AT&T records verified a $200 payment to BOP Trust Fund account fro-
sister, using an internet connection registered o residence. The Talktone records and BOP 
phone records verified tha- contacted n a Voice Over Internet Protocol (VOiP) 
application phone nwnber on August 1, 9, 10, and 15, 2018. The date and time stamp for these calls all 
utilized that same internet connection as the Western Union transaction, which was registered to 
residence. In addition, during a recorded phone call between - and- on~l, 2018 
discussed the money she sent to his BOP account. BOP records also indicated that - and 
communicated via phone and e-mail regularly. 

DATE Janua 2, 2019 SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

DATE January 2, 2019 j SIGNATURE ~'$,....4- BOURBON 

S C G R b B 
1. Ua,..te::--: l?<T><"l'C, '""· ....-------------------

APPROVED BY PECIALAGENT IN HAR E O ert OUT110n14,03,46 .05,00, 
-~=~~-----------------

. . . 

01 G Form W-210/2 (Superseding O/G Form lll-207/48 ) (04/2312007) 
Portions of the Report of Investigation may not be exempt under the Freedom of lr!formation Act (5 USC 552) a11d the Privacy Act (5 USC 552a). 



- declined to be interviewed by the OIG. 

~ her voluntary OIG interview, denied she was involved in an inappropriate relationship with 
- ; however, she confirmed that was her sister~ ed writing letters, sendjng 
photographs, engaging in phone conversations, and sending mon~ . - refused to answer 
additional questions and then terminated her OIG interview. 

The U.S. Attorney's Office for the Western District of Tennessee declined criminal prosecution of

- resigned from her position at the BOP following her OIG interview, effective October 19, 2018. 

The OIG has concluded its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. The 
OIG is providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Office of the Inspector General 

PACE: 2 

CASENUMBER: -

DATE: January 2, 2019 



U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Federal Conectional Institution Petersburg 
Petersburg, Virginia 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Washington Field Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

181 Field Ol'fice WFO 

STATUS 

□ OPEN 

CASE NUMBER 

(former) 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

□ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

181 AJGINV HQ PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 

181 Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

□ USA 

□ Other 

SYNOPSIS 

181 CLOSED 

181 NO 

The Office of the Inspector General initiated this investigation upon~ rmation from the 
Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP) Special Investigative Agent (SIA) _ , Federal Correctional 
Com lex Petersburo, Ho ewell, Virginia, that Sex Offender Management Program (SOMP) -

, Federal Correctional Institution (FCD Petersbur~ m, engaged in an 
in~ e sexual relationship and provided contraband to federal inmate_ , Federal Register #- . - initially denied the alle ations but subsequently provided detail~ ing the 
alleged sexual relationship with . described having sexual contact with- on numerous 
occasions as well as incidents when brought food into the institution for him. 

The OIG conducted numerous interviews of inmates and staff members, as well as interviews of two 
member~ family. There were several instances in which inmates recounted information told to 
them by ~ conflicted with information that- ~ ed to the OIG during his interview. For 
example, several inmates stated that - told them that - visited his family in South Carolina and 
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On May 17, 2018, the OIG conducted an interview of • . - denied engaging in a sexual 
relationship with - and introducing contraband into FCI Petersburg. ~ ovided the OIG with a 
DNA sample and agreed to take a polygraph examination. - descri~ as having a tendency 
to fo1m an inappropriate attachment to staff members roviding him treatment in the psychology 
department. According ~ , she reported inappropriate attachment to her as well as 
inappropriate comments ~ de to her. explained that she did not provide one-on-one 
treatment to - ' but that she was primarily responsible for facilitating various groups attended by _ 
and other SOMP inmates. 

On October 10, 2018, _ underwent a ol raph examination. According to SSA 
OIG Polygraph Examiner, the results of test indicated deception rega1~ e relevant questions 
concerning sexual contact with inmate In a post-polygraph interview, - explained that she 
was previo~ e victim of repeated sexual abuse and this was the cause for the 'Deception Indicated' 
test result. - continued to deny the allegations and indicated that she would undergo another 
polygraph examination if necessary. Based on the nature of- 's reported history of sexual abuse and 
the lack of corroborating evidence related to this allegation, another polygraph examination will not be 
performed. 

Based on the lack of evidence and information supporting the allegation, the OIG was unable to 
substantiate the allegation that - and - had a sexual relationship or that she introduced 
contraband into FCI Petersburg. 

The OIG briefed Assistant U.S. Attorney (AUSA) _ , U.S. Attorney's Office, Eastern District 
- inia - Richmond Division, on the facts of the case. AUSA- declined federal prosecution of 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Office of the lnspector General 
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On April 3, 2018, - submitted a letter of intent to resign from the BOP in June 2018. Her 
resignation became effective on June 15, 2018. ex lained to the OIG that she chose to resign 
because of the to 

not related to these allegations. The OIG interviewed several 
's intent to resign prior to these allegations being made. 

The OIG is providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Office of the lnspector General 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Federal Conectional Complex 
Tucson, Arizona 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Tucson Area Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

181 Field Ol'fice DNFO 

181 AJGINV 

181 Component BOP 

□ USA 

□ Other 

CASE NUMBER 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

STATUS 

□ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 181 CLOSED 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 181 NO 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiat~ ation upon 
the receipt of information from Bureau of Prisons Special Investi oative A ent- alleging 
that on June 21, 2018, he received a complaint from inmate of the Federal Correctional 
Complex (FCC), Tucson, Arizona, stating that had been in a 
romantic triangle relationship with - and also inmate . alleged that■ had 
allowed himself and - to masturbate in her presence~thou h she ended the relationship with- after 
having a falling out. The infom1ation alleged further that continued to all~ to masturbate in 
her presence and that■ also gave- "hand jobs." also alleged that~ s helping-
smuggle drugs into the FCC through the prison mail system. 

The OIG invest= n did not substantiate the alJegations tha. had inappropriate relationships with 
inmates nor thallll helped smuggle drugs into the FCC. 

None of the witnesses interviewed had any direct, personal knowledge that ~ d inappropriate 
relationships with inmates nor th~ helped smuggle drugs into the FCC~ stated that he 
fabricated the allegations against ~ s he was upset that corrections officials were punishing him for 
engaging in stalking activities of employees and was further angered by b~~~i_rlaced in the Special 
Housing Unit. ~ d that he thought that makin~ ations against - would extricate himself 
from punishm~ stated that he does not know 1111and has never had any type of relationship with 
her, nor has he smuggled drugs into the • . son. - also stated that he was unaware of any other inmates 
engaging in inappropriate relations with 

- denied that she had inappropriate relationships with inmates and stated that she had never helped 
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smuggle drugs into the FCC and reasoned that the thought of participating in sexual misconduct with 
inmates was sickening and that she would never smuggle contraband as it is illegal. 

The OIG did not present this case for prosecution due to there being no evidence of criminal violations. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to the BOP for its review. 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Office of the lnspector General 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

) 

Federal Conectional Institution Fort Dix 
Joint Base McGuire Dix Lakehurst, New Jersey 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

New Jersey Area Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

181 Field Office NYFO 

STATUS 

□ OPEN 

CASE NUMBER 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

□ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

181 AIGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 

181 Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

□ USA 

□ Other 

SYNOPSIS 

181 CLOSED 

181 NO 

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the 
receipt of information from the Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP Office of Internal Affairs, alle in that 
Federal Correctional Institution (FCI) Fort Dix, New Jerse , 
- had a sexual relationship with BOP inmate 
smuggled food into the FCI Fort Dix for . BOP in 
provided information to BOP FCI Fort Dix 
that was meeting with on 

's vaginal area. According to 
upon his return from - office. 

The OIG investigation did not substantiate the allegations that - had a sexual relatio~ith 
- nor did it substantiate that - introduced contraband into the FCI Fort Dix for -

sexual activity wit 
would meet with 

An OIG review of BOP Tru View records, did not reveal any indications that 
- commissary account or any communication betwee~ and 
account. 

deposited funds into 
through his BOP e-mail 

During her voluntary OIG interview, - denied all allegations. - stated that - never 
attempted to have a sexual relationship with her. 
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The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to the BOP for its review. 

Unless otherwise noted, the OIG applies the preponderance of the evidence standard in determining whether 
DOJ personnel have committed misconduct. The Merit Systems Protection Board applies this same standard 
when reviewing a federal agency's decision to take adverse action against an employee based on such 
misconduct. See 5 U.S.C. § 7701(c)(l)(B); 5 C.F.R. § 1201.56(b)(l)(ii). 
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U.S. Department of .Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

(***-**- ) et al. 
(former) 

D. Ray James Correctional Facility 
Folkston, Georgia 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Atlanta Area Office 

DISTRIBUTION STATUS 

[X] Field Office MFO [] OPEN 

CASE NUMBER 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

[] OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

[X] AlGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: [I YES 

[X] Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

[] USA 

[] Other 

SYNOPSIS 

[X] CLOSED 

[X] NO 

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the 
~ ation from the Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP), Office of Internal Affairs, alleging that 
- D. Ray James Correctional Facilit DRJCF), Folkston, Georgia, engaged in an inappropriate 
relationship with DRJCF inmate , Reg# - . 

Subsequent to the onset of the investigation, - admitted that she provided 
Skin liquid bandage and B-12 vitamins). The OIG also found that DRJCF 
showed a lack of candor during her OIG interviews regarding her knowledge of 
relationship with _ 

The OIG investigation substantiated the allegation that - engaged in an inappropriate relationshi~ 
- and that she provided- with contraband. AdditionaHy, the OIG substantiated that 
lacked candor during her OIG interviews. 

told the OIG she observed ina 
on September 9, 2018. stated that - escorted 
then led them into an examination room where- and 

stated that a short time later, she went into the examination room occupied by 

DATE September 19, 2019 SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

DATE September 19, 2019 SIGNATURE 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE James Boyersmith 

OIG Form 111-210/2 (Superseding O/G Form lll-207/4B) (04123107). 
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them having sexual intercourse. The OIG reviewed surveillance video obtained from DRJCF from S~ber 9, 
2018, that sho~ walking into the treatment room that - and - were led into by- . 
Seconds Jater~ een walking out of the treatment room. A short time later after returning to the nurse's 
station, ~ as observed being approached by- on two occasions. Additional} y, the video from that day 
showed- and - meeting together in a bathroom in the medical room for an undisclosed reason. 

During his OIG interview, - denied that he engaged in an inappropriate relation~th- that he 
engaged in any type of sexual contact with her, or that he obtained any contraband from -

- admitted during her OIG interviews that she had sexual intercourse with - in the medical unit on 
Se tember 9, 2018 and that she provided - with contraband (New Skin bandaoe and B-12 vitamins). 

told the OIG that - acted as her "look-out" while she had intercourse with in the medical 
unit. also provided the OIG with a self-recorded conversation she had with while visited 
her at her residence on September 17, 2018. The OIG' s review of that recording corroborated 
statements that - had knowledge of her sexual relationship with _ _ - resigned her position at 
DRJCF, effective September 26, 2018. 

denied during her OIG interviews that: She had knowledge that ~din a sexual relationship 
in the medical unit; She acted as a "look-out" for while - engaged in sexual acts 

with on September 9, 2018 or that she provided with details of the OIG investigation. -
was terminated from her positon at DRJCF, effective March 28, 2019. 

- and - were indicted, arrested, and convicted in the Southern District of Georgia for violations of 18 
U.S.C. § 371, Conspiracy, and 18 U.S.C. § 1001 , False Statement- was sentenced to 4 years of 
supervised probation, 40 hours of community service, and required to register as a sex offender. - was 
sentenced to 6 months of home-confinement, 5 ears of supervised probation, and required to self-report her 
felony conviction to the within 7 days. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. The OIG is 
providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

Unless otherwise noted, the OIG applies the preponderance of the evidence standard in determining whether 
DOJ personnel have committed misconduct. The Merit Systems Protection Board applies this same standard 
when reviewing a federal agency's decision to take adverse action against an employee based on such 
misconduct. See 5 U.S.C. § 7701 (c)(l)(B); 5 C.F.R.§ 1201.56(b)(l)(ii). 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Bann um Place Residential Re-entry Center 
Greenville, South Carolina 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Atlanta Area Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

[X] Field Office MFO 

STATUS 

[] OPEN 

CASE NUMBER 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

[] OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

[X] AlGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: [] YES 

[X] Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

[] USA 

[] Other 

SYNOPSIS 

[X] CLOSED 

[X] NO 

During this investigation, the OIG learned that RRC 
inappropriate relationship between- and 

may have known of the 
and failed to report the relationship to RRC officials. 

The OIG investigation substantiated the allegation that - engaged in an inappropriate relationship with 
; and that knew of the relationship and failed to report the relationship to RRC officials. 

and were both terminated from their positions. 

told the OIG that - confided in her that she and were involved in a romantic relationship. 
said that showed her approximately 6 photographs on cell hone that included 

and hugging and kissin , as well as one hoto penis. ~ that 
told her that she and her and as a result, she ~ had 

become a couple. - said that she did not report the relationship to RRC officials. 

DATE January 11, 2019 SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

_D_A_T_E __ J_an_t_iary __ l_l_, 2_0_1_.9 __ ~j_s_1_c_N_A_T_u_RE~- ~------------------
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- told the OIG that he and - were friends and that on one occasion he kissed her on the mouth and 
sent her a picture of his penis to her Facebook account. - denied that he and - engaged in a 
sexual relationship. 

RRC and 
seen the aforementioned photog~ and that they had no knowledge of 
rela~ - said that - told her about the photographs she 
tha- reported the info1mation to _ _ - stated that due to 
member, he was removed from the RRC and transfened to the 

both told the OIG that they had not 
and inappropriate 

i w d on cell phone and 
romised a staff 
South Carolina. 

The U.S. Attorney's Office for the District of South Carolina declined criminal prosecution of _ _ 

The OIG has completed its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions have been taken and are 
completed. The OIG is providing this report to the BOP for its review. 
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Date: January I l. 2019 



U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General 

SUBJECT 

Federal Con-ectional Institution 
Danbury, Connecticut 

OFFICE CONDUCTINGINVESTIGATION 

New York Field Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

181 Field Office NYFO 

181 AlGINV 

181 Component BOP 

□ USA 

□ Other 

ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

CASE NUMBER 

DOJCOMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

STATUS 

□ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION CLOSED 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES NO 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon 
receipt of information from the Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP) Office of Internal Affairs (OIA 
alle in that Federal Correctional Institution (FCI) Danbury, Connecticut (FCI Danbur ) 

engaged in sexual abuse against BOP inmate (R~ r 
), as well as smuggled unspecified drugs, cigarettes, and soft contraband to .. 

Sub~ the onset of the investigation, BOP provided the OIG additional information indicating 
that- misused government computers and engaged in unprofess~ nding a 
threating and hostile email communication to- BOP FCI Danbury- . 

The OIG investigation substantiated the allegation that- misused government computers when 
she sent a threatening email to - using the BOP email system on August 29, 2018. The OIG 
investigation did not substantiate the allegations that - engaged in sexual abuse against inmate 
- • introduced contraband into the FCI Danbury, or engaged in inappropriate contact with . 

During an interview with the OIG ..... admitted to misusing government email. During interviews 
with the OIG, both - and~ d sexual relations or any improper contact with each other or 
involvement in a scheme to introduce conh·aband into the FCI Danbury. 

- was terminated from the BOP on October 24, 2018, for sending a threatening email to BOP 
FCIDanbury- . 

DATE October 9, 2019 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

DA TE October 9, 2019 
Guido Modano 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE 
OIG Form lll-210/2 (Superseding O!G Form !l!-207/48) (0412312007) 

SIGNATURE 

SIGNATURE 
Digitally signed by GUIDO MO DANO 
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The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to BOP for its review. 

Unless otherwise noted, the OIG applies the preponderance of the evidence standard in determining 
whether DOJ personnel have committed misconduct. The Merit Systems Protection Board applies this same 
standard when reviewing a federal agency's decision to take adverse action against an employee based on 
such misconduct. See 5 U.S.C. § 7701(c) (1) (B); 5 C.F.R. § 1201.56(b) (1) (ii). 

U.S. Department of .Justice 

Office of the Inspector General 

PAGE: 2 

CASE NUMBER: -

DATE: October 9, 2019 



U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General 

SUBJECT 

Federal Correctional Institution 
Dublin, California 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Los Angeles Field Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

[XI Field Office LAFO 

ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

CASE NUMBER 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

STATUS 

II OPEN II OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION [XI CLOSED 

fXI AIGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: II YES [XI NO 

[XJ Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

II USA 

II Other 

SYNOPSIS 

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the 
receipt of information from the Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP alle in that be innin in Jul 2018, at the 
Federal Correctional Instit~ublin, California, BOP sexually 
abused FCI Dublin inmate- (Register ~ ) during 
re orted the incident to FCI Dublin staff on October 4 2018. A forensic medical exam conducted at the 

, did not identify injuries or illness. 

Subsequent to the onset of the investigation, FCI Dublin inma (Register ~ ) provided 
the OIG additional information alleging that - attempted to sexually abuse her and had sexually 
harassed her on multiple occasions. 

The OIG investigation did not substantiate the allegations that- sexually abused - at FCI Dublin 
during medical examinations or that - had attempted to sexually abuse and sexually harassed-

- told the OIG that - flirted with her in her cell within the Special Housino Unit (SHU) and asked 
her to bare her breasts during prescription medication distribution. According to . , she bared her breasts 
fo on at least six occasions and had she cau ht watchin her shower while in the SHU. 

informed inmates 
) of the incident and heard that 

(~ 
(Register ~ )-

DATE August 13, 2019 SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

DATE August 13, 2019 SIGNATURE Digitally signed by JAMES CHENG 
Date· 2019 08 J3 l2·32·40 :-07'00' 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE James K. Cheng 
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confirmed that - was flirtatious and stated- had asked her to dance and bare her breasts for 
hi . state- several times and bared her breasts once. recalled dancing for 

uring a ~ July or August 2018, and while dancing attem ted to insert 
er into her anus, but she jerked away and told - to sto . - : saw 

the next day because her encounter wi caused her to have nightmares. 
did not report the incident to - but tol her nightmares were related to 
read in a book. - told the OIG that approached her in April 2018 about seeing I 

, but did not discuss anything with r or regarding her interactions with - . !!:! 

Both and- recalled- telling them that 
after one of her medical visits. However, they both stated that 
the OIG identified an additional 11 female inmates who receiv 

Re 

d inserted his fingers into her anus 
Further, 

. . . . . . 
mg 

, who chaperoned 
ted that they did not observe 

re not aware o-
ithout a chaperone present. 

The U.S. Attorney's Office for the Northern District of California declined criminal prosecution of- . 

The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to BOP for its review. 
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Case Number: 

Date: August 13, 2019 



Unless otherwise noted, the OIG applies the preponderance of the evidence standard in determining whether 
DOJ personnel have committed misconduct. The Merit Systems Protection Board applies this same standard 
when reviewing a federal agency's decision to take adverse action against an employee based on such 
misconduct. See 5 U.S.C. § 770l(c)(l)(B); 5 C.F.R. § 1201.56(b)(l)(ii). 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Federal Correctional Institution 
Dublin, California 

OFFlCE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Seattle Domicile Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

[X] Field Office SFAO 

[XJ AIGINV 

[XI Component BOP 

LI USA 

[] Other 

CASE NUMBER 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

STATUS 

[] OPEN I] OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION [XI CLOSED 

PREVlOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: [] YES [XI NO 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

The Department of Justice Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the receipt 
of information from the Federal Bureau of Prisons BOP , Federal Conectional Institution (FCI), Dublin, 
California, alleging that had an~ ate relationship 
with former FCI Dublin inmate (Register# _ )_ - was 
incarcerated at FCI Dublin from May 9, 2013, until April 5, 2018, but is currently incarcerated at the 
Federal Detention Center (FD~ , Washington. According to the information, FDC SeaTac inmate 

(Register#- ) alleged that - was having an affair with- and that 
s· transfer to FDC SeaTac, the continue to communicate by email and phone. FCI Dublin 

suspected - might be using the email address 
among others, and provided suspect phone numbers. 

~ the course of the investigation, the OIG found indications that- may have sent money to 
- •s BOP account. 

The OIG investigation substantiated the allegation that~ icated with - by email and 
provided money to her BOP account, through - 's ~ ' but did not substantiate the 
allegation that they communicated by phone or had inappropriate physical contact. 

The OIG reviewed a BOP TRUVIEW Inmate Center Report for - 's email contacts and found she 

DATE March 26, 2019 SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

DATE March 26, 2019 SIGNATURE 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE James K. Cheng 
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listed as belonging to a parent, . However, a review of the emails 
between and that email address revealed content of a sexual nature, as well as discussion of plans to 
move to Mexico and marriage. The emails included reference to ~ ," both as the addressee of emails 
sent by - and the author of emails sent to - . The OIG also listened to - 's BOP monitored 
phone calls to the suspect phone numbers but did not identify - as participating in any of the calls. 

During her OIG interview, - stated her relat~ with- began in May 2013 and became 
more personal after multiple ~ nversations. - said she ultimately fell in love wit but 
denied a~ sical contact. - admitted discussing a marriage ~ wedding with 
and that - sent money to her BOP account through her brother, - 's account. BOP 
TRUVIEW records for January 8, 2018, to December 24, 2018, show seven deposits totaling $1,053.20 
fro~ to- BOP account. 

- told the OIG that approximately a year and a half ago, - told him she had a fi.iend that 
made her very happy during her incarceration at FCI Dublin, and she asked him for the assword to his BOP 
CorrLinks email account so her friend could communicate with h~ said a later 
contacted him via Facebook Messenger and identified himself as ~ - said when 
- was transferred to FDC SeaTac, offered to provide money for her, which he di~ 
depositing mone into ac o . said he would then send the money to _ 
BOP account. sai e met one time and that - admitted he works for the 
BOP as a . provided the OIG ap~ 280 screenshots from his 
Facebook Messenger program showing his communication with- . 

his voluntary OIG interview, _ initially denied having an inappropriate relationship with 
but after being shown copies of the emails mentioned above as well ~ es he sent to Ivan 

admitted exchanging emails with using the name - to avoid BOP 
acknowled ed that provided him access to his BOP CorrLinks account 

also admit~ g funds to - on more 
than one occasion for . Further, - admitted using the BOP 
information system to review hone calls, track her transfer to FDC SeaTac, and monitor her status 
while at FDC SeaTac. However, denied having any type of physical relationship with-
- explained the relationship was not romantic in nature, despite the sexu~,.!~~!~~~f emails, and 
that it was strictly a friendshi~ them having similar childhood experiences. - said it was 
not "about a love thing" with- and "I didn't expect for it to get, to go this far. It was simply just 
really an error on my part. I should never have done this." 

The U.S. Attorney's Office for the Northern District of California declined criminal prosecution of - · - resigned from his position at the BOP effective January 15, 2019. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. The OIG 

Page 2 

Case Number: 

Date: March 26. 2019 



is providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

Unless otherwise noted, the OIG applies the preponderance of the evidence standard in determining whether 
DOJ personnel have committed misconduct. The Merit Systems Protection Board applies this same standard 
when reviewing a federal agency's decision to take adverse action against an employee based on such 
misconduct. See 5 U.S.C. § 7701(c)(l)(B); 5 C.F.R. § 1201.56(b)(l)(ii). 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

United States Penitentiary Allenwood 
White Deer, Pennsylvania 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION DOJ COMPONENT 

CASE NUMBER 

New Jersey Area Office Federal Bureau of Prisons 

DISTRIBUTION STATUS 

181 Field Ol'fice NYFO □ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

181 AJGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 

181 Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

□ USA 

D Other 

SYNOPSIS 

181 CLOSED 

181 NO 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the receipt of infonnation 
from the Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP) Office of Internal Affairs (OIA) alleging that 

, assigned to United States Penitentiary Allenwood, Pennsylvania, engaged in a sexual 
relationship with inmate (Inmate Register # ) and deposited mone into -
inmate account. The alle , i n o ·ned information that ommunicated with usin the 
email address and mailing address 

The OIG investigation substantiated the allegations of a sexual relationship, substantiated the allegation 
that deposited mone into inmate account, and substantiated the allegation that 

communicated with under the name using the email and postal addresses 
referenced in the complaint. 

A review of the Application for Post Office Box Service for United States Postal Service (USPS) PO Box 
■determined the application was completed by . 

A review of the BOP TRUVIEW report for - revealed five deposits totaling $450.00, made to his 
account by . The deposits were made between July 1, 2018 and September 8, 2018. 

~ voluntary interview with the OIG,. admitted he was involved in a sexual relationship with 
- - - stated that between approximately July and October 2018, 111111112.erformed oral sex 
on him on three occasions and he touched her breasts and vagina with his h~ stated he 
exchanged emails with- using an account she established with a fictitious name and wrote letters 

DATE August 7, 2019 SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 
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APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE Guido Modano 
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to her address at a USPS PO Box. - stated - deposited money into his BOP commissary 
account but denied receiving contraband or any other gifts from- . 

Durin a vo~ terview with the OIG- admitted she was involved in a sexual relationship 
with - stated that beginning in approximately June 2018, she began a physical relationship 
with that initially consisted of physical contact and kissing. stated that, a-
request, she performed oral sex on him on three separate occasions and digitally penetrated her 
vagina on one occasion. - stated she established a fictitious email account and obtained a USPS 
PO Box in order to communicate with- - ackno~ sending money to . , but 
categorically denied introducing contraband into the facility. - admitted she knew having sexual 
contact with an inmate was illegal and violated BOP policy. 

The U.S. Attorney's Office for the Middle District of Pennsylvania declined criminal prosecution of - · 
- resigned from her position at the BOP effective October 30, 2018. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. The 
OIG is providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Office of the lnspector General 
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U.S. Department of Ju&ice 

Office of the lnspoctor Genernl ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Federal Correctional Institution Butner (Medium) 
Butner, North Carolina 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Washington Field Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

[X] Field Office WFO 

STATUS 

□ OPEN 

CASE NUMBER 

OOJ COM PONE NT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

□ OPEN PENDi NG PROSE CUTI ON 

[X] AIGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: [] YES 

[X) Component BOP Date ci Previous Report: 

□ USA 

□ Other 

SYNOPSIS 

[X] CLOSED 

[X] NO 

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the 
receipt of information from the Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP), Office of Internal Affairs, alleoin that 
Federal Correctional Institution (FCl)Butner, North Carolina Medium Facilities 

had an inappropriate relationshi~ FCI Butner Medium inmate (registration # 

Specifically, it was alleged that - and - began having inappropriate verbal and 
physical contact in the Facilities Department, as well as in other areas of FCI Butner from September through 
October 2018 .. The information furthe~e following: - and - kissed on numerous 
occasions; performed oral sex on - on one occasion in the attic of the Facilities Department; 

purchased a white Casio G-Shock watch for - ; and on September 27, 2018, . sent $100 to 
inmate account via Western Union. 

The OIG investigation substantiated the allegations that - an~ kissed on numerous occasions and 
that - sent $100 to- 's inmate account via Western Union, in violation of BOP Standards of 
Employee Conduct concerning inappropriate contact with an inmate an~ng an unauthorized favor to an 
inmate. The OIG inves~ not substantiate the all~ns that- performed oral sex on _ 
on one occasion or that--purchased a watch for - in violation of BOP Standards of Employee 
Conduct concerning sexual relationships with an inmate and introduction of contraband. 

- told the OIG that he kissed and hugged- on numerous occasions and she performed oral sex on 

DATE February 22, 2019 SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

DATE February 22, 2019 I SIGNATURE 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE Russell W. Cunningham 
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him on one occasion. - said that - ~ ood, to include biscuits from the Bo jangles 
restaurant, and they wrote letters to each other. - also said that- placed $100 on his inmate 
account via Western Union and that after he won 80 books of stamps in a gambling pool, he purchased a white 
Casio G-Shock watch from another inmate and gave it to - In addition, a video surveillance recording 
captured - sending a $100 Western Union money transfer to - inmate account. 

The OIG reviewed Western Union records that showed sent $100 to the BOP on September 27, 
2018, from Food Lion Store , North Carolina. In addition, 
Federal Correctional Complex Butner rovided the OIG with two 
surveillance footage screen shots, and one Western Union receipt (MTCN ) depicting. 
entering the Food Lion Store- and conducting a Western Union cash tans c i he amount of $100. 

told the OIG that startino in September 2018, , started to 
inside the Facilities Department, with 's foreman's pe1mission. On 

one of these occasions, stat d that- kissed her on the cheek, at which time she turned her head 
away. - stated that kissed her on two mor~s~ said that a11 the kissing 
took place in the facilities or the facilities - · ~ ated that neither put 
their hands under each other's clothing during the aforementioned encounters, and she described pulling 

toward her to embrace ~ oulders and during the embrace, - would touch her on 
the waist also admitted that - wrote~ tely three letters to her and she wrote back to 
him on two occasions in which she discussed songs - wanted her to listen to, and she told_ 
that she was a wife, mother, and grandma. 

- denied havin sexual intercourse with or any other inmate. - told the OIG, 
remember as he stated." - further denied enoaoino- in oral sex with 
any inmate. stated she never provided contraband to any inmate during her career. - stated she never 
received a white Casio G-Shock watch from - as he alleged. 

- stated that on September 27, 2018, she went to the Food Lion Stor- and using a fictitious name and 
phone number, she sent $100.00 (cash) to - 's inmate account via Western Union. stated that she 
sent the money to - because inmates were saying she had cost- his job, and was 
mad. 

The U.S. Attorney's Office for the Eastern District of North Carolina declined criminal prosecution of • . 

- resigned from her position at the BOP effective October 25, 2018. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. The OIG is 
providing this report to BOP for its information. 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Federal Co1Tectional Institution 
Greenville Illinois 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION DOJ COMPONENT 

CASE NUMBER 

Chicago Field Office Federal Bureau of Prisons 

DISTRIBUTION STATUS 

181 Field Office CFO □ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

181 AIGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 

181 Component BOP Date of PreYious Report: 

0 USA 

0 Other 

SYNOPSIS 

181 CLOSED 

181 NO 

The Department of Justice Office (DOJ) of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon 
the receipt of information from the Federal Bureau of Prisons BOP) Office of Internal Affairs alleging 
that during an unspecific time, engaged in a sexual 
relationship with inmate ) at the Federal Correctional Institution 
(FCI) located in Greenville, Illinois. 

The OIG investigation did not substantiate the allegation. 

Inmate- denied having a sexual relationship with - . 

A review of- 's call records did not reveal any information of evidentiary value. 

During an interview with the 010, - denied engaging in a sexual relationship or having any 
sexual contact with-

- resigned from her position at the BOP effective July 02, 2019. 

The U.S. Attorney's Office for the Southern District of Illinois declined criminal prosecution of - · The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to the BOP for its review. 

Unless otherwise noted, the OIG applies the preponderance of the evidence standard in determining 
whether DOJ personnel have committed misconduct. The Merit Systems Protection Board applies this 
same standard when reviewing a federal agency's decision to take adverse action against an employee 
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based on such misconduct. See 5 U.S.C. § 770l(c)(l)(B); 5 C.F.R. § 1201.56(b)(l)(ii). 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Office of the Inspector General 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Federal Correctional Complex Fonest City 
Forrest City, Arkansas 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION OOJ COMPONENT 

CASE NUMBER 

Dallas Field Office Federal Bureau of Prisons 

DISTRIBUTION STATUS 

181 Field Office DFO D OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

181 AIGTNV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMTTTED: D YES 

181 Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

0 USA 

0 Other 

SYNOPSIS 

181 CLOSED 

181 NO 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the receipt of information from the 
Bureau of Prisons (BOP) alleging that Federal Correctional Complex (FCC) Forrest City, Arkansas 

was engaged in an inappropriate relationship with FCC inmate 

The OIG investigation substantiated that - was engaged in a sexual relationship with - in violation 
of federal law and BOP standards of conduct policy. 

On February 4, 2016, the OIG interviewed and took voluntary sworn affidavits from - and - . Both 
individuals admitted to having sexual intercourse with one another on FCC grounds approximately three to six 
times between Se tember and December 2015. In addition- admitted to: using the e-mail account 

to communicate with - when she was off-duty; providing a Wendy' s hamburger 
to on one occasion; using her access to BOP systems to monitor tele hone calls and e-mail transmissions 
of ; contactino- - daughter outside the FCC, and on 
Amazon.com. iiiiii resigned from the BOP on February 4, 2016, due to the OIG's investigation. 

On July 20, 2016, pursuant to a plea agreement in the Eastern District of Arkai~ pleaded guilty to 
violating Title 18 U.S.C. § 2244, abusive sexual contact. On January 4, 2017,~ sentenced to 30 months 
of probation, 40 hours of community service, a $100 special penalty assessment, and ordered to register as a sex 
offender. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to the BOP for its information. 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

(***-**-1111) 

Federal Detention Center 
Miami, Florida 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Miami Field Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

(x( Field Office MFO 

(xi AIGINV 

(xi Component BOP 

II USA 

II Other 

CASE NUMBER -
DOJ COJ\,IPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

STATUS 

II OPEN II OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION (xi CLOSED 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: II YES (xi NO 

Date or Previous Report; 

SYNOPSIS 
The Department of Justice (DOJ) Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon receipt 
ofinformation from the Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP) alleging that several inmates claimed there was an 
inappropriate relationship between , assigned to the Federal Detention 
Center in Miami, Florida (FDC-Miami), and federal inmate , who was housed at FDC-Miami. 
The complaint further alleged tha- was providing with soft contraband to include food and 
cosmetics. 

During this investigation, the OIG developed information that - failed to follow a supervisor's 
instructions; failed to infonn the BOP that his sister and niece were briefly incarcerated at FDC-Miami; and was 
in telephone contact with his sister and niece while they were incarcerated. 

The OIG did not substantiate that introduced contraband into FDC-Miami or that there was a sexual 
relationship between - and . The OIG did however substantiate the following: there was the 
appearance of an inappropriate relationship between - and failed to follow a supervisor's 
instructions when he disregarded the Warden's order to not allow in the Education Department 
unless she was attending her GED class; - failed to report to the BOP that his sister and niece were briefly 
incarcerated at FDC-Miami and that he was in telephone contact with them while they were incarcerated there; 
and- was not candid during his OIG interview. 

DATE SICNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 
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The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to the BOP for appropriate action. 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT CASE NUMBER 

Federal Bureau of Prisons, Federal Correctional Institution - Gilmer 
Glenville, West Virginia 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Washington Field Office 

DISTRIBtITJON 

IXJ Field Office 

IXJ AIGINV 

[XI Component BOP 

II USA 

II Other 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

STATUS 

II OPEN II OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: II YES 

Dute of Pre,•ious Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

IX] CLOSED 

(XI NO 

This investigation was initiated by the United States Department of Justice (DOJ), Office of the Inspector 
General (OIG) upon receipt of information from the Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP), Federal Correctional 
Institution - Gilmer (FCI-Gilmer). According to the information, Federal inmate (Reg. # 

alle ed on Janu 19 2016, and again on Febru~ 7, 2016 that in late November 2015, he walked 
ffice and witnessecllllllperformi~al sex on an unidentified inmate. 

her alleged that in early December 2015, he again entered- 's office at which time he observed 
an unidentified inmate standi~ind- and " -
stated that since he observed- n these compromising situations has been the subject of harassment 
and has been denied the right to practice his religion. 

The OIG investigation determined that on December 5, 2016, rted to the Special 

-

ative Services (SIS) office that he had confiscated from inmat quantity of documents which 
intended to distribute to Nation of Islam (NOi) members. These documents encouraged NOI members 

to engage in militaristic duties and practices which are prohibited ~I-Gilmer's Religious Services 
Department. SIS personnel responded to 's report and placec:Wlllllllllin the Special Housing Unit pending 
completion of a Threat Assessment. 

The SIS office subsequently conducted interviews of 5 NOi members, including- The SIS investigator 
concluded that - posed a significant risk to the general order of the facility ifhe were to be placed back 
into the general population. The investigator reported that- conduct had split the NOi members in such 

DATE August I, 2016 SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

DATE August 1,2016 SIGNATURE 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE Michael P. Tompkins 
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0 0 

a manner that a large scale disturbance could result. · vestigator concluded, had physically 
threatened and intimidated other inmates and mad a potential target of his hostilities. The 
investigator determined that- should remain in the Special Housing Unit pending his transfer to a facility 
commensurate to his security level and program needs. 

The OIG notes that- was interviewed by the SIS investi ator on December 10, 2015 as part of the Threat 
Assessment. During this interview,- complained that was " ... trying to dictate how the 

· ractices their religion. I don't want to be on the same compound as him ... "~ g his interview, 
did not make any allegations against xcept to complain tha- was interfering with 

eligious practices. 

The OIG interviewed~ ho stated that, sometime in November 2015, he walked intcllllll,ffice and 
observed- .. doing something very inappropriate." - told the OIG that he entered...iloffice by 
opening the unlocked door and, after observing that the lights were off in the office- stepped into the 
office. - said that he observed ~ appearing to be performing or~ inmate whom- was 
unable to identify. - said that neither the inmate norllll!l>bserve~ enter or leave the office. 
Upon making this observation,_ said that he exited the office and closed the door behind him
was unable to provide any additional information regarding this incident. 

- told the OIG that there was a second incident where he observed what he believes was a sexual 
encounter in the office- said that around December 1, 2015, again he is not sure of the exact 
date, he entered ffice by opening the unlocked door. Upon opening the door- entered the office 
and observed that the lights in the office were off. - said that he saw an individual whom he was unable 
to identify bent over the desk in the office and an individual he can only identify as a black male standing 
behind the individual bent over the desk. - told the OIG that he " ... seen a motion like a person was 
hurnpin' ." - was not able to identify the individual bent over the desk and w~ ble to identify the 
person behind this individual as a black male in what appeared to be prison khakis. - said that he exited 
the office and closed the door behind him. - was unable to provide any additional information regarding 
this incident. 

~ stated that he was unable to identify the individual bent over the des~ pointed out to 
~ is handwritten complaint- identified this individual as-.....,-naintained during 
the interview that he was unable to observe the face of the individual bent over the desk and was therefore 
unable to identify this individual as-

- tated that since he observed the 2 incidents reported above in the - •s office he has been 
retaliated against by being harassed and by not being permitted to practice his religious beliefs. 

The OIG asked- if he was famiJiar with polygraph examinations.- told the OIG that he was 
familiar with polygraph examinations, that he had taken several polygraph examinations in the past, and that he 
had passed each polygraph examination that he had taken. 

The OIG offere~ e opportunity to take a polygraph examination to corroborate his allegations against 

ragc2 

Case Number:

Date: August I, 2016 



0 0 

--efused the OIG's offer. 

The 010 interviewed- and he denied the allegations made b~. denied ever having any 
involvement with any inmate that could be interpreted or viewed as compromising, inappropriate, unethical or 
in violation of BOP policy. 

- old the 010 that he admonished on at least 3 occasions regarding- unauthorized activities 
as a Nation of Islam representative. sat that on December 5, 2015, durin~ rized Nation oflslam 
service,-=onfiscated from papers which as distributing that encouraged militaristic 
behavior on the part ofNation of Islam inmates. told the OlG that he advisedllllfit the time that this 
activity by him was in violation of the FCI-Gilmer's Religious Services Department regulations. - said that 
the December 5 2016 incident might have been the second or third time he admonished- for this 
behavior. - said that his reporting of this on December 5 resulted in- being placed in the Special 
Housin~ pending completion of an Inmate Investigative Report by the Special Investigative Services 
Office. - said that he believes that- allegations are in retaliation for- reporting of- to 
the SIS office for his National of Islam activities. 

~ dded that his office has a large window which looks out into the inmate area. - said that he had a 
small office which can be easily viewed from the inmate area outside through the window.- said that due 
to the size of his office he did not think it physical1y possible for- or anyone, to view the activity alleged 
by~ om the doorway and not be able to identify both participants. 

-.tad no further information regarding the allegations. 

The OIG investigation did not find the statements made by- to be credible and therefore concludes that 
his allegations against- are without truth or merit and are, quite reasonably~ retaliation tcllllllll 
enforcement ofFCI-Gilmer's Religious Services Department's regulations and- violation of these 
regulations. The OIG bases this conclusion on the interviews conducted by FCI-Gilmer's SIS office, to include 
that office's interview o~ u~ h he made no allegations regarding- inappropriate contact 
with inmates; the OIG's interview ot- the OIG interview of- and the OIG's review of documents 
provided by the BOP. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and this report is being provided to the BOP for its information. 

Page3 

Cuse Num~r:

Date: Augu51 I, 2016 



U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General 

SUBJECT 

, ···-··11111 
Secor Inc/Lebanon Community Corrections Center 
Lebanon, VA 

OFFICE CONDUCTING lNVESTIGA TION 

Washington Field Office 

DJSTRlBlITION 

IXI Field Office WFO 

STATUS 

II OPEN 

ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Bureau of Prisons 

CASE NUMBER -

II OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION IXI CLOSED 

IXI AIGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: II YES IXI NO 

IXI Component BOP Date or Previous Report: 

II USA 

II Other 

SYNOPSIS 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the receipt of information from the 
Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP) Office of Internal Affairs (OJA) alleging that Secor Inc/Lebanon Community 
Corrections Center (Secor) smuggled contraband, namely drugs and an 
unauthorized cellular phone, into the Secor facility in Lebanon, Virginia for resident 
(Register number - }. The complaint also alleged that - engaged in sex with 

Subsequent to the onset of the investigation, ~ claimed that - also smuggled tobacco into the Secor facility 
for him. 

The OIG investigation did not substantiate the allegation that ~ d i.111 engaged in sexual activity or 
that - provided - with drugs, tobacco, or an unauthorized cellular phone. Prior to the initiation of this 
investigation- was placed on administrative leave. During this investigation, Secor terminated _ 
employment based upon the fact that the continued allegations of misconduct by her rendered ~ 
ineffective employee. 

The OIG interviewed Secor Facility , who reported that in late 2015 Secor staff reported to 
her that residents commented about an inappropriate and possible sexual relationship between i.111 and 
- - said these comments were made by residents loud enough in the vicinity of staff so that staff 
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could hear them. None of the staff ever observed any physical or sexual contact betwee~ and - nor 
was any of the alJeged activity captured on any of the security video cameras. On December 7, 2015-
warned - and 11111 not to have unnecessary contact with one another to include personal conversations. 

The OIG interviewed 1111, who was terminated from the Secor facility on January 25, 2016, after a positive 
drug test. 11111 confirmed that - shared personal information with him, to include how- husband 
was a bodybuilder and that she and her husband were "swingers." On a date he could not remember, he recalled 
how illlllli.began watching him exercise in his room. On another night in November 2015, - summoned 
him to a storage closet in the Secor facility for the purpose of issuing him a shaving razor. While in the closet 
alone- alleged tha- kissed him. After that occurrenc~ would often summon him to the 
closet where they would "make out." On a date he could not remember, while- was driving him from his 
job at a local alpaca farm back to Secor- lifted her dress and placed hand into the area of her 
crotch. She then moved her underwear to the side,a.11ci_- penetrated 
- · - said that was the only time he and - had any sexual contact. 
smuggled a cell phone, drugs, and tobacco into the Secor facility for him. 

The OIG interviewed - confirmed tha- was 
terminated from Secor on January 25, 2016, after testing positive for amphetamines and methamphetamines. 
- said on January 26, 2016, he interviewe~ and asked him if he and - were engaged in an 
inappropr;iate or sexual relationship. - said tha- denied having any inappropriate or sexual 
relationship with - . On February 11, 2016, while serving- with a court summons,~ aidllll 
told him - supplied him with drugs and an unauthorized cell phone, along with engaging in sex with him 
while 11111 was housed at Secor. 

In a voluntary, sworn statement to the OIG- denied having an inappropriate relationship with-
- said she did not have any sexual contact with supply him with drugs; or bring tobacco or an 
unauthorized cell phone into the facility for - denied having a personal relationship or sharing 
personal information with- The OIG pointed out to- that - alleged that she had shown him 
sexually explicit images on her phone and told the 010 that - and her husband were swingers. -
said that she had sexually explicit images on her phone and she and her husband are swingers, but she wanted to 
keep that information from her family and did not share it with - - denied sharing that information 
with - and suggested that he may have overheard her talking to other staff about her lifestyle. 

The United States Attorney's Office, Western District of Virginia, declined criminal prosecution o~ . 

The OIG investigation did not substantiate the allegations. The allegations were made by the victim after he 
was removed from Secor and summoned to court following a positive drug test. 

The OIG has completed its investigation with no administrative action required and is providing this report to 
the BOP for its review. 
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U.S. Dcpartmcn t of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Liberty Management Services 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

New Jersey Area Office 

DISTRIBUTION STATUS 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Bureau of Prisons 

CASENUl\1BER 

181 Field Office NYFO 0 OPEN D OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 181 CLOSED 

181 AIGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITIED: D VES 181 NO 

181 Component BOP Date or Pre,•ious Report 

D USA 

□ Other 

SYNOPSIS 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon receipt of information from Federal 
Bureau of Prisons (BOP) Office of IntemaJ Affairs (OIA) stating that inmate ..... register number -

under home confinement with Liberty Management Servi~ S), alle . ed her 
I sexually harassed her. Upon making her allegation,lllllllttated also sexually harassed LMS 
inmate! register number -

Subsequent to the onset of the investigation, the BOP's Northeast Regional Office advised the OIG that -
applied for unemployment compensation after being terminated by LMS due to the suspension of his clearance. 
The BOP questioned whether1- filing for unemployment compensation with the state of Pennsylvania was 
lawful. 

The OIG investigation substantiated that the text messages from 
~ate given[ .... osition and his authority over 
[--sexually harassed or had an inappropriate relationship with 

unlawfully filed for unemployment compensation. 

o - ere sexual in nature and 
IGdid not substantiate ~ 

or the allegation that--

The OIG reviewed the text messages sent by - o~ d found several that were sexual in nature and were 
inappropriate between a and an inmate. 

During a voluntary interview with the OIG,- confirmed that the cellphone number 
identified as having contact withj- was his cell phone number.- admined to sending the text messages 
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to I .. _ reviewed the text messages and admitted that the romantic/sexual nature of his text messages, 
and his contact withjllllllgiven his position of authority, was inappropriate. tated he never "se~ 
harassed" [~ or did he have an inappropriate relationship with her. stated he had to contact--
regarding an incident for which she was disciplined and she ultimately blamed him. 

During a telephonic interview, LMS I stated ~ arch 
13, 2016, filing for unemployment compensation benefits with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania's Department 
of Labor and Industry was lawful. 

The OIG investigation determined that[~ ngaged in an inappropriate relationship with an inmate which 
violated BOP Employee Standards of Conduct, Personal Conduct - Sexual Relationships/Contact With Inmates, 
P3420.1 l ., Section 5(b) which states: Employees may not allow themselves to show partiality toward, or become 
emotionally, physically, sexually, or financially involved with inmates, former inmates, or persons known (or who 
should have been known based on circumstances) to the employee as a family member or close friend of inmates or 
former inmates ... Physical contact is not required to subject an employee to sanctions for misconduct of a sexual 
nature. 

The OIG has concluded its investigation and is providing this report to the BOP for its review. 

U.S. Department or Jusllcc 
Office of the Inspector Gcncrnl 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General 

SUBJECT 

Reeves County Detention Center 
Pecos, Texas 

OFFICE CONDUCJ'ING INVESTIGATION 

Dallas Field Office (El Paso Area Office) 

DISTRIBUTION STATUS 

ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Bureau of Prisons 

CASE NUMBER -

(XI flcld Office DFO II OPEN II OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION (XI CLOSED 

IXI AIGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: II YES (XI NO 

IXI Component nor Date of Previous Report: 

II USA 

II Other 

SYNOPSIS 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the receipt of information from the 
Reeves County Detention Center (RCDC), Pecos, Texas, that RCDC was 
suspected of having an inappropriate relationship with inmat 

During the course of the investigation, the OIG found indications that- may also have been engaged in an 
inappropriate relationship with inmate 

The OIG investigation substantiated that ~ngaged in sexual contact with - but developed no 
evidence of a sexual relationship with-· The investigation also revealed that 

, knew o~ inappropriate relationships with 
and failed to report the policy violation. 

During OIG interview, she denied knowledge of any RCDC employees having sexual 
relationships with inmates. However, during a subsequent interview, 1111111 admitted to knowingly and 
intentionally lying to the OIG about her knowledge of relationships between RCDC staff and inmates. 111111 
admitted that she kne~ had relationships with-an~. ~as suspended from her 
position and later resigned from employment on July 5, 2016. 

When interviewed by the OIG provided a signed sworn affidavit denying having a sexual 
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relationship with-. However, she confessed that in March 2016, while working at the RCDC, -
fondled her breast and buttocks while she fondled - penis and testicles. According to-• the 
sexual contact occurred in the hallway of Unit A at RCDC I. - resigned her employment at the RCDC on 
April 8, 2016, following her OIG interview. 

When interviewed by the OIG, ~rst denied any sexual relationship with 
subsequent interview, - admitted he and - had a sexual encounter at the RCDC. 
interviewed twice by the OIG and denied any sexual relationship with __ 

, but during a 
was 

On October 17, 2016,~vas arrested in the Western District of Texas pursuant to a one-count indictment 
charging her with violating Title 18 U.S.C. § 2244 {a) (4), abusive sexual contact. On January 13, 2017,_ 
was placed on pre-trial diversion for a period of 18 months. 

The OIG has completed its investigation. All criminal and administrative actions arc complete and the OIG is 
providing this report to the BOP for its infonnation. 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Federal Correctional Institution 
Big Spring, Texas 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

DaJlas Field Office (El Paso Area Office) 

DISTRIBUTION STATUS 

DOJ COMJ>ONENT 

Bureau of Prisons 

CASE NlJl\,IBER 

181 Field Ol'fice DFO □ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

181 AJGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 

181 Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

□ USA 

□ Other 

SYNOPSIS 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the recei 
Bureau of Prisons that Federal Correctional Institution (FCI) Big Spring 

181 

181 

involved in a sexual relationship with inmate . Specifically, 
that she had witnessed - and - kissing, holding hands and touching each other's bodies. 

CLOSED 

NO 

The OIG investigation substantiated that - engaged in sexual contact with - • in violation of federal law 
and BOP standards of conduct policy. 

When initially interviewed by the OIG, denied being involved in an inappropriate relationship with FCI 
inmates. In a follow-up OIG interview, acknowledged knowingly and intentic~!!~l"l.Y~ing her first 
interview. Although denying that she engaged in sexual intercourse or oral sex with--admitted that 
she and - kissed, hugged and fondled one another. 

~his OIG interview, ~ dmitted that he and- were involved in an inappropriate relationship. 
- explained that he amiJIIIIIII developed a mutual attraction for one another that led to the two hugging, 
kissing and fondling each other. 

- told the OIG that she witnessed inmat~ and- holding hands, kissing and touching one another. 
In response, - reported what she had seen to her supervisor. 

On December 8, 2016, - pleaded guilty to a one-count Information filed in the Northern District of Texas 
(Abilene Division) to violating Title 18 U.S.C. § 4, misprision of a felony. On January 5, 2017- was arrested, 
and on June 19, 2017, she was sentenced to serve 36 months of probation and ordered to pay a $200fine. White 
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resigned from her employment at the FCI following her OIG interview. 

The OIG has concluded its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. We are 
providing this report to the Bureau of Prisons for its information. 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Office of the Inspector General 

PAGE: 2 of 3 

CASE NUMBER: I 
DA TE: June 30, 2017 



U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General 

SUBJECT 

Federal Correctional Institution 
Marianna, Florida 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Miami Field Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

[X] Field Office 

[X] AIGINV 

[XJ Component BOP 

[] USA 

[] Other 

ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

CASE NUMBER 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

STATUS 

[] OPEN [] OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION [X] CLOSED 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: [] YES [X] NO 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 
The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon receipt of information from the 
Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP), Federal Correctional Institution (FCI), Marianna, Florida, allegit~ 

was having an inappropriate relationship with federal inmate -

The OIG did not substantiate the allegation that. was having an inappropriate relationship with- . 

On February 11, 2016, prior to the initiation of the OIG investigation- reported to BOP that she received a 
Facebook friend request from inmate The following morning Special Investigative Supervisor's 
(SIS) Office personnel searche cell and seized an unautholized Blackbe~ mart phone. SIS did 
not report finding any written notes or other communications between - and- but did find 
ersonal information about written in address book. During his initial interview b SIS 

denied that the Blackberry was his, and denied that he 
had used the Blackberry. Subsequently, - conducted a second interview of- in which -
~ ~ d used the BlackbeITy to conduct Google searches to obtain personal information 
abotillll, ~ denied sending Joy a Facebook request. 

In a memorandum to SIS 
told 

Spanish to English s 

DATE November 22, 2016 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

DATE 

dated April 10, 2016, 
translated notes written b 

could pass them to - ; that 

SIGNATURE 

from 
had a cell phone and -

November 22, 2016 SIGNATURE ,,4-- .,;~,:.,,- ~~;~~!.~rt;~~.~~~~ 
-------------~--------c~,"----,,L..-----~ ·2342=,192=00~l00~,10~~ 1.~1•1~S00~100= 28=29~8' _____________ _ 

Robert A. Bourbon°"''0'~" ""''""-o5·oo· APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT lN CHARGE 

OIG Form III-207/4B (08/08105) Portions oft he Report ufl11vestigatio11 may not be exempt under the Freedom of Infomwtio,1 Act (5 USC 552) and the Privacy Act (5 USC 552a). 



tha. sent nude pictures of herself to 
that he kissed■'-

inappropriate conduct between and any photos o 
communications from■' to s. During his OIG intervie , 

on the cell phone; and that 
did not report that he had seen any 

o the cell phone, or any written 
could not provide any 

additional information other than what was previously reported to 

The OIG interviewed_ , and despite what previous} 
that he attempted to communicate wit- and when pressed by the OIG, 
knowledge of the allegations and did not have anything further to say. 

denied 
stated that he had no 

The OIG conducted a forensics analysis of the seized Blackben-y. The OIG did not find any references t- or 
communications with ■on the Blackberry. 

During her volun~ rview. categoricall~ denied any inappropriate contact with _ _ ■ 
told the OIG that- sent her a Facebook fnend re uest on February 11, 2016. ■ immediately 
reported the attempted contact to FCI-Marianna Operations and wrote a memorandum 
to FCI-Marianna Warden reporting attempt to contact■ on Facebook. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

Page 2 

Case Number: -

Date: November 22, 2016 



U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Great Plains Correctional Facility 
Hinton, Oklahoma 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION DOJ COMPONENT 

CASE NUMBER 

Dallas Field Office Federal Bureau of Prisons 

DISTRIBUTlON STATUS 

181 Field Office DFO D OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

181 AIGTNV 

181 Component 

0 USA 

0 Other 

BOP 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation u 

D YES 

181 CLOSED 

181 NO 

Great Plains Correction Facility, Hinton, Oklahoma alle in that was 
having an inappropriate sexual relationship with inmate , and introducing contraband to the 
facility. The Great Plains Correction Facility is a Bureau of Prisons (BOP) contract prison operated by the GEO 
Group, Inc. 

The OIG investigation substantiated that - knowingly falsified her pre-employment forms with the BOP 
by omitting her previous use of illegal substances, and the incarceration of her s ouse. The OIG investigation did 
not substantiate that - had an inappropriate sexual relationship with or introduced 
contraband to the facility. However, the OIG administered a voluntarily polygraph test t concerning 
sexual contact between herself and and deception was indicated during the relevant questioning. 

On May 5, 201 

rovided the OIG with a voluntary sworn audio recorded affidavit where he 
sex on him in his cell one time in a roximately September 2015, and that 

raband lol · · 'de the facility-
. , and that she told him 

rovided the OIG with a voluntary sworn audio recorded affidavit where she denied 
or rovidin him with an contraband items. - admitted that 

once approximately one to two years ago. 

On May 11, 2016, - voluntarily participated in a polygraph exam with the OIG. During 

DATE May 26, 2016 SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

DATE Ma 26, 2016 SlGNATURE 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE Monte A. Cason 
OIG Form lll-210/2 (Superseding O/G Form /ll-207/4B) (04/23/2007) 
Portions of the Report of Investigation may not be exempt under the Freedom of hiformation Act (5 USC 552) and the Privacy Act (5 USC 552a). 



pre-polygraph interview, she admitted that she had used 
between 2013 and 2015 leading up to two weeks prior to her BOP employment; and admitted to previous 
use. - stated that she knowin I falsified her re-employment forms with the BOP concerning her past 
use of illegal substances and the because she knew it would hurt her chances of 
employment. During polygraph examination, dece tion was indicated during the relevant 
questioning concerning sexual contact between herself and terminated the interview 
and did not make any relevant admissions concerning sexual contact with or providing him with 
contraband. 

An OIG review of pre-employment forms with the BOP indicated that she made multiple material 
false statements concerning her past use of illegal substances and , consistent with 
her admissions to the OIG. 

The U.S. Attorney's Office for the Western District of Oklahoma declined criminal prosecution of- for 
violating Title 18 U.S.C. § 1001, false statements. On May 12, 2016, _ resigned from the BOP due to the 
OIG's investigation. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. We are 
providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Office of the Inspector General 

PAGE: 2 of 3 

CASE NUMBER: ~ 

DATE: May 26, 2016 



U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of lhe Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Federal Correctional Institution Fort Dix 
Fort Dix, NJ 

OFFICE CONDUCl1NG INVESTIGATION DOJ COMPONENT 

New Jersey Area Office Bureau of Prisons 

DISI'RIBUTION STATUS 

CASE NUMBER 

[X] Field Ofrice NYFO a OPEN a OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

(X] AlGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITl'ED: a YES 

[X] CompoDCJ1t BOP Date or Previous Report: 

□ USA 

a Other 

SYNOPSIS 

[X) CLOSED 

[X] NO 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon receipt of infonnation from the 
Bureau of Prisons BOP Referral of Incident stating that on April 14, 2016, inmate 
Register Number , reported that he had knowled e that inmate 
Number was sexually involved with 
provided with $300 in March of 2016. 

R~ 
and thatllllllllllllbad 

The OIG substantiated the allegations that_,rovided money to- and that they maintained an 
inappropriate relationship. 

ed--ruView and Trulincs accounts, which revealed 
on March 29, 2016, and - eceiving an email from 

_ said to tell you that she love u." Furthennore,- esponded to 
said ' 'I just got that from - thank you so much". 

On M~ the OIG conducted an interview of inmate--tated that his cellmat~ 
Man"~ eceived money from- and that "Main Man" told him that he had sex with
twice and that she was pregnant with his kid. 

On May 12, 2016, the OIG conducted a voluntary interview of- During the interview-
admitted to sendin other approximately $500 for his commissary account. dmitted 
to using o communicate with Additionally, - and planned 
on having sexual intercourse in "Staff Alley" but ad become too scared and did not follow through 
because she was afraid that she would go to jail. dded that she hugged- on one occasion 

DATE 07/20/2016 I SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

DATE 07/20/2016 I SIGNATURE 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE Pagel of J 

OlG Form ltl•210/2 (Superseding O/G Form ll!-W7/4B) (tl4/2Jll)7) 
Portions of the Report of l,m:s1igatio11 ma1 not be exempt u11der the Freedom of Information Act (J USC JJ2) and the Pril'aC} Ac/ (J USC JJ:!a) 



and that- ttempted to kiss her. 

- stated that she was familiar with the BOP Program Statement 3420.11, Standards of Employee 
Conduct.[ cknowledged that she violated policy by becoming financially and physically involved 
with inmate 

The United States Attorney's Office for the District of New Jersey declined prosecution of _ 

The OIG investigation determined that 111111,rovided money to - and that they maintained an 
inappropriate relationship which violated BOP Program Statement 3420.11, Standards of Employee 
Conduct- resigned from the BOP effective May 12, 2016, shortly after her OIG interview. 

The OIG has concluded its investigation and all criminal and administrative investigations are complete. 
We are providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

U.S. Department or Justice 

Office of the Inspector General 

Page2oC3 

Case Number: -

Date: 07120/2016 



U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT CASE NUMBER 

Federal Medical Center Carswell 
Fort Worth, Texas 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION DOJ COMPONENT 

Dallas Field Office Federal Bureau of Prisons 

DISTRIBUTlON STATUS 

181 Field Office DFO D OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

181 AIGTNV 

181 Component 

0 USA 

0 Other 

BOP 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: D 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the recei 
Bureau of Prisons (BOP) alleging that Federal Medical Center (FMC) Carswell 
engaged in inappropriate relationships with multiple FMC inmates. 

YES 

181 CLOSED 

181 NO 

The OIG investigation did not substantiate tha- was engaged in inappropriate relationships with multiple 
FMC inmates. 

During the course of the investigation, alleoations surfaced that 
with the following six FMC inmates: 

. The OIG interviewed each of these six inmates. 
all detailed contact of a sexual nature w~ 

also claimed to have received small contraband items from llllllllmcluding 
chocolate and perfume. and - denied being involved in an inappropriate relationship with 
- · The OIG interviewed several additional inmate witnesses who conoborated the testimony of some of the 
alleged victims. 

was 

On May 26, 2016, the OIG attempted to conduct a voluntary interview wit- at FMC Carswell. Due to the 
unavailability of the union on that day, the interview never took place. On June 3, 2016, . advised the OIG that 
he would not speak to the OIG voluntarily. 

On November 7, 2016, the U.S. Attorney's Office for the Northern District of Texas declined criminal prosecution 
of • . 

DATE February 10, 2017 SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 
I• • • • •1 :.\:I' 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE 0.9.2342.19200300.lOO 1, 1 .. \S001 OOI0S2483 
Date-. 2017.02.1015:.3S:41 ·06'00' 

OIG Form lll-210/2 (Superseding O/G Form /ll-207/4B) (04/23/2007) 
Portions of the Report of Investigation may not be exempt under the Freedom of hiformation Act (5 USC 552) and the Privacy Act (5 USC 552a). 



During the course of the investigation- was transferred by the BOP to Federal Conectional Institution (FCI) 
La Tuna in El Paso, Texas. 

On January 6, 2017, the OIG attempted to conduct a compelled interview with - at the FCI. While waiting for 
union representation before the interview began, ~ excused to conduct shift change duties and did not 
return. The OIG was informed by FCI leadershiptliat)II reportedly verbally resigned from the BOP and turned 
in his credentials before departin~ CI. On January 13, 2017, the OIG obtained a copy of the personnel action 
filed regarding the resignation of-

The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

U.S. Department of Justice 
O ffice of the Inspecto r General 

PAGE: 2 of 3 

CASE NUMBER: ~ 

DATE: February 10, 2017 



U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

(***-**--) 
(former) 

Federal Correctional Complex - Butner 
Butner, North Carolina 

CASE NUMBER -
DOJ COMPONENT OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Washington Field Office Federal Bureau of Prisons 

DISTRJBUTION STATUS 

[X) Field Office WFO 0 OPEN I I OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION IX] CLOSED 

[XI AIGINV HQ PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMJTTED: II YES IXI NO 

IXI Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

I I USA 

I I Other 

SYNOPSIS 
This investigation was predicated upon the receipt of information from the Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP), 
Office ofinternal Affairs that , Federal Correctional Complex (FCC) 
Butner, sexually assaulted an inmate at FCC Butner. 

(Federal Register ~ ). 
will be used in this 

report. - reported that on May 18, 2016, - forced her to perform oral sex on him. After-
climaxed, - was directed to wash her hands and mouth; however, before doing so she caught some of 
- semen on her sports bra. - reported the assault to BOP Special Investigative Staff (SIS) on May 
19, 2016. 

SIS obtained the sports bra, created a chain of custody and provided it to the OIG for forensic analysis. The 
OIG subsequently obtained a DNA sample fron .... Forensic analysis was conducted and concluded that 
- DNA was present on- spo1is bra. 

On June 13, 2017, 1111 resigned his employment with the BOP. 

On June 16, 2017- pled guilty before U.S. Magistrate Judge Robert B. Jones, in the District Court of the 
Eastern District of North Carolina, to a one count Criminal Information charging him with the sexual abuse of a 
ward, Title 18 U.S.C. Section 2243(b). 

DATE February I, 20 I 8 SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

DATE Februaryl , 2018 I SIGNATUR E 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE 

OIG Form 111-2 10/ 1 (Superseding OIG Form /11-207/4) (04/23/07) 

Michael P. Tompkins 

Oigiti;,l ly ~gn(!d by MICHAEL TOMPtaNS 
ON: c=US, Q=t.1.$. Gover-nmt:t'lt. ou=()ep1 of 

;:::::::;:::-,,...(. , -:C I I QIC tllQIOFI TO>'Ptc' tf 
., d-y'?/; 0.9.2342.19l00300.10().1,l:::l 5001000325J ., 

Oat~ 2018.02.01 17;27;18-0>'00' 
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On October 5, 2017, 11111 was sentenced in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of North Carolina 
by U.S. District Court Judge Louise W. Flanagan to 13 months' incarceration, 5 years of supervised release, 
ordered to pay a $100.00 Special Assessment and to comply with the Sex Offender Registration and 
Notification Act. 

The OIG has concluded its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. We are 
providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

Page 2 

Case Number: 

Date: February I, 20 l 8 



U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Federal Correctional Institution 
Beaumont, Texas 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION DOJ COMPONENT 

CASE NUMBER 

Dallas Field Office Federal Bureau of Prisons 
DISTRIBUTION STATUS 

181 Field Office DFO(HAO) □ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

181 AIGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 

181 Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

0 USA 

D Other 

SYNOPSIS 

181 CLOSED 

181 NO 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investi ation u 3, 2016 referral from the 
Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP) alleging that with the Federal Correctional 
Institution in Beaumont, Texas, was involved in an inappropriate sex~ with inmate 

The referral indicated that on April 30, 2016, inmate - saw 
sex on 

Subsequent to the onset of the investigation, the OIG inv~egations that - smuggled contraband, 
committed a security violation, and did not report her or - actions. 

In an OIG voluntary interview and in her audio-recorded affidavit, - denied smuggling contraband, but 
admitted she: 

• was involved in a sexual relationship with - beginning before July 2014 and ending July 
2016; 

• masturbated- on ten separate occasions; 

DATE October 25, 2016 SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

DA TE October 25, 2016 I SIGNATURE 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE Monte A. Cason 
OIG Form lll-210/2 (Superseding OfG Form l/f-207148) (04/23/2007) 
Portions of the Report of Investigation. may not be exempt under the Freedom of !,!formation Act (5 USC 552) and the Privacy Act (5 USC 552a). 



• attempted to have vaginal sex with- twice on July 28, 2014; 
• received oral sex fro on three separate occasions; 
• perfonned oral sex on on 30 to 40 separate occasions; and 
• did not report her sexual relationship wit~ or her security violations. 

This investigation was presented to the Eastern District of Texas, U.S. Attorney's Office and prosecution of 
- for violations of 18 USC§ 1791, providing or possessing contraband in prison;§ 2242, sexual abuse;§ 
2243, sexual abuse of a minor or ward; and§ 2244, abusive sexual contact, was declined. - resigned from 
her BOP position subsequent to her OIG interview. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. We are 
providing this report to the BOP for its infonnation. 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Office of the Inspector General 

PAGE: 2 of 3 

CASE NUMBER: 

DA TE: October 25, 2016 



U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Federal Prison Camp Bryan 
Bryan, Texas 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION DOJ COMPONENT 

Dallas Field Office Bureau of Prisons 

DISTRIBU11ON STATUS 

CASENUMUER 

[X] Field Office DFO (SAD) [ ] OPEN ( ] OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION [X] CLOSED 

[X] AIGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: [ ] YES [X] NO 

[X] Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

[ J USA 

[ J Other 

SYNOPSIS 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investi 
referral from the Bureau of Prisons (BOP) alleging that 
Prison Camp in Bryan, Texas, had sexual contact with inmate 
-provided food and chocolate to_ 

ation on June 29, 2016, upon the receipt of a 
with the Federal 

This investigation did not develop any evidence that-engaged in a sexual or inappropriate 
relationship with. or that he provided her contraband. The OIG interviewed several inmates who reported 
their suspicions about an inappropriate relationship between~ but these inmates had no 
evidence to support their assertions. Additionally, an OIG re~ personal phone records did 
not support the al~ Moreover, denied that she was engaged in a sexual or inappropriate 
relationship with - and that provided her contraband. -declined to provide an affidavit. 

In an OIG interview and in his audio-recorded affidavit, - denied the allegations. - told the 
OIG that he did not know why the inmates would make such allegations and surmised that he possibly upset 
them by enforcing BOP policy. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

DATE November 9, 2016 SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

November 9 , 2016 SIGNATURE o;g,1allysignedbyMONTE CASON _____________ _,_ _____________ _.,,......,....--=,c-----::-,.......,---· ON:czUS,o=U.S.Government.ouc Oeptof 

-/7~ Justic:e. ou~OIG, cn~MONTECASON, 
C,A. / 0.9.2342.19200300.100.1. 1 s l 50010010S2483 

Date: 2016.11.09 16:31:59 •06'00' 

DATE 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE Monte A. Cason 

OIG Form 111-207/4B (02107197) Portions of the Repon of Investigation may 1w1 be exempt under 1J,,, Freedom of I11fomwtio11 Act (5 USC 552) and the Privacy Act (5 USC 552a ). 



U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT CASE NUMBER 

Federal Detention Center 
Miami, Florida 

OFFlCE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Miami Field Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

[X] Field Office MFO 

[XJ AIGINV 

[XI Component BOP 

LI USA 

[] Other 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

STATUS 

[] OPEN I] OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION [XI CLOSED 

PREVlOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: [] YES [XI NO 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the 
receipt of information from the Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP), Office of Internal Affairs, alleging that on 
June 3, 2016, assigned to the Federal Detention Center in Miami, 
Florida (FDC), entered inmate 's cell and engaged in sexual activity. 

During the course of the investigation, the OIG found indications that 
prohibited personal relationship with-

was involved in a 

The OIG investigation substantiated the allegations that - engaged in sexual activity with- and 
that - had a prohibited personal relationship. 

told the OIG that she awoke on the morning of June 3, 2016, with - on top of her- stated 
told her to be quiet and proceeded to have oral and vaginal intercourse with her. Additionally, -

stated that - kissed her on one occasion while in her cell and - met with her father to confess his love for 
her. 

During his initial OIG interview- denied being in a romantic relationship with • . However, during his 
second OIG interview, - admitted that he fell in love with- and kissed her on one occasion while in 
- •s cell. - also admitted that he met with- father and expressed his feelings for -

DATE December 21, 2017 SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

DATE December 21, 2017 SIGNATURE 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE Robert Bourbon 

OIG Form III-207/4B (06/22105) Portions ofrhe Reporr of!nvesriga1ion may 110 1 be exempr under the Freedom of/11form£1tio11 Act (5 USC 552) and rhe Privacy Act (5 USC 552a). 



On November 28, 2016, _ was mTested pursuant to an indictment in the Southern District of Florida 
charging him with Sexual Abuse of a Ward, Title 18 United States Code§ 2243 (b), Sexual Abuse by Threat, 
Title 18 U.S.C. § 2242 ( 1), and Aggravated Sexual Abuse by Force, Title 18 U.S.C. § 2242 (a) (1). On May 18, 
2017, 2017, Coleman pleaded guilty in the Southern District of Florida for Sexual Abuse of a Ward, Title 18 
United States Code 2243 (b). On November 14, 2017, - was sentenced to 8 months' incarceration and 
60 months' of supervised release. 

The U.S. Attorney's Office for the Southern District of Florida declined criminal prosecution of _ _ 

- resigned from his position at the BOP effective December 28, 2016. - resigned from his position 
at the BOP effective April 10, 2017. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. The OIG is 
providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

Page 2 

Case Number: 

Date: December 2 1. 2017 



U.S. Department of .Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT CASE NUMBER 

Great Plains Correctional Facility 
Hinton, Oklahoma 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Dallas Field Office 

DISTRIBUTION STATUS 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Bureau of Prisons 

[X] Field Office DFO [] OPEN [] OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

[X] AIGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: [] YES 

LXJ Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

[] USA 

[] Other 

SYNOPSIS 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation based u 
Bureau of Prisons (BOP) alleging that Great Plains Correctional Facilit (GPCF) 
developed a personal relati~ded with inmate 
sexual activity with inmat~ while performing official duties. 

[X] CLOSED 

[X] NO 

The OIG investigation substantiated that - developed a personal relationship and corresponded with inmate 
, in violation of BOP and Geo Corrections standards of conduct policy. 

told the OIG that- informed her in June 2016 about a 
· reportedly befriended but never further identified. ' re ortedly told 

Former GPCF 

about a letter that wrote her identifyin his ersonal e-mail address. never saw 
etter, but did receive an -mail fro~ listin e-mail address as 

. , confided to in July 2016 that she gave her personal e-mail 
address or personal Facebook account information to so that they could correspond with one another, but 
never disclosed whether she and exchange~ ersonal messages. - informed that she 
found - on Facebook, and that to led - Facebook "like" button to enabl 

later provided with Facebook account information with the accou n 
" and from - Facebook photo of " 

When interviewed, denied ever engaging in sexual activity, receiving contraband, exchanging 
Facebook messages, or any other prohibited activity with- and signed a consent to search form authorizing 

DATE October 3, 2016 I SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

DATE October 3, 2016 I SIGNATURE 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE Monte A. Cason 

OIG Form 111-210/2 (Sllperseding O/G Form 1/1-20714B) (04123107), 

Portions of the Report of /nvesrigarion may nor be exempt under rhe Freedom of Information Act (5 USC 552) and rhe Privacy Acr (5 USC 552a). 



the OIG access to his ersonal Facebook account. A review of 
~ al e-mail that 
- identif in ace . . . 

received from-on June 18, 
and e-mail address 

Facebook account identified a lone 
·05 A.M., containin the single word 

and further 

The OIG investigation substantiated that-engaged in sexual activity with inmate_, in violation of 
BOP and Geo Corrections standards of conduct policy. 

Two GPCF and , each told the OIG that_ 
individually confided in them during July 9-10, 2016, that he accompanied-into the Alpha-Echo Unit on an 
unspecified date when it was empty; that he slapped-on her buttocks right before they entered the chemical 
closet; that he and . "messed around;" and that he was worried-was pregnant because he did not use a 
~ had sex. GPCF monitoring video documented that on July 5, 2016, at 10:32:57 P.M.,_ 
- on her left buttocks on the outside of ~ sing his right hand, while alone inside the 
GPCF Alpha-Echo Unit. When interviewed by the OIG, - denied ever engaging in sexual activity or to 
any other prohibited activity with • . 

Whe- was asked to participate in a voluntary interview with the OIG, she refused. 

The U.S. Attorney's Office for the Western District of Oklahoma declined criminal prosecution of-. 

Geo Corrections suspended - without pay on July 8, 2016, and terminated-on August 24, 2016, based on 
the above allegations. 

The OIG has completed its investigation. All criminal and administrative actions are complete and the OIG is 
providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

Page 2 

Case Number: 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

~ *-**-1111) et al. 

Metropolitan Detention Center 
Brooklyn, New York 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

New York Field Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

181 Field Office NYFO 

181 AJGINV 

181 Component BOP 

□ USA 

□ Other 

CASE NUMBER 

DOJCOMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

STATUS 

□ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 181 CLOSED 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 181 NO 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

The Department of Justice, Office of the Inspector General (OIG), initiated this investigation upon receipt of 
information from the United States Attorney's Office, Eastern District of New York, Chief of Public 
Integrity Section, , alleging that female inmates in the custody of the Federal Bureau of 
Prisons (BOP) at the Metropolitan Detention Center (MDC), Brooklyn, New York, are being sexually 
assaulted by unidentified correctional officers. - received the allegation from the Federal 
Defenders of New York, Attorney-in-Charge who did not provide the names of the 
victims because they were fearful of retaliation. The OIG conducted this investigation jointly with the 
Federal Bureau oflnvestigation. 

Subsequent to the onset of the investigation, the OIG identified a potential victim as , 
BOP register number- . - alleged that she was sexually assaulted by four male officers 
at the MDC Brooklyn. -identified two of the officers as 
and . - refused to continue to cooperate with the investigation. The OIG 
investigation did not substantiate the allegations of sexual assault since - refused to continue to 
cooperate with the investigation. 

During the course of the investigation, the OIG found indications that-was verbally abusive toward 
female inmates. 

The U.S. Attorney's Office for the Eastern District of New York declined criminal prosecution regarding 
these allegations since - refused to cooperate. 
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The OIG investigated only the allegations regarding sexual assault and referred the allegations of verbal 
abuse to the BOP to be handled as it deems appropriate. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to the BOP for its review and action it 
deems appropriate. 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Office of the Inspector General 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General 

SUBJECT 

Alston Wilkes Society RRC 
Columbia, South Carolina 

omcE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Atlanta Area Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

CASE NUMBER 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

STATUS 

[X] Field Office MFO □ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION [X] CLOSED 

[X] AIGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: D YES [X] NO 

[X] Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

D USA 

D Ot.her 

SYNOPSIS 

The Department of Justice Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the receipt of 
information from the Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP), Office oflnternal Affairs, Washington, D.C., alleging 
that , Alston Wilkes Society Residential Reentry Center 
(RRC), Columbia, South Carolina, sexually abused resident inmate and engaged in an 
inappropriate relationship with him. 

The OIG investigation substantiated the allegation that - sexually abused- and engaged in an 
inappropriate relationship with him. 

and , along with , 
told the OIG tha- said he engaged in a sexual relationship with- for approximately 5 months 
and that he ~cause - abruptly ended their relationship. - and- also stated that 
they shared --allegations with- and she acknowledge her relationship with-

- told the OIG that while at the RRC, he and- began a sexual relationship at the end of March 
2016. - stated that he and - had sexual intercourse at the RRC on two occasions in room 109 and 
approximately nine times at various hotels in Columbia, South Carolina; Charleston, South Carolina; and 
Augusta, Georgia. - stated that he did not remember the names of the hotels. However, he said that 
they usually paid cash for the hotel rooms, but on a few occasions, - paid for the hotels with her credit 
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card. - stated that he reported -to her coworkers because she reneged on promises she made to 
him about being together after he completed his time at the RRC. 

-initially denied to the OIG that she had a sexual relationship wit~ , but she later recanted her 
statement and corroborated Camacho's assertions about their relationship. - admitted to the OIG that she: 
1) texted and communicated wit~ by cell phone, 2) shared a hotel room with - at the Clarion 
Suites, Augusta, Georgia and the Ramada Limited (Ramada), Columbia, South Carolina, 3) engaged in sexual 
intercourse with-at least 10 times, and 4) confirmed that she had sexual intercourse with - at 
the RRC although she knew having sexual intercourse with a resident at the RRC was illegal and against policy. 
- resigned her position at the RRC effective August 10, 2016. 

The OIG reviewed hotel receipts obtained from the Clarion Suites and the Ramada dated May 6, 2016, and July 
2, 2016, respectively. The receipts showed that - registered the rooms in her name. - paid for the 
Clarion Suites hotel stay with her Visa credit card, and she paid for the Ramada hotel stay in cash. The OIG 
also reviewed a video from the Ramada which showed- and- at the front desk registering for a 
room. 

- was subsequently indicted, arrested, and convicted in U.S. District Court for the District of South 
Carolina, for violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1001, making false statements to federal agents. - was sentenced to 
2 years' probation. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. We are 
providing this report to the BOP for its information. 
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U.S. Department o f Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

***-**--

Residential Reentry Center 
San Francisco, California 

OFFICE CONDUCT! G INVESTIGATION 

San Francisco Area Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

IXI Field O ffice SFAO 

1x1 AIGINV 

IXI Component BOP 

II USA 

II Other 

STATUS 

II OPEN 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Bureau of Prisons 

II 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBl\'UTTED: 

G PROSECUTION 

II YES 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

!XI CLOSED 

(XI NO 

The Office of the Inspector General (01G) initiated this investi ation upon receipt of information from San 
Francisco Residential Reentr Center RRC al leging that rumors were circulating 
around the RRC that ro riate relationship with Public 
Law inmate 

During the course of the investigation, the OIG found indications that - aided and abetted - fter 
his escape from the RRC. 

The OIG investigation substantiated the . on that- was involved in an inappropriate relationship 
with - and that she aided and abetted fter his escape. 

Phone records revealed that between August 29 and Au0 ust 31 , 2016,- and - exchanged 
approximately 37 phone calls. Also on August 3 t ,iiiiiiiiisubmitted a doctor' s note to the RRC indicating 
that for medical reasons she would be unable to work until September 15, 2016. - resigned from her 
position at the RRC on September 7, 20 I 6. 

On October 22, 2016, as arrested by the Contra Costa County Sheriff's Office following a traffic stop. 
On November 8, 2016 pied guilty in federal court during a Revocation of Supervision Hearing to 
escaping from a halfway house and drug test fa ilure. - was not will ing to speak with the OIG, but he 
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commented to a Deputy United States Marshal that he did not want to get-into any trouble or "throw 
her under the bus." 

On November 17, 2016 a reed to a telephonic interview with the OIG and denied she had an 
inappropriate relationship with while he was residing at the RRC or that she assisted his escape 
walked away from the RRC when was off duty). -admitted, however, that she sa 
several times after his escape, engage m sexual intercourse with him, and gave him money. said 

1111111,ecaiiie hysically abusive to her by choking her and pulling her hair. -said t a on one 
occasion, pulled a knife on her, demanded money, and threatened her safety if she were to tell anyone 
what he did to her. 

The U.S. Attorney's Office for the Northern District of California declined criminal prosecution of-. 

The OIG investigation determined that-aided and abetted-fter his escape from the RRC, which 
violated 18 USC 2, and also engaged in an inappropriate relationship with an inmate, which violated BOP 
Program Statement 3420.11 relating to the Standards of Employee Conduct. 

The OIG has completed its investigation, and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. We are 
providing this report to BOP for its information. 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General 

SUBJECT 

C***-**-111) -United States Penitentiary 
Atlanta, Georgia 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Atlanta Area Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

[X] Field Office MFO 

[X] AIGINV 

[X) Component BOP 

[] USA 

[ l Other 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

CASE NUMBER 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Federal Bmeau of Prisons 

STATUS 

C l OPEN [ ] OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION [X] CLOSED 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITIED: [] YES [X) NO 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the receipt of information from the 
Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP), Office of Internal Affairs, Washington, D.C., alleging that 
- United States Penitentiary (USP), Atlanta, Georgia, engaged in an inappropriate relationship with USP-
Atlanta inmate by communicating with- through e-mail and by telephone. 

During this investigation, the OIG found indications that - accepted money from - family, kissed 
- and allowed- to fondle her breasts and buttocks. 

The OIG investigation substantiated the allegation that - engaged in an inappropriate relationship with 
- by accepting $350 from Young's mother, Janice Young, and by communicating with Young through e
mail and by telephone. However, the OIG did not substantiate the allegations that - kissed- and 
allowed- to fondle her breasts and buttocks. 

told the OIG that on August 20, 2016, he randomly monitored 
recorded inmate telephone calls, and he listened to calls placed by- to telephone number 
on June 22, 2016, and June 24, 2016. - said he believed the unknown female voice speaking with
on both occasions was - - said that he confirmed his suspicions when he matched the telephone 
number called b~ to the cell phone number stored in his personal cell phone for - . - stated 
that on both occasions, he heard- and- profess their love for each other. 

- told the OIG that he contacte~ by telephone on two occasions after he obtained her number from 
her medical statement on her desk. - also said he communicated with- by e-mail after she provided 
him with her e-mail addres Furthermore, - said that he kissed- on two 
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APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE for Robert A. Bourbon 
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occasions and fondled her buttocks and breasts on one occasion. However, he denied having sexual intercourse 
with her or receiving contraband from her. 

BOP TRULINCS account that contained e-mail to and from 
In the e-mail exchanges, - and the unknown person professed their love for each 

e together. The OIG also reviewed Yahoo records for the address 
hat showed cell phone number listed on the account, and the OIG 

con rrme t ·oug prmt PCS Wireless records that the number was registered to __ The Sprint PCS 
records also showed that- made and received calls from USP-Atlanta over 50 times from September 6, 
2015 to September 6, 2016. Furthermore, the OIG reviewed Western Union records regarding- that 
showed she received $350 from 

The OIG attempted to interview and she refused to cooperate in this investigation. In addition, 
-refused to submit to an OIG interview. 

The OIG investigation determined that-had an inappropriate relationship with-when she 
communicated with him by telephone and e-mail, and when she accepted $350 from Young's mother. In 
addition, failed to cooperate in an official investigation when she refused to submit to an OIG interview. 

conduct in this matter is a violation of the BOP Standards of Employee Conduct, Nature of Offenses, 
Section 31, which relates to the improper relationship with inmates, former inmates, their families, or 
associates; Section 33, which relates to the failure to report to management any violation or attempted violation 
of contacts with inmates, former inmates, their families or associates, not in the performance of their duties; and 
Section 35, which relates to the refusal to cooperate in any official U.S. Government inqui1y or investigation, 
including a refusal to answer work-related questions or attempting to influence others involved in the inquiry. 
However, the OIG did not substantiate the allegations that- kissed- and allowed- to fondle 
her breasts and buttocks. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to the BOP for appropriate action. 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Taft Correctional Institution 
Taft, California 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

San Francisco Area Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

[X] Field Office SFAO 

[X] AIGINV 

[X) Component BOP 

[] USA 

[] Olher 

STATUS 

DOJCOMPONENT 

Bureau of Prisons 

CASE NUMBER 

I] OPEN [] OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: f] YES 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

[X] CLOSED 

[X) NO 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investi0 ation u on the receipt of information from Taft 
Correctional Institution (TCI), Taft, California, allegin that 

might be in an inappropriate relationship with inmat . According 
to the information, on September 9, 2016, _ entered the Medical Department to conduct a welfare check 
on _ , and she immediately exited the examination room and closed the door. - told- she was 
locking up. - observed that-appeared nervous, her hair was messy, she was wiping her mouth, and 
she was tre~ ~ ected something was wrong and checked all the open rooms, but found no 
occu ants. - s~ asked him to go to the Control Room and that she would be right behind him. 

went to the Control Room b-t ke t a line of sight on the door to Medical while he yelled for -
to observe with him. said that about 30 seconds later, - exited Medical through the front 

door in an abrupt manner, followed sh~. thereafter b~. It was also alleged that - was spending 
an inappropriate amount of time with_ 

The OIG investigation substantiated that - spent an inappropriate amount of time with · ·in Medical 
but did not substantiate they had an inappropriate physical relationship. 

-told the OIG that his initial allegation was accurate but added that when he spoke ~ in 
Medical on September 9, she told him, without prompting, that no one else was with her. ~ confirmed 
he sa- exit Medical and added that later that day he went to - 's cell to escort him to the SHU and-, 
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without telling him where he was going, said he was going to miss work because he would be in the 
SHU. said he asked • . "So you know where you are going?~ responded, "Oh yeah." -
admitted to the OIG that he hid in an examination room when he saw ~ roach-because he 
dislikes •. - denied that- helped hide him. 

, and two additional TCI staff members, 
told the OIG tha- spent an inappropriate amount of time in Medical when was the only 

one working there. All four staff members submitted memorandums contemporaneously with their 
observations. For example- wrote a memorandum documenting that on July 15, 2016, he saw - in 
Medical three different times between 2:05 p.m. and 6:20 p.m., and all visits were alleged to be for wart 
treatment. ~ emorandum to document that on July 21, 2016, - spent at least an hour with 
- in ~ wrote that he mentioned this to his supervisor because he found it unusual. -
admitted he spent a lot of time in Medical when- was workin~ estimated the longest amount of 
time he spent alone wit~ in Medical was 20 minutes or less. ~id he would often go to Medical for 
unscheduled visits on weekends before his family visits, and the "nurse" would test him on a machine and 
provide hi~- admitted this was not a normal procedure for inmates. - admitted he spent more 
time with-because she was more personable than other staff, but he denied an inappropriate relationship 
with her. 

During her compelled and recorded OIG interview on September 16, 2016, denied that-·had been 
hiding in an examination room, but rather that~proached Medical right after left and requested his 
~ cause his head hurt. said she t<ilifllll that pill call wa,s over, and he should return to his dorm. 
- could n?t explain why and failed to notice - as he approached Medical, nor did she 
know why - said he had been hidi . stated specifically she did not hide- and would never 
have an inmate hide from an officer. denied that she was engaged in a personal relat~ with _ 
and said-was in Medical frequently because he was constantly in need of medical care. - stated that 
the amount of tim- spent in medical was not something she determined as inappropriate. At the 
conclusion of the interview, - agreed to submit to an OIG polygraph examination. On September 20, 
2016, - resigned from her position before the polygraph could be conducted. 

The U.S. Attorney's Office for the Eastern District of California declined prosecution of __ 

The OIG investigation determined that- showed preferential treatment t- by spending an 
inappropriate amount of time with him, which violated Bureau of Prisons Program Statement 3420.1 1 relating 
to the Standards of Employee Conduct. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. We are 
providing this report to the Bureau of Prisons for its infonnation. 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT CASE NlJl\,IBER 

Former 
Oklahoma Halfway House Residential Reentry Center 
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Dallas Field Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

181 Field Ol'fice DFO 

181 AJGINV 

181 Component BOP 

□ USA 

□ Other 

DOJCOMJ>ONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

STATUS 

□ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

181 CLOSED 

181 NO 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the receipt of information from the 
Federal Bureau of Prisons, Oklahoma Halfwa House Residential Reentry Center (RRC), Oklahoma City, 
Oklahoma, alleging that former engaged in a sexual relationship with inmate--
The OIG investigation substantiated the allegation that - and ~ aged ~ al and anal intercourse 
on several occasions. Additionally, the investigation revealed tha~ and- performed oral sex on 
each other multiple times. 

admitted to the sexual contacts during their respective OIG interviews. - stated that he 
and had sexual encounters both in the halfway house facility and at locations outside of the facility. 
However, . , only admitted to the sexual contacts that took place outside of the facility. 

- resigned her position at the RRC on September 6, 2016, prior to the initiation of the OIG investigation. 

On March 7, 2017, the U.S. Attorney's Office for the Western District of Oklahoma declined prosecution of • • 
stating "the research shows that we do not have evidence to suppo1t prosecution since we can't prove that any 
sexual contact occurred at the facility." 

The OIG has completed its investigation and all criminal and adminish·ative actions are complete. We are providing 
this repmt to the Federal Bureau of Prisons for its information. 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

(***-** .. ) 

Metropolitan Detention Center 
Los Angeles, California 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION DOJ COMPONENT 

CASE NUMBER 

Los Angeles Field Office Federal Bureau of Prisons 

DISTRIBUTION ST A TUS 

[XI Field Office LAFO II OPEN II OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION IX] C LOSED 

(X) AIGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: [I YES (X) NO 

fXJ Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

u USA 

ll Other 

SYNOPSIS 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the receipt of infom1ation from 
the Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP), Metropolitan Detention Center (MDC), Los Angeles, California, 
alleging that BOP MDC Los Angeles was having an inappropriate 
relationship with inmates and introducing contraband into MDC Los Angeles. The information alleged that 
BOP inmate (Register ~ ) entered and remained in- office for several 
hours behind closed doors and that other BOP inmates, including ~ (Register ~ ), 
have been caught with narcotics and tobacco while they were housed on the 6 floor of MDC Los Angeles 
where- was assigned. In addition to allegedly has an unusually close relationship with 
inmates - and - (Register ~ ). - has since been removed from the 6 th floor 
housing unit of MDC Los Angeles. 

During the course of the investigation, BOP MDC Los Angeles inmate (Register ~ 
- provided infonnation alleging that - allowed inmates to use her office telephone to circumvent the 
BOP inmate call monitoring system in violation of BOP facility security. 

The OIG investigation substantiated the allegations that - introduced contraband into MDC Los Angeles 
and had an inappropriate relationship with an inmate. The OIG investigation also substantiated that-· 
breached facility security by allowing inmates to make unmonitored telephone calls through the use of her 
office telephone. 

- told the OIG he has observed-take - and llllindividually into her office and close the 
door and blinds to her office. - would later re-open the blinds or door after 20 to 40 minutes, but 
- or Ill would stay in her office for another 30 minutes to 1 hour. - has also observed _ 
bring plastic shopping bags with clothing items into her office, and- orllll would leave her office 
with a plastic bag tucked under their arms. -has seen-and llllwith these clothing items, 
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which were not available through the BOP commissary. - believed - also provided colored tattoo 
pencils to - - has also seen inmates us~ office telephone to make unmonitored calls but 
did not provide names of those inmates. 

The OIG reviewed video surveillance from MDC Los Angeles Unit 6 North Annex for October 17, 
2016, and October 30, 2016, which revealedlllll taking inmates Ill and- (Register 
~ ) into her office. The video further revealed the inmates leaving- office with items 
concealed within envelops or plastic bags. On December 14, 2016, BOP staff conducted a cell search 
and discovered contraband in the cells oflll and Ill-The search recovered numerous contraband 
items, including food and office supplies. The contraband included one half-eaten burrito, fast food 
condiments, a small container of salsa, construction paper, Tupperware food containers, gambling dice, 
colored highlighters, pens and pencils, correction fluid, one deck of playing cards, and a set of tattoo 
artist pencils. 

Based on the BOP video surveillance and contraband recovered by BOP, the OIG interviewedlll and lllll 
Althoughlllldenied receiving any contraband fro~ ,111 told the OIG that - has brought in 
candy, burritos, and tattoo pencils for him to use. Both Grey and Villa denied having any physical contact 
with- and further denied having knowledge oflllll having any inappropriate contact with other 
inmates. In addition- denied that- allowed him to make unmonitored telephone calls from her 
office telephone. 

In her sworn voluntary OIG interview- admitted to spending a lengthy period of time withllllin her 
office, but she denied having an inappropriate relationship with him or any other inmate. - also admitted 
to providin~ with "just pencils" but denied introducing contraband or providing food, tattoo pencils, 
clothing, shoes, or any other contraband items to inmates. Further, 1111 admitted to allowing inmates the use 
of her office telephone in order to make unmonitored telephone calls. According to 11111, she allowed 
inmates to make unmonitored calls "all the time" to their attorney or family members since the inmates "want 
to call their family." - reasoned that the inmates "run out of minutes" and that these calls were approved 
since she was "sitting there." 

Subsequent to the OIG interview, 11111 voluntarily retired from the BOP effective December 15, 2016. 

The U.S. Attorney's Office for the Central District of California declined criminal prosecution of 11111. 

The OIG investigation determined that- violated BOP Program Statement 3420.11 dated December 
6, 2013, Standards of Employee Conduct, Offense Codes 29 and 51, for providing an inmate with an 
unauthorized article and introducing contraband, including tattoo pencils, into MDC Los Angeles. In 
add ition, based on the preferential treatment provided to 111111111 violated Offense Code 30 of the 
standards. The OIG investigation also determined that - breached facility security by allowing 
inmates to make unmonitored telephone calls through the use of her office telephone in violation of BOP 
Program Statement 3420.11, Offense Number 49. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to the BOP for its review. 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Federal Correctional Complex 
Forrest City, Arkansas 

OFFICE CONDUCTINGINVESTIGA TION 

Dallas Field Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

181 Field Office 

181 AIGINV 

181 Component 

□ USA 

□ Other 

STATUS 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Bureau of Prisons 

CASE NUMBER 

□ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

181 CLOSED 

181 NO 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the receipt of information from the 
Bureau of Prisons (BOP), Federal Correctional Complex (FCC) Forrest C~ , alleging

engaged in a sexual relationship with inmate _ , misused government 
property, and introduced contraband into the prison. 

The OIG substantiated the allegation that- misused government property, but did not substantiate the 
allegations that - engaged in a sexual relationship with - or introduced contraband into the prison. 

During her OIG interview- initially denied making in~te internet searches on her BOP 
computer. Once confronted with the evidence of the searches- admitted to utilizing her BOP computer 
to look up people, sometimes in an inappropriate state of dress, for inmates admitted to allowing the 
inmates to view the individuals on her computer screen while she was present. denied allowing any 
inmates to utilize her computer at any time. 

The OIG investigation detennined tha- violated BOP Standards of Employee Conduct, Section 5, 
Personal Conduct, Paragraph c, Additional Conduct Issues, by conducting inappropriate internet searches on her 
BOP computer and allowing inmates to view the results of those searches on her monitor. - also violated 
BOP Standards of Employee Conduct, Section 12, Government Property, by conducting the aforementioned 
unauthorized internet searches, under her Personal Identification Verification (PN) login, on a BOP computer. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to BOP for appropriate action. 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Reeves County Detention Center 
Pecos, Texas 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Dallas Field Office (El Paso Area Office) 

DISTRIBUTION STATUS 

181 Field Ol'fice DFO □ OPEN 

DOJCOMJ>ONENT 

Bureau of Prisons 

CASE NlJl\,IBER 

□ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

181 AJGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 

181 Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

□ USA 

□ Other 

SYNOPSIS 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the recei 

181 CLOSED 

181 NO 

Bureau of Prisons alleging that Reeves County Detention Center (RCDC) was 
involved in an ina ro riate relationship with RCDC inmate . Specifically, during a 
search of property, a photo album was discovered in which RCDC staff recognized photographs 
of 

During the course of the investigation, the OIG found indications that RCDC 
~ helped to facilitate the communication between 
- with free telephone minutes on the RCDC telephone system. 

The OIG investigation substantiated that 
addition, the investigation dete1mined th 
RCDC telephone system so 
relationship between 

was involved in a sexual relationship with . In 
provided with free telephone minutes on the 

d call failed to report the inappropriate 
when first discovered. 

During her OIG interview, - admitted to engaging in sexual intercourse ~ on three 
separate occasions in the office of a RCDC Education Department employee. ~ 
communicating wit both tele honicall and in writin , and to roviding - with 
photographs of her children. stated that rovided with free minutes on his 
RCDC inmate telephone account in order for to talk to 

When interviewed by the OIG- admitted that she provided with free minutes on his 
RCDC telephone account in order for him to communicate with a specific telephone number. - claimed to 

DATE June 22, 2017 SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE 
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have later determined that the specific phone number that 
- also acknowledged failing to report the communication between 
management. 

was callin~ 
and ~ RCDC 

During his OIG interview, confirmed that he an~ were engaged in a sexual relationship 
and had sexual intercourse on three separate occasions in the RCDC Education Department. 
stated that h~ and- communicated with one anoth_er via the~ one a?d in ':"riti~g, often exchanging cards 
and letters with one another. also admitted that- provided him with photographs of her 
children and of herself. 

was aJTested pursuant to a one-count indictment issued out of the Western District 
of Texas charging with violating Title 18 U.S.C. § 2243 (b ), sexual abuse of a ward. On March 2, 2017, 
- pleaded guilty to violating Title 18 U.S.C. § 1001, false statements. On May 30, 2017, - was 
sentenced to serve three years' probation and ordered to pay a $100 special assessment. 

- and - both resigned from their employment at the RCDC following their OIG interviews. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and all criminal and administrative matters are complete. We are 
providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Office of the Inspector General 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Parsons House Residential Reentry Center 
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION DOJ COMPONENT 

CASE NUMBER 

Chicago Field Office Federal Bureau of Prisons 

DISTRIBUTION STATUS 

[XI Field Office CFO II OPEN II OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

[XI AlGl NV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMLTTED: YES 

[XI Component BOP Date of Prev ious Report: 

[I USA 

11 Other 

SYNOPSIS 

[XJ CLOSED 

[XI NO 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the receipt of information 
from the Federal Bw-eau of Prisons (BOP) Office of Internal Affairs alleging that on or about September 
2, 2016, Parsons House Residential Reentry Center sexually abused 
and sexually harassed BOP inmate (Reg. No. - ) while she was under his 
custodial supervision. 

The OIG did not substantiate the allegations. 

llll1told the OIG that in early September 2016, while she and- were on the second floor 
stairwell landing at Parsons House, - touched her vagina over her pants. - stated that a short 
time later, - told her to pull down her pants, show him her vagina, 

because he wanted to have sex with her there. llllsaid she pulled down 
her pants and exposed herself to- but she did not or have sexual 
intercourse with- . According tclllllllll, no one witnessed her interactions with-

Parsons House told the OIG that although there were cameras in place at 
Parsons House, there was not any surveillance video available due to the short retention period that the 
video was maintained. 
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During an interview with the OIG, - denied sexually abusing or sexually harassin~ After 
initially agreeing to participate in a polygraph examination to verify the truthfulness of his statements, 
-declined to submit to the examination. 

The U.S. Attorney's Office for the Eastern District of Wisconsin declined criminal prosecution of 
- due to lack of prosecutive merit. 

The OIG did not find any evidence that- sexually abused or sexually harassedlll'

The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to the BOP for its review. 

U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Federal Medical Center Carswell 
Fort Worth, Texas 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Dallas Field Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

181 Field Ol'fice DFO 

181 AJGINV 

181 Component BOP 

□ USA 

□ Other 

CASE NlJl\,IBER 

DOJCOMJ>ONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

STATUS 

□ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 181 CLOSED 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 181 NO 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon 
the receipt of information from the Bureau of Prisons (BOP) alleoin that on November 1, 2016, Federal 
Medical Center (FMC) Carswell engaged in an inappropriate 
sexual relationship with inmate 

During the course of the investigation, the OIG found indications that 
in inappropriate sexual relationships with inmates and 

The OIG investigation substantiated that - was admittedly involved in inappropriate sexual 
relationships with multiple inmates at the FMC and committed violations of sexual abuse and sexual 
contact with inmates. 

On November 2, 2016, _ told the OIG that on the day prior she had engaged in sexual activity with 
in an office located on the fourth floor of the M2 Unit. In her OIG interview on November 3, 

told the OIG that she had met on two to three occasions on the fourth floor of the M2 unit 
in an inner office and performed oral sex on . When - was interviewed by the OIG, 
- minimized her involvement with 

When interviewed by the OIG on November 3, 2016, 
sex on him at FMC Carswell. Add~ , 
additional FMC Carswell inmates, - and 

confessed to having- perform oral 
onfessed to having sexual contact with two 

On June 20, 2017 - was arrested based on a criminal indictment filed in the Northern District of 

DATE December 7, 2017 SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 
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Texas, Fort Worth, Texas, charging him with one count of sexual abuse of a ward, 18 U.S.C. § 2243(b). 

On July 12, 2017, - pleaded guilty to sexual abuse of a ward, and on November 6, 2017, he was 
sentenced to 12 months in prison and 24 months of supervised release. 

- resigned from his position with the BOP effective December 8, 2016. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. The 
OIG is providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Office of the Inspector General 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General 

SUBJECT 

Federal Medical Center 
Fort Worth, Texas 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Dallas Field Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

[X] Field Office DFO 

STATUS 

[] OPEN 

ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

CASE NUMBER -
DOJ COMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

(] OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION [X] CLOSED 

[X] AIGfNV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: [] YES [X] NO 

[X] Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

[] USA 

[] Other 

SYNOPSIS 

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the 
receipt of information from the Bureau of Prisons (BOP) that inmate reported she had become 
pregnant after she and engaged in sexual intercourse at the Federal 
Medical Center (FMC) Carswell in Fort Worth, Texas. 

During the course of the investigation, the OIG found indications that- may have contrived the 
allegations of sexual abuse and her pregnancy. 

The OIG investigation did not substantiate the ~n that- engaged in sexual intercourse with 
- nor did the investigation conclude that - lied to the OIG. 

When first interviewed by the OIG, _ stated she had sexual intercourse with- on one occasion in a 
video conference room sometime between the dates of September 30, and October 16, 2016, at approximately 
3:27 a.m., while she was an inmate at the FMC. During a follow-up OIG interview with _ , aft~ 
told that it was not possible for - to have had sex with her between the aforementioned dates, -
changed the range of dates to between September 11, and 22, 2016. , the BOP ordered 
numerous blood tests and an ultrasound test, and determined she was not pregnant. 

The OIG examined- time and attendance logs and detem1ined that - did not work a shift 
between September 11 , and October 16, 2016, that would have put him inside of the FMC at or around 3:27 
a.m. The OIG also examined - assigned computer and analyzed his login information which indicated 
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he was not on shift during the time - alleged they had sex. OIG interviews of BOP staff also supported 
the finding that - did not work during the hours - alleged. The FMC does not maintain recorded 
video footage at the prison facility beyond 15 days , which eliminated the possibility for the OIG to review 
saved video footage for September and October 2016. 

- own roommate told the OIG that - was "obsessed" with- The roommate also stated she 
had observed - on her menstrual period a week before - had reported to BOP staff that she was 
pregnant. 

The OIG interviewed - and he str~ nied the allegation. - told the OIG that he never had sex 
with _ , nor was he ever alone with - - denied working at the prison facility during the times 
she alleged they had sex. 

When the OIG informed- that ~ ations could not be conoborated, - continued to allege that 
- sexu~used her. Due to - inconsistent statements and conflicting witness statements, the 
OIG offered - an opportunity to take a polygraph examination, which she declined. 

The United States Attorney's Office for the Northern District of Texas declined to prosecute- nor 
- due to a lack of prosecutorial merit. 

The OIG has concluded this investigation and is providing this report to the BOP for review. 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

***-** ... 

Federal Correctional Institution Schuylkill 
Minersville, Pennsylvania 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION DOJ COMPONENT 

New Jersey Area Office Bureau of Prisons 

DISTRIBUTION ST A TUS 

CASE NUMBER 

IX ] Field Office NYFO II OPEN II OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

II AIGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: II YES 

[XI Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

[I USA 

11 Other 

SYNOPSIS 

IX] CLOSED 

IXI NO 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the receipt of information from the 
Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP) alleging that had an inappropriate 
relationship with inmate (BOP Registration ~ ), inside the Schuylkill Federal 
Correctional Institution at Minersville, Pennsylvania. 

The OIG investigation substantiated the allegation. In addition, the investigation determined tha- often 
received complements on her physical appearance from several inmates but failed to discipline the inmates or to 
inform the BOP. 

- consented to a voluntary interview with the OIG during which she admitted she received several text 
messages from-in early September 2016 on her personal cell phone but did not report the incident to 
the BOP. 

- stated she did not provide her cellular number to - or to any other inmate and was unsure as to 
how- acquired her cellphone number- stated the text from - was not sexual in nature 
and that her text responses to - told him to cease texting her. - stated she knew- was 
using a contraband cellular phone inside of FCI Schuylkill to text her and that this represented a serious secmity 
issue for her and her fellow employees. 

Additionally, - admitted she frequently received complements on her appearance from inmates, including 
- but failed to disciple inmates for this and did not report these occurrences to BOP. 
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PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 
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- stated she knew her failure to report the text messages and complements she received constituted a 
serious violation of BOP policy. 

- denied having a sexual relationship with- or any other inmate, stated she did not provide her 
cellular number to any inmate, did not provide any inmate with any form of contraband and did not receive or 
solicit any type of payment or gifts from any inmate. 

The OIG attempted to interview inmate . - was largely uncooperative but denied 
any form of personal relationship with- and denied contacting- on her cellular phone. 

The OIG also attempted to interviewllll- BOP Registration # - )-
~ as also uncooperative and denie~-had access to a contraband cell phone or of 

the existence of a personal relationship between - and- . 

- resigned from the BOP effective October 28, 2016. 

The OIG substantiated the allegations that, by engaging in a text message conversation and allowing 
compliments about her appearance to go unaddressed, - engaged in an inappropriate relationship with 
inmate -

The OIG has concluded its investigation, and all criminal and administrative investigations are complete. We 
are providing this report to the BOP for its information. 
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Case Number: 

Date: 11/21/16 



U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Federal Medical Center Carswell 
Fort Worth, Texas 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION DOJ COMPONENT 

CASE NlJl\,IBER 

Dallas Field Office Federal Bureau of Prisons 

DISTRIBUTION STATUS 

181 Field Ol'fice DFO □ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

181 AJGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 

181 Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

□ USA 

D Other 

SYNOPSIS 

181 CLOSED 

181 NO 

The Department of Justice Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the 
receipt of information from the Bureau of Prisons (BOP) Federal Medical Center (FMC) Carswell in Fort 
Worth, Texas, alleging that from November 2014 to Au ust 2016, 
had sexual relations with inmate · alle ed that shew· n 
sexual intercourse with inmate 
medication; and that inmate 
sexual intercourse. 

During the course of the investioation alleged that former inmat 

having 
rescription 
engaged in 

had a 
sexual relationship with 
contraband into the facility for her. 

prior to her release from the FMC, and that 

The 010 investigation did not sub~ ations that - was involved in a sexual 
rela~ h . , - or- . Allegations of a sexual relationship betweeitlllll 
and- were also unsubstantiated. 

- who previously advised BOP officials she had no personal relationship with _ , told the 
OIG that she started talking and flirting with- resulting in=.:iaging in oral sex and sexual 
intercourse on multiple occasions in 2015. In addit~ said--smuggled 10-12 Somas 
(muscle relaxers) and Xanax (anxiety medicine) to llllllll[She also alleged witnessing - and 
- having sex in an FMC office in 2016. The 010 found no physical evidence of these encounters, 
nor of the contraband entering the facility. 
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During an interview with the OIG, _ acknowledged knowing- but denied any type of 
inappropriate relationship with him. 

Inmate told the OIG that a few months prior to this investigation she heard rumors that 
other inmates were reporting she was having an inappropriate relationship with- - stated 
that she immediately reported to SIS that the rumors were not true. 

The OIG's attempts to interview former inmate were met with negative results. 

told the OIG that she had a long term working relationship with FMC
; however, she denied any type of inappropriate relationship with him. 

Dming his OIG interview, - denied any inappropriate or sexual relationship with any inmates at 
the FMC. 

During his OIG interview- denied any inappropriate or sexual relationship with any inmates at the 
FMC. 

The U.S. Attorney's Office for the Northern District of Texas declined criminal prosecution of __ 

The OIG bas completed its investigation and is providing this report to BOP for its review. 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Office of the Inspector General 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

***-** ... 

Federal Correctional Institution Schuylkill 
Minersville, Pennsylvania 

OFFICE CONDUCTING l NVESTlGA TION DOJ COMPONENT 

New Jersey Area Office Bureau of Prisons 

DISTRIBUTION STATUS 

CASE NUMBER 

[X] Field Office NYFO 11 OPEN 11 OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION IXI CLOSED 

IXI AIGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: II YES IX] NO 

IX] Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

ll USA 

ll Other 

SYNOPSIS 

The Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the receipt of information from the 
Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP) alleging, sometime in the spring of2015; BOP 

initiated an inappropriate relationship with inmate- 's (Registration # - ) 
and released information without authorization. 

The OIG investigation substantiated the allegations. 

-told the OIG that-began speaking to her in a very familiar manner during her visits to FCI 
Schuylkill in early 2015 ... stated, - indicated he sent her a Linkedln request. - stated the 
Linkedln request was in Munson's name and the two began corresponding via email. - recalled she and 
- spoke via email and cellular phone frequently until March of2016 when the relationship deteriorated . 
.. stated the two never corresponded via any other fonnat and never met in person outside of FCI 
Schuylkill. 

.. stated the contact between herself and - was personal and intimate. According to 
shared details about his personal life to include information about his family and hobbies- also recalled 
that the exchanges were also often sexual, with both parties exchanging nude photographs. Finally, - stated 
she never asked, and- never offered, to smuggle contraband into the facility, or violate any BOP policies 
in regards to i. . 

.. voluntarily provided the OIG with access to her email address. A review of the e-mails between .. 
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and~ orroborated s statements. 

- consented to a voluntary interview with the OIG during which he admitted he engaged in a personal 
relationship with- and initiated this relationship with her while she was visiting 1111 at the facility. 
- stated he and- communicated via email and cellular phone frequently for approximately 18 
months. - recalled the communication was personal and occasionally sexual. - also admitted 
sending Ill gifts on two separate occasions. 

Additionally,~ dmitted he misused BOP's inmate monitoring systems to monitor- email, 
telephone calls and visitors. - also admitted to providing this information tolll. Finally
admitted he was aware his relationship with - violated BOP policy and placed him at risk of being 
compromised. - acknowledged he never reported his relationship with Ill to his supervisors or any of 
his coworkers. 

- denied ever meeting with - in person. - stated neitherlll nor .. asked him to 
smuggle contraband into the facility and he never offered to ever do so. - also denied providing 1111' 
with any preferential treatment. - denied ever smuggling contraband into the faci lity during his 
employment with the BOP. 

-resigned from the BOP effective December 21, 2016, immediately following his OIG interview. 

The OIG investigation determined tha- engaged in an inappropriate personal relationship with the 
paramour 11111111) of an inmate at FCI Schuylkill which violated BOP Standards of Conduct, Section 5, Policy 
b, which states: 

"b. Sexual Relationships/Contact With Inmates. Employees may not allow themselves to 
show partiality toward, or become emotionally, physically, sexually, or financially involved with 
inmates, former inmates, or persons known (or who should have been known based on 
circumstances) to the employee as a family member or close friend of inmates or fonner inmates." 

The OIG is has concluded its investigation and all criminal and administrative investigations are completed. 
We are providing this report to the BOP for its information. 
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Case Number: 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General 

SUBJECT 

Dismas Charities Inc. 
Del Rio, Texas 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Dallas Field Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

[X] Field Office DFO 

STATUS 

() OPEN 

ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Bureau of Prisons 

CASE NUMBER 

0 OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION [X] CLOSED 

[X) AIGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: [] YES [X) NO 

fXJ Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

() USA 

() Other 

SYNOPSIS 

The Department of Justice Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon receipt of 
information from the Bureau of Prisons (BOP) Office oflntemal Affairs, Washington, D.C., on September 27, 
2017, alleging that with the Dismas Charities Residential Reentry Center in Del 
Rio, Texas, had sexual contact with inmate . While conducting a~ rification, a Dismas 
case manager was info1med that- told his employer that he was the father o- unborn child. 

The OIG did not substantiate the allegation tha- had sexual contact with _ 

During his OIG interview, - denied an~ropriate or sexual relationship with- demanding a 
DNA test to confirm he was not the father of- child. 

During - : OIG interview, she denied - was her daughter's father and said her boyfriend is the father. 
- denied any misconduct, refused to provide the father's name, refused to provide a sworn affidavit, and 
became agitated and concluded the interview. - added that she was never returning to Dismas. 

The OIG obtained a Texas Birth Certificate for - daughter, , but the certificate did not 
include a father' s name. 

told the OIG that -
1 

had told her tha- boyfriend is the father and not 
explained that- ' was on maternity leave and she had made several unsuccessful attempts 

intentions regarding her employment, but- was uncooperative. - also said she 
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heard from unidentified Dismas staff that - boyfriend was the child's father but - did not know the 
boyfliend's name or any additional details. 

On December 18, 2017, - infonned the OIG that~ ot responded to Dismas about her 
employment despite several efforts to determine her statu~ said it was in the best interest of Dismas to 
terminate • . 

This matter was not referred to the U.S. Attorney's office due to the absence of a prosecutable case. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to the BOP for its review. 
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Case Number: 

Date: February I. 2018 



U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Detroit Division 
Detroit, Michigan 

OFHCE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Detroit Area Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

181 Field Office CFO 

181 AIGINV 

181 Component DEA 

□ USA 

D Other 

CASE NUMBER 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Drug Enforcement Administration 

STATUS 

□ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 181 CLOSED 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 181 NO 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the 
receipt of information from the United States Attorney's Office (USAO) for the Eastern District of Michigan 
(EDMI) alle in that durin an unknown period of time in 2014, Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) 

had an inappropriate relationship with - a defendant in an 
ongoing judicial case, by sending a picture of his male anatomy to her cellular phone. The information 
~ further that in February 2017, during a search wmTant of- residence in 
- left - underwear and a sex toy on display in the residence. 

During the course of the investigation, the OIG learned that officers may have also left nude photographs of 
■on display during the search warrant. 

The OIG ~ ation did not substantiate the allegations that - had an=propriate relationship with 
I or tha- or other officers acted inappropriately during the search of- residence. 

I told the OIG that in 2014, she me- when he investigated a complaint she filed with the Walled 
Lake Police ~nt (WLPD), and the two had communicated with each other by texting on their cellular 
phones afte- investigation was completed. ■eventually sent - nude photographs of herself 
via text messages and alleged that - in return sent a picture of his penis to her personal cellular phone. 
■did not tell her attorney about the pictur~ sent her of his enis until shortly after - and other 
officers searched her residence because she suspected it was who inappropriately left her sex toy, 
underwear, and nude photographs of her on display. ■reasoned did this because she had denied his 
past advances, and he took it personally. rovided the names of and- as persons 
who would substantiate her assertions about voluntarily submitted to an OIG administered 
polygraph about her statements and the results indicated that she was being deceptive. 

DA TE November 8, 2019 

~------I 
SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

DATE November 8, 2019 Digitally signed by WILLIAM 

WilliamJ. Hannah SIGNATURE qA~/• _ ~ HANNAH 
_A_P_P_R_O_V_E_D_B_Y-SP_E_C_I_A_L_A_G_E_N_T_I_N_C_HA_R_G_E __ ____. A'~ Date: 2019.11.08 11 :55:49 -06'00' 
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- told the 0IG that he was not sure about - 'relationship with _ , but I told- she 
had rejected ~ ances. - was at - residence after the February 16, 2017, search warrant, 
and he confi~ sex toy had been dis~ ed in the bathroom, her underwear wiire s read out 
through her residence, and ~ hotographs of . had been dumped out from a chest. did not have 
independent knowledge of- sending a picture of his male anatomy to l . 

of the Ann Arbor Police Department told the 0IG that he came to know 
through other officers at the Inkster (Michi~ olice Department. - heard about the search at 
residence~ but he did not give - details of the investigation. - had no other information 
related to ~ ged inappropriate relationship with I or any inappropriate conduct during the search 
o- residence. 

USA0-EDMI told the 0IG that he and USA0-EDMI 
had previously questioned on the verac~ 's allegations. - and-

felt the need to determine if the government's case a0 ainst I , which--had presented to the EDMI, 
was in jeopardy due to QOtential Giglio issues that - may have created though his alleged actions. 
- told the 0IG that - denied all allegations made by l and assured them that there were no Giglio 
issues to address. 

The 010 reviewed call history records fo1- personal cellular phone and identified four calls, two 
incoming and two outgoi~ h- personal cellular phone. The 0IG also reviewed WLPD investigative 
repo1ts memorialized by - that listed I as the complainant. The~ eriod of each investigative 
report was in direct correlation with the identified phone calls between - and I . The 010 did not 
discover any contacts with I on - government issued cellular phone. The 010 also forensicalL 
examined several of- personal cellular phones, but found no evidence that - sent a picture to . 
phone. 

The 0IG reviewed the DEA-6 Report of Investigation pertaining to the search warrant executed on _ 
residence in February 2017 as well as photographs taken before and after the search and found no evidence 
o- underwear, a sex toy or nude pictures ofl on display in the residence at the conclusion of the 
search. 

In a voluntary interview, he had not souoht an 
intimate rela~ with her . 
- . - did not have a recollection of sending a picture of his male anatomy and reasoned 
that was not something he would have done. - admitted placing ~ toy on a towel rack in her 
bathroom and reasoned he did not know what the item was at the time. --denied leaving _ 
underwear and nude photographs of her on display in the residence or seeing any other law enforcement 
officers inappropriately displ,i those items anytime during or after the search warrant. - believed the 
communications to and from using his personal cellular phone were conversations related to the 

iiio laints he took from ■during the course of his patrol functions as a police officer with the WLPD. 
reasoned he used his personal cellular phone at the time because he did not have an assigned 

government cellular phone then. 

The USA0-EDMI declined criminal prosecution of _ _ 

The 010 has completed its investigation and is providing this report to the DEA for its review. 

Unless otherwise noted, the 0IG applies the preponderance of the evidence standard in dete1mining 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Office of the lnspector General 

PAGE: 2 

CASE NUMBER: -

DATE: November 8, 2019 



whether DOJ personnel have committed misconduct. The Merit Systems Protection Board applies this 
same standard when reviewing a federal agency's decision to take adverse action against an employee 
based on such misconduct. See 5 U.S.C. § 7701(c)(l)(B); 5 C.F.R. § 1201.56(b)(l)(ii). 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Office of the lnspector General 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

D. Ray James Correctional Facility 
Folkston, Georgia 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Atlanta Area Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

[x] Field Office MFO 

[xi AIGINV 

[xJ Component BOP 

[] USA 

[] Other 

CASE NUMBER 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

STATUS 

[] OPEN [) OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION [x] CLOSED 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: 11 YES [xi NO 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

The OIG investigation substantiated the allegation that - had an inappropriate relationship with - . 

and - told the OIG that - utilized the DRJCF inmate telephone system 
to contac on multiple occasions between September 2017 and October 2017. - stated that he 
spoke t as recently as~ber 2017, and that he recognized her voice on the prison telephone calls 
that DRJCF recorded between - and ~ ition~ stated he reviewed surveillance 
video of the DRJCF G Building, and he obs~ and ~ aking together for approximately 10 
minutes on September 16, 2017. The OIG subse uently reviewed the prison recorded telephone calls and 
surveillance video. The review confirmed telephone conversations with an unknown female and 
- and - assertions regarding meeting with-

- also told the OIG that he started having private conversations of a sexual nature with in 
~017. - stated that - provided him with the names of her children 
- stated that in approximately September 2017, - provided him with two letters and a note. 

DATE November 3, 2017 SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

DATE November 3, 2017 SIGNATURE 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE for Robert A. Bourbon 

OIG Form Ill-210/2 (S11persedi11g O!G Fon11 lll-20714B) (04123107). 

Poniuns of the Report of ln vestigation may not be exempt under the Freedom of l11fon11atiu11 Act (5 USC 552) cuul the Privacy Act (5 USC 552a). 



- denied having sexual contact with - or having knowledge that she was sexually involved with 
any other inmate. 

The OIG reviewed the letters and the note that - purportedly received from The review showed 
that in one of the letters- received instructions to send mail to civilia in_ , 

. corroborated to the OIG that - told her to accept incoming mail at her residence on 
behalf, but she denied- told her about a relationship with a DRJCF inmate. 

- told the OIG that - was an inmate assigned to her unit, and that - was her friend. -
denied the following: 1) having a romantic relationship with~ eaking with- on the inmate 
recorded telephone line; 3) tellin~ to send letters for~ home address; 4) aski!!.&11111111 to 
accept mail from - on her behalf; and 5) providing the names of her children to - . -
resigned her position at the DRJCF, effective October 12, 2017. 

The U.S. Attorney's Office for the Southern District of Georgia declined criminal prosecution of- for 
providing false statements during her OIG interview due to a lack of prosecution merit. 

The OIG investigation concluded that - had an inappropriate relationship with - based on the 
witness testimony and inmate recorded telephone calls. Her conduct in this matter violated the BOP Standards 
of Employee Conduct related to the improper relationship with inmates. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. The OIG is 
providing this report to the BOP for its information. 
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Date: November 3. 2017 



U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Federal Medical Center Carswell 
Fort Worth, Texas 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Dallas Field Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

181 Field Ol'fice DFO 

181 AJGINV 

181 Component BOP 

□ USA 

□ Other 

CASE NlJl\,IBER 

DOJCOMJ>ONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

STATUS 

□ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 181 CLOSED 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 181 NO 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon 
the receipt of information from the Bureau of Prisons (BOP alleoin that on or about November 10, 
2017, Federal Medical Center (FMC) Cmswell engaged in an 
inappropriate sexual relationship with inmate 

The OIG investi~bstantiated that - was admittedly involved in an inappropriate sexual 
relationship wit~ at the FMC and committed violations of sexual abuse and sexual contact with 
an inmate. 

On November 14, 2017, _ told the OIG that on November 9 and 10, 2017, she had engaged in 
sexual intercourse a total of two times with - in a supply closet located at the FMC. When 
interviewed by the OIG confessed to having sexual intercourse in a supply closet at the 
FMC two times with at FMC Cmswell. 

On December 19, 2017, - was arrested based on a criminal indictment in the Northern District 
of Texas, charoing him with one count of sexual abuse of a ward, 18 U.S.C. § 2243(b). On March 21, 
2018, leaded guilty to the indictment, and on July 9, 2018, he was sentenced to 5 years of 

resigned from his position with the BOP effective November 15, 2017. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. The 
OIG is providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

DATE July 23, 2018 SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

DATE 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE 
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U.S. Department of Justice 
Office of the I nspoctor General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT CASE NUMBER 

(***-** - ) 
ormer) -

er orroct1onal Institution Beckley 
Beaver, Wf!S. Virginia 

DOJ COM PONE NT OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Washington Field Office Federal Bureau of Prisons 

DISTRIBUTION STATUS 

[X] Field Offi~ WFO □ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION [X] CLOSED 

[X] AIGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: [) YES [X] NO 

[X] Component BOP Date of Previous Repat: 

[) USA 

[) Other 

SYNOPSIS 

The Department of Justice Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon receipt of 
information from Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP) Federal Correctional Institution Beckley FCI-Beckley) 
S ecial Investioative Services SIS office, Beaver, West Virginia, alleging that now forme 

was having an inappropriate relationship with inmate 
Register Number ) and provided sexually explicit letters and sexually explicit p~aphs 

. BOP staff seized sexually explicit photographs and letters, suspected to be of and from 
cell. BOP surveillance photographs also revealed "excessive" personal interactions between 

, includin!IIIIII passing him a note. 

The OIG investigation substantiated the allegation that - had an inappropriate relationship with 
and provided him with sexually explicit letters and sexually explicit photographs of herself. 

The OIG interviewed , who admitted he had a personal relationship with- that did not involve 
any physical contact. stated that - provided him the handwritten letters contai1~ ally 
explicit language and sexually explicit photographs that the BOP seized from inside his cell. - also 
confirmed that t~ photographs depicted ~ various stages of undress. Other than the sexually 
explicit pictures- denied any knowledgeoIIIIIII providing contraband to any inmate. 

On February 22, 2018- refused to participate in a voluntary OIG interview and invoked her right to speak 
with an attorney. Immediately after her refusal, - resigned her employment with the BOP, effective 
immediately. 

DATE SIGNATUR 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

DATE SIGNATUR 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT lN CHARGE MICHAEL P. TOMPKINS 
OlG Form lll-210/2 (Superseding 0/G Form J!l-207/48) (04/2312007) 
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The U.S. Attorney's Office for the Southern District of West Virginia declined criminal prosecution of _ _ 

The OIG has completed its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. The OIG is 
providing this report to BOP for its information. 
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Care Number: -

Date: March 14, 2018 



U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Federal Conectional Complex 
Forrest City, Arkansas 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION DOJ COMPONENT 

CASE NUMBER 

Dallas Field Office Federal Bureau of Prisons 

DISTRIBUTION STATUS 

181 Field Ol'fice DFO □ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

181 AJGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 

181 Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

□ USA 

D Other 

SYNOPSIS 

181 CLOSED 

181 NO 

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the 
receipt of information from the Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP), Office of Internal Affairs (OJA), alleging 
that inmate Re ister Number witnessed Federal Con-ectional Com lex FCC 
Forrest City, Arkansas, having sex with inmate 
(Register Number also provided contraband t 

The OIG investigation substantiated tha- engaged in an inappropriate sexual relationship with 
- • and provided - with a contraband pastry on one occasion. The OIG investigation did not 
substantiate that - accepted bribes or provided any other contraband to inmates. 

admitted to the OIG that he maintained an ina 
showed the OIG where he had a tattoo of 

he was currently engaged to be married t~ 

ropriate sexual relationship witl-
first name on his right shoulder, and added that 
denied receiving any contraband from -

- told the OIG that he had witnesse and - having sex on approximately four occasions, 
and that he witnesse~ passing a bag of what appeared to be a green-leafy substance that 
looked like marijuana. This could not be substantiated by the OIG. 

- admitted to the OIG that she had inappropriate sexual contact with- on two occasions in 
approximately September 2017 and F~ 8, while- was incarcerated at the FCC. 
further admitted to having a tattoo of- first name on her back and to m- etin with 
sister and providing her with ~ ately $600 to put on his inmate account. also stated that she 
was engaged to be manied to - and admitted to once sharin a astr with him that she brought into 

DATE November 19, 2019 SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

_D_A_T_E __ N_o_v_em_b_e_r_l_9~,_20_19 _ _._s_I_G_NA_T_U_R_E _________ /4~ . ~RO=B=E=R~T=BO=U=R=B=O~N ______ _ 
APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE Robert A. Bourbon /V''" ~- Date: 2019.11.20 
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the FCC. - denied she ever provided - with any other contraband items. 

The OIG subpoenaed - cellular telephone records, which revealed that - sister, -
was most frequent contact between October 2017 and March 2018. Similarly, an OIG review of 

OP e-mails from April and May 2018, showed that - had been in nearly daily contact 
through a texting service using her cellular telephone number. Some of these messages 

contained evidence of their inappropriate romantic relationship. 

On May 6, 2019, _ was a1Tested following a criminal information in the United States District Court 
for the Eastern District of Arkansas. She was charged with Abusive Sexual Contact, in violation of Title 18 
U.S.C. § 2244. 

On October 10, 2019, _ pleaded guilty to one count of Abusive Sexual Contact and was sentenced to 3 
years of probation, a $1000 fine, a $100 special assessment fee, 150 hours of community service, and was 
ordered to register as a sex offender. 

- resigned from her position at the BOP effective March 13, 2018, following her OIG interview. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. The OIG 
is providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

Unless otherwise noted, the OIG applies the preponderance of the evidence standard in determining whether 
DOJ personnel have committed misconduct. The Merit Systems Protection Board applies this same 
standard when reviewing a federal agency's decision to take adverse action against an employee based on 
such misconduct. See 5 U.S.C. § 7701(c)(l)(B); 5 C.F.R. § 1201.56(b)( l )(ii). 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Office of the lnspector General 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Federal Correctional Institution 
Aliceville, Alabama 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Atlanta Area Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

181 Field Office MFO 

181 AJGINV 

181 Component BOP 

□ USA 

□ Other 

CASE NUMBER 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

STATUS 

□ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 181 CLOSED 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 181 NO 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

The Department of Justice Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the receipt of 
information from the Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP), Office of Internal Affairs, Washington, D.C., alleging that 

, Federal Correctional Institution (FCI), Aliceville, Alabama, had an inappropriate 
relationship with FCI-Aliceville inmate 

The OIG investigation substantiated the allegation that - had an inappropriate relationship with - For 
this, - was criminally convicted in the Northern District of Alabama for sexual abuse of a ward and false 
statements. 

1111 told the OIG that - befriended her and that they enga~exual intercourse on two occasions; once in 
the staff bathroom and again in the housing unit's supply closet. ...a,aid tha- gave her the e-mail address 

and the telephone number as a means for them to communicate 
with each other. In addition, 1111 said that her sister, , also communicated with- using the 
aforementioned telephone number. b)C5);(b)(?)(C) confirmed to the OIGKbl(~);_l's assertions and she provided the OIG 
with screen shots from her cell phone s owmg text messages between herself and _ 

The OIG reviewed Verizon Wireless records that showed telephone number was a cell number 
associated with a NA TTING ROUTER Internet Protocol (IP) which had multiple users at the same time. However, 
the records also showed that i~\i~\1 .. , 's personal cell phone number used the NATTING ROUTER IP 
as the telephone number provided to llll. 

- denied to the OIG that he engaged in a sexual relationship with 1111. - also denied using the e-mail 
address or the cell phone number . - resigned his position with 

DATE June 13, 2018 SIGNATURE 

PRKPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

DATE June 13, 2018 SIGNATURE 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE 
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the BOP effective August 18, 2016. 

-was later arrested, and convicted in U.S. District Court, Northern District of Alabama, for violations of Title 
18 United States Code, Section 2243(b) - Sexual Abuse of a Ward, and Title 18 United States Code, Section 1001 -
False Statements. He was sentenced to 18 months' incarceration, followed by 5 years' supervised release. In 
addition, - is required to register as a sex offender. 

The OIG has concluded its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. We are 
providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Office of the Inspector General 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

) 

Federal Medical Center Carswell 
Fort Worth, Texas 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Dallas Field Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

181 Field Ol'fice DFO 

181 AJGINV 

181 Component BOP 

□ USA 

□ Other 

CASE NlJl\,IBER 

DOJCOMJ>ONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

STATUS 

□ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 181 CLOSED 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 181 NO 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon 
the receiJ)t of information from the Bureau of Prisons BOP alleoin that Federal Medical Center (FMC) 
Carswell engaged in an inappropriate 

The OIG investigation substantiated the allegation that - was involved in an inappropriate 
relationship with- . 

On August 2, 2018, . told the OIG that she and~ d exchanged personal letters on several 
occasions whlle she was a dialysis patient at the FMc."1111 additionally explained that had wired 
money to her prison account on two separate occasions totaling $275, and that she and talked on 
the telephone on several occasions. 

When interviewed by the OIG on August 3, 2018, . confessed to exchanging personal letters with 
- at the FMC, receiving several telephone calls from - and to wiring money to her prison 
account on two occasions for a total of $275. 

- was terminated from his position at the FMC on August 2, 2018. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and all administrative actions are complete. The OIG is 
providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

DATE Se tember 12, 2018 SIGNATURE 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Federal Correctional Institution 
Danbury, Connecticut 

OFFICE CONDUCTINGINVESTIGATION DOJ COMPONENT 

CASE NUMBER 

New York Field Office Federal Bureau of Prisons 

DISTRIBUTION STATUS 

181 Field Office NYFO □ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

181 AJGJNV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 

181 Component BOP Date of Previous Report: 

□ USA 

D Other 

SYNOPSIS 

181 CLOSED 

181 NO 

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon 
the receipt of information from the Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP) Office of Internal Affairs alle in 
that Federal Correctional Institution Danbury, Connecticut (FCI Danbury) 

sexually abused Female Satellite Low Danb~ Danbury) inmate , Register No. 
Specifically, . performed oral sex on- during two separate occasions, and they 

had sexual intercourse one time. 

The OIG investigation substantiated that - had sexual relations with- on two separate 
occas10ns. 

- told the OIG that on July 29, 2018, she was awoken by- while she laid asleep in her bed at 
the FSL Danbury. - then escorted her to the laundry room where they engaged ~ and 
she performed oral sex on him. - stated that on August 1, 2018, she was awoken by- again 
and escorted to the hair care faci~where she again performed oral sex on - and this time, they 
also had sexual intercourse. 

denied having sexual relations with - and said that he had a professional relationship with 
her. refused to provide a written sworn statement, and he requested to speak with his attorney, 
who advised to end the interview. - resigned from his position at the BOP effective 
December 7, 2018. 

On December 10, 2018, - waived his right to be indicted and pleaded guilty in the United States 
District Court of Connecticut for violating, 18 U.S.C. 2243, sexual abuse of a ward. 

DATE August J 9. 2019 

PREPARED BY SPECIAL AGENT 

DATE August 19, 2019 

Guido Modano 

APPROVED BY SPECIAL AGENT IN CHARGE 
OIG Form lll-210/2 (Superseding O!G Form !l!-207/48) (0412312007) 
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On Aplil 29, 2019, _ was sentenced to 10 months' imp1isonment, followed by 5 years of 
supervised release. 

The OIG has completed i ts investigation, and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. The 
OIG is providing this report to the BOP for its information. 

Unless otherwise noted, the OIG applies the preponderance of the evidence standard in determining 
whether DOJ personnel have committed misconduct. The Melit Systems Protection Board applies this 
same standard when reviewing a federal agency's decision to take adverse action against an employee 
based on such misconduct. See 5 U.S.C. § 7701(c)(l )(B); 5 C.F.R. § 1201.56(b)(l)(ii). 

U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of tJ1e Inspector General 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT CASE NUMBER 

***-**. ) 
(retired) 

Federal Correctional Institution 
Tallahassee, Florida 

OFFICE CONDUCTJNG INVESTIGATION 

Miami Field Office 

DOJCOMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

DISTRIBUTION STATUS 

!XI 

IXI 

IX] 

II 

II 

DATE 

.Field Office MFO II OPEN II OPEN PENDJNG PROSECUTION !XI CLOS.ED 

AIGLNV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: II YES IXJ NO 

Component BOP Date of Preyious Report: 

USA 

Other 

SYNOPSIS 

The Department of Justice Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon 
the receipt of information from the Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP), Office oflnternal Affairs, 
alle in that Federal Correctional Institution (FCI) Tallahassee 

was involved in an appropriate relationslii with inmate (BOP Reg. No. 
and sexuall assaulted - prior to incarceration at FCI Tallahassee. - · 

fwther alleged rovided her with contraband. The information BOP provided to the 
OIG detailed tha had Facebook (FB) contact with 110 former FCI Tallahassee inmates 
including 54 that were on supervised release. 

The OIG substantiated the allegation that - engaged in an improper personal relationship 
with■ in violation of BOP policy 3420.11 (Standards of Employee Conduct). - also 
violated BOP policy 3420.11 when he engaged in FB contact with multiple other former inmates 
including several that were still on supervised release. While the OIG investigation did not 
substantiate that - engaged in a physical relationship with■, went on a trip with her, or 
engaged in sexual activities, the content of the text messages indicated that a romantic 
relationship with- likely existed. The OIG also did not substantiate that - knew that 
■ was supposed to be incarcerated when he was communicating with her over FB, that he 
sexually assaulted her, or that he introduced contraband into FCI Tallahassee. - retired 
from the BOP while under investigation. 
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In her complaint to the BOP, - stated that she had been accidentally released from a local jail 
prior to being transferred to a federal facility. After she was released from a local jail, she 
became FB friends with- and disclosed to him that she was mistakenly released. ■ 
alleged that - agreed not to report her to the U.S. Marshals Service (USMS) in exchange 
for taking a vacation with him and during this trip - sexually assaulted her. 

After being released in February 2018, sent a complaint to the BOP 
alleging that prior to her incarceration at FCI Tallahassee in December 2015, she was in a 
personal and sexual relationship with - . 

The OIG interviewed■ who stated that she was in the Baldwin, Alabama, County Jail when 
she received a federal sentence of 5 years . However, a detainer was not placed on 
her and prior to being transferred to the custody of the USMS for transfer to FCI Tallahassee she 
was released on July 2, 2014. 

- said she did not kno~ prior to her incarceration at FCI Tallahassee in December 
iois, b~ sent, her a FB "friend" request throu h another individual Ill knew by the 
name '~ be an communicatin with . - eventuTybegan to discuss 
ersonal matters w· h including According to■, in January 2015, 

disclosed to that she was supposed to be incarcerated and ex lained her situation to 
. replied that he would have to notify the authorities but asked him not to 

because she would not be able to care for her children. - then told that he was taking 
a vacation to Biloxi, Mississippi, in February 2015, and requested that accompany him 
in exchange for not notifying the authorities. While he did not specifically~ sexual favors, 
■ said that based on their communications she believed that this is what - wanted. 

- told the OIG that a- instructions, she travelled to Biloxi and met at the 
Hard Rock Hotel and Casin.,(HRH. - said she paid for the room and put down as a 
guest on the room registration. said they st= one night at the HRH and that she engaged 
in sexual intercourse with while there. - stated that they departed Biloxi and drove 
to New Orleans where they checked into the Hilton Garden Inn for two nights but this time■ 
did not include- name on the guest registration. - said that they had sexual 
intercourse and that while- did not force her to have sex, she did not really want to, and 
felt compelled. 

stated that while in New Orleans - received a call 
so the drove back to Biloxi where they went their separ t wa s. 

learned that shortly thereafter. Several weeks later, 
■ and asked her to meet him at Days Inn in Americus, Georgia. - said that 
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mailed her the reservation at but she no longer had the 
reservation .• declined to meet and subsequently the USMS contacted - aunt 
looking for--surrendered on March 15, 2015, and was sent to FCI Tallahassee. 

rovided the OIG with FB messa~ etween her and ~ nd the messages indicated 
that did have FB contact with- that included telTing)II he loved her and she was 
beautiful. However, there was no indication of physical contact, reference to a trip, or that 
- had knowledge that■ was supposed to be in prison. 

The HRH in Biloxi had no record of- or■ staying at the HRH and said that the 
reservation information the OIG provided was cancelled. 

In his OIG interview, . admitted to the OIG that he should not have had FB contact with 
former inmates includin° but that the contact was only over FB and that he never met with 
any inmates including , and his communications were friendly in nature. - denied 
~ical contact or relationship with . and denied providing her with contraband. 
- denied that■ told him she was supposed to be in prison or that he told that he 
would not report her in exchange for travelling with him to the Biloxi or New Orleans. 
said that he was in Biloxi one time several years ago to see a fight and did not stay overnight. He 
said the last time he was in New Orleans was in the 1980s. 

- ·was later arrested by the USSS for credit card fraud and is currently incarcerated at FCI 
Tallahassee. 

The U.S. Attorney's Office for the Northern District of Florida declined criminal prosecution of - · - retired from the BOP effective June 22, 2019. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to the BOP for its 
information. 

Unless otherwise noted, the OIG applies the preponderance of the evidence standard in 
determining whether DOJ personnel have committed misconduct. The Merit Systems Protection 
Board applies this same standard when reviewing a federal agency's decision to take adverse 
action against an employee based on such misconduct. See 5 U.S.C. § 7701 (c)(l)(B); 5 C.F.R. § 
120 l.56(b )(l )(ii). 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General 

SUBJECT 

Daniel R. Guzzo (***-*~ 
Supervisory Special Agent (Deceased) 
Asheville, North Carolina 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Washington Field Office 

DISTRIBUTION STATUS 

ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 
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DO.J COMPONENT 

Drug Enforcement Administration 

181 Field Office WFO □ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION CLOSED 
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□ USA 
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SYNOPSIS 

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the 
receipt of information from the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI), alleging that Drug Enforcement 
Administration (DEA) Supervisory Special Agent (SSA) Daniel R. Guzzo, was communic~ 
inappropriate and flirtatious manner with two current federal inmates, and _ 
both of whom were convicted in cases which Guzzo investigated. It was also alleged that Guzzo had sex 
with multiple women, including who either worked as confidential informants (Cls) for 
Guzzo, or were targets of DEA investigations run by Guzzo. Additionally, it was alleg~ ave 
~ isclosed protected Grand Jury information when communicating with - and 
- Specifically, Guzzo was alleged to have provided information concerning upcoming or 
pending indictments. 

The OIG investioation substantiated the allegation that Guzzo maintained improper relationships with 
- and as well as engaged in a sexual relationship with a confidential source -
in violation of the DEA policy regarding confidential sources. The OIG investigation also substantiated the 
- that Guzzo inappropriately disclosed protected Grand Jury infonnation to inmate -

The OIG reviewed inmate e-mail communications and a March 9, 2017 letter addressed to 
dming her incarceration which confirmed Guzzo provided information to her regarding an upcoming Grand 
Jury indictment. 
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The OIG reviewed a list of all DEA confidential sources registered to Guzzo and confirmed that 
was, in fact, one of his sources. 

During a voluntary interview, _ confirmed to the OIG that she was registered as a source by Guzzo 
and worked for him in the early part of 2016, providing information about known crystal methamphetamine 
distributors. ex lained that Guzzo was using inmat as a confidential sow-ce, 

who set-up a drug deal between herself and another individual. Following the drug 
ulled her over" and offered her the opportunity to become a confidential source in place of 

going to · ail. noted she became a registered confidential source by Guzzo, after he began to text and 
call her. stated during the time she worked as a confidential source for Guzzo, she maintained an 
improper personal relationship with him, including having sex. - stated that she shared an apartment 
with her sister, , who could confirm her sexual contact with Guzzo. 

During a voluntary intervi~ told the OIG that on at least one occasion, Guzzo visited the aQa.rtment 
she shared with her sister, ~ nd proceeded to go into - bedroom with - alone. -
expl~ and Guzzo went into the bedroom and closed the door, while she stayed with her child 
andllllllllciaughter in the living room. - stated it was her understanding that while- and 
Guzzo were in the bedroom, they had sex. 

During the course of the investigation, the OIG took possession of Guzzo' s DEA issued computer and DEA 
issued cell phone, an iPhone and SD card. The OIG Cyber Investigations Office (CIO) forensically 
examined the seized devices. A review of the devices revealed Facebook chat logs and iOS messaging that 
confirmed Guzzo was routinely communicating with_ , often times in a flirtatious and seemingly 
inappropriate manner. A~~• a review of forensically recovered Facebook chat logs confirmed that 
Guzzo communicated wi~ using the- ' account. 

At the beginning of an attempted voluntary interview, Guzzo was advised that he was the subject of a 
criminal investigation. Prior to participating, Guzzo was read OIG Form III-226/2 "Warnings and 
Assurances to Employee Requested to Provide Information on a Voluntary Basis" which included a list of 
specific allegations. The OIG informed Guzzo that after signing OIG Form 111-226/2 he would be placed 
under oath, and the interview would be audio-recorded. Guzzo refused to sign the voluntary waiver. After 
refusing to sign the waiver, Guzzo requested that the OIG provide an explanation of the allegations, to 
include an explanation of the allegations that involved alleged criminal conduct and the allegations that 
involved alleged administrative misconduct. Guzzo was provided the explanations of the allegations. The 
OIG asked Guzzo an additional time to sign OIG Form 111-226/2, and Guzzo refused to sign. Therefore, 
Guzzo was not placed under oath prior to the utterances and statements he made regarding the clarifying 
questions he continued to ask. 

At Guzzo's request, the OIG provided an explanation of what a Rule 6(e) violation consisted of. Guzzo 
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responded to the explanation by telling the OIG he "probably" violated the Federal rule. With respect to the 
allegation that he maintained an improper relationship with a confidential source, Guzzo asked if an 
improper relationship included "hugging and kissing?" Guzzo also asked if "sexual intercourse" constituted 
a sexual relationship with a confidential source, regarding the allegation he had a sexual relationship with a 
source. When asked if he was familiar with the DEA policy regarding confidential sources, Guzzo 
acknowledged he had an understanding of the policy. When challenged again regarding the allegation he 
had an improper relationship with a confidential source, Guzzo replied that he "probably" did have an 
improper relationship with a confidential source. The OIG specifically asked Guzzo if he ever had a sexual 
relationship with a confidential source, and Guzzo replied that he would refuse to answer the question until 
he consulted with a lawyer. 

On February 28, 2019, Guzzo died 

The U.S. Attorney's Office for the District of South Carolina declined criminal prosecution of Guzzo. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and all criminal and administrative actions are complete. The OIG 
is providing this report to DEA for its information. 

Unless otherwise noted, the OIG applies the preponderance of the evidence standard in determining whether 
DOJ personnel have committed misconduct. The Merit Systems Protection Board applies this same 
standard when reviewing a federal agency's decision to take adverse action against an employee based on 
such misconduct. See 5 U.S.C. § 770l(c)(l)(B); 5 C.F.R. § 1201.56(b)(l)(ii). 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

Federal Conectional Institute (FCI) Hazelton 
Bruceton Mills, West Virginia 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Washington Field Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

181 Field Ol'fice 

STATUS 

□ OPEN 

CASE NUMBER 

DOJ COMPONENT 

Federal Bureau of Prisons 

□ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

181 AJGINV PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 

181 Component Date of Previous Report: 

□ USA 

□ Other 

SYNOPSIS 

181 CLOSED 

181 NO 

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon~ 
of information from the Federal Bureau of Prisons (BOP), Office of Internal Affairs (OIA) alleging that 

at Federal Correctional Institute (FCI) Hazelton engaged in sexual acts with inmates, introduced 
contraband, had improper relationships with inmates, and displayed unprofessional conduct. 

The OIG invest~n did not substantiate allegations of sexual abuse; however the investigation substantiated 
alle0 ations that - brought in contraband and had improper relationships with inmates. The OIG determined ii displayed disgraceful conduct and Jacked candor in his responses regarding his tobacco purchases, exchanging 
sexual letters with an inmate, his documentation of suboxone seizures, and for allowing inmates to use his office to 
perfo1m sexual acts with each other in his presence. 

Seven inmates, one correctional officer, and one personal friend were interviewed during this investigation. 
Additionally, the OIG reviewed video recordings, calendars, and letters found during the course of the investigation 
which refuted - statements to the OIG. 

In a voluntary OIG interview on March 8, 2018, - denied having sexual contact with inmates, exchanging 
letters with inmates, and bringing tobacco or anything of value to inmates. - also claimed to have 
documented 10 incident reports after finding suboxone through the mail, although none existed on file. After 
being told calendars were found showing each day- brou~ tobacco to inmate , Federal 
Register#- and it matched his work schedule in J2 ... requested a break, and returned to tell the 
OIG that he was considering other jobs and might think about resigning his BOP position in about a month. 
- then requested to te1minate the interview and never resigned. 
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On April 24, 2018, the Northern District of West Virginia was briefed on this matter and declined prosecutorial 
interest. 

In a follow-up compelled interview on May 2, 2018, _ again denied any wrongdoing and declined to undergo a 
polygraph examination to support his denials. - contradicted his statements in his first interview about writing 
IO incident reports when finding suboxone, statin~ ~ver did any paperwork when finding suboxone. - also 
misled investigators about his t~ hases. - told the OIG that he doesn't smoke tobacco and had 
purchased it for his best friend, - , about 10 or more times during the spring or summer of 2017. _ , 
said h~ t - loose tobacco so he could roll his own cigarettes. Durin a break in the interview, the OIG 
called - who denied smoking, stating he only "snuffs and vapes". said that - only purchased 
smokeless tobacco for him no more than two times in the summer of 2016. further confirmed that -
never bought him loose tobacco and that he does not roll cigarettes. 

Subsequent to the first two interviews, the BOP provided the OIG with handwritten letters found in the J-2 housing 
unit match~ tent and descriptions of sexual letters between - and inmate , Federal 
Register#- identified the letters as her an~ handwriting. The letters obtained by the OIG 
are also consistent wit 1 description of how they continued to write on the same paper until it was filled. 
The OIG receive handwriting from unit daily logs and his OPM Form 306 "Declaration for Federal 
Employment" and it closely resembled the handwriting on the letters. 

In addition to the letters, the OIG received two surveillance videos capturing the following: 

• At approximately 6:35 p.m. on December 30, 2017, depict- coming from behind an inmate sitting at a 
table in the common area, wrapping a rubber band around his finger; and striking the inmate in the back or 
buttocks forcing the inmate to jump up and move to another table. 

• At appro~ .m. on December 31, 2017, shows - sitting in his office socializing with two 
inmates; - · Federal Register#- and an unidentified inmate. The video d~ 
- reaching out with her left hand and grabbing the right breast of the unidentified inmate. - then 
grabs the unidentified inmate onto her lap who begins to bounce up and down to simulate a lap dance. 

On August 10, 2018, the OIG conducted another compelled interview with -
1 

related to the newly discovered 
sexual letters and video surveillance, as well his previous false statements to the OIG. - denied writing the 
sexual letters and resigned his position with the Federal Bureau of Prisons, effective August 10, 2018. 

The Northern District of West Virginia declined criminal prosecution in relation to the false statements. 

The OIG investigation concluded that - introduced tobacco into the facility and provided it to inmat 
- - explanation for why he was purchasing tobacco as a non-smoker was disproved by witness 
testimony who reportedly is his best friend. Additionally, four witness inmates, whom reported their knowledge of 

contraband activities were considered credible in addition to the evidence (calendars) provided by inmate 
that she made contem. raneously identifying the dates - provided her with contraband. The OIG 

investigation confirmed that · worked the dates identified on the calendar and he had access to the witness. 

The OIG investigation also substantiated allegations that - had improper relationships with inmates and acted 
unprofessionally when he: 

• Made sexual comments and sexual advances to inmates 
• Exchanged love letters with inmate~ an~ . 
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• Researched news articles and information for inmates, reviewed inmates' online pictures and printed 
Christmas decorations for inmates using the government computer. 

• Befriended an inmate's family member on Facebook. 

• Shot a rubber band at an inmate and allowed two other inmates in his office to touch and ride each other in 
his presence. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to the BOP for its information. 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

SUBJECT 

HIDT A Task Force 
Salt Lake City, Utah 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Denver Field Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

181 Field Ol'fice DNFO 

181 AJGINV 

181 Component DEA 

□ USA 

□ Other 

CASE NlJl\,IBER 

DOJCOMJ>ONENT 

Drug Enforcement Administration 

STATUS 

□ OPEN □ OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 181 CLOSED 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: □ YES 181 NO 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

The Department of Justice Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the receipt of 
information from the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI), Salt Lake City Field Division, alleging that beginning 
in 2013, with the Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA), High Intensity 
Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA) Task Force, released sensitive law enforcement information to a woman purported 
to be an escort, who later became FBI Confidential Human Source #- (herein, the CHS), beginning in 
November 2016. It was also alleged tha- misused his position b~arrant for the escort 
dismissed and was involved in a sexual relationship with the escort. - with the Unified Police 
Department (UPD). 

This joint OIG and FBI investigation substantiated that on multiple occasions,■ released sensitive law 
enforcement information and engaged in a romantic relationship with the CHS. The allegation that - misused 
his position to have a warrant dismissed was unsubstantiated. 

The CHS reported to the OIG and the FBI that in November 2013, she was stopped by the police while driving and 
'approached her vehicle, took her phone from her lap, and dialed his own telephone number. The CHS said that 
contacted her the next da~ say he noticed drug paraphernalia in her vehicle and requested photogr= s of 

her. The CHS stated she and - became friends and when she had~ ·oblem with her traffic wan·ants, . would 
have them recalled/dismissed. The CHS said that upon her request, - provided her law enforcement information 
about her associates. The CHS stated though she never had sexual intercourse with■, at- request she 
would unsuccessfully attempt to masturbate him. The CHS stated■ never paid for sexual services, though he 
would sometimes tell the CHS, "You owe me" and would request photographs from the CHS. The CHS stated she 
was signed up to be■'s informant, though never provided information to■. 
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A review of UPD records revealed tha- did sign up the CHS on December 1, 2014 as a confidential source for 
the UPD and records indicate that she was never paid any UPD funds for her services. 

A review of text messages on the CHS's cellular telephone between - and the CHS revealed that - provided 
the CHS arrest status for four traffic violations. The text messages confirmed that■ ran the CHS's name through 
the National Crime Information Center (NCIC) and later texted the CHS that her traffic tickets turned into wairnnts, 
but advised her not to worry. On another occasion, the CHS and - texted about an outstanding warrant for her 
failure to appear on a drug related investigation. (The CHS and her co-coils irators were part of an organization 
that was involved in the distribution of drugs to the Salt Lake City area.) told the CHS via text message that he 
talked to the Sandy Police Department investigator handling the drug investigation and they agreed to drop the case. 
■ also said that a judge would have the wairnnts recalled. 

Though the drug related case against the CHS was eventually dismissed, the OIG interviewed the Sandy Police 
Department investigator, who stated she was never contacted by - or anyone to have the case dismissed against 
the CHS. 

During the course of the investigation, the FBI directed the CHS to request from■ the warrant status for her and 
two associates. The FBI knew in advance that the names she provided had warrants. During recorded meets, phone 
calls, and text messages,■ correctly informed the CHS that she and her associate had misdemeanor waiTants for 
traffic and failure to appear violations, while her other friend had a felony wan-ant for drug violations. After 
= ~ding the information- requested a photograph of the CHS. The FBI later determined through the UPD, 
- ran the CHS and the two associates through NCIC. A further review of Utah Bureau of Criminal Information 
(BCI) databases also revealed t~ conducted law enforcement queries of his wife and four possible family 
members with the last name of--

On February 6, 2017- was removed from the DEA HID TA Task Force and - was placed on administrative 
leave by the UPD. 

In his interview with the FBI and the U.S. Attorney's Office for the District of Utah- talked about initially 
meeting with the CHS after he pulled her over after she met with a suspect he was investigating. He stated that he 
observed tin foil in her car and took her cellulai· t:hone and dialed in his telephone number, because he thought 
that she would make a good confidential source. - stated that he subsequently signed-up the CHS as a UPD 
source. - 'admitted that knew the CHS had warrants, was an escort, and had a heroin addiction. ■ explained 
the CHS did provide information and helped him find people of interest. ■ denied that he ever had her warrants 
dismissed. Initially - stated he never provided warrant information to the CHS on her associates. However, he 
later admitted that the CHS was in his law enforcement vehicle and he provided wairnnt information to her. He 
further stated that UPD policy allowed him to release CBI info1mation at his discretion. ■ stated the relationship 
with the CHS could have been more professional and that he was never romantically involved with the CHS. ■ 
denied having any sexual relations with the CHS. ■ stated he and the CHS had an "inside joke" where he 
received nude photographs from the CHS on one occasion, and ever since then would ask the CHS for photographs. 
■ stated he had not received any nude photographs since. 

UPD Internal Affairs told the OIG that UPD does not have a policy that allows the release of 
information in exchange for other information, and tha- should not have released sensitive information. 
Additionally, said that on June 21, 2017, ■ was notified that the UPD planned to terminate him from 
employment. explained UPD Internal Affairs determined that■ violated UPD's policies on the handling 
of confidential sources and his release of confidential information related to the CHS. 
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The U.S. Attorney's Office, District of Utah, and the Salt Lake City District Attorney's Office declined prosecution 
of■ for releasing sensitive law enforcement information. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this rep01t to DEA for its information. 
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U.S. Dcpart111c111 or Justice 

Office of the lu~pcctor General 

SUB,IECT 

Reeves County Detention Center 
Pews, Texas 

OFFICE CON0UC f'I NC INVESTIGATION 

Dallas Field Office (El Paso Arca Office) 

DISTRIBUT ION STATUS 

ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

CASE NUMBER 
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Federal Bureau of Prisons 

I.XI Fir ld Office UFO II OPEN II Ol'EN PE ' OINC l'IWSECUTION 
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I.XI Co111pn11c111 uo1• Dall' nf Pn•,ious lkport: 

II CSA 

II Other 

SYNOPSIS 

The Dcpa1imc11t o r Justice (DO.I) Onicc of the lnspct:tor General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon the receipt 
of informat ion from the Reeves County Detent ion Center (RCDC) in Pecos, Texas, alleging that RCDC 

was involved in an inappropriate sexual relationship with inmate -

The OIG investigation did not substantiate the allegation that a sexual relationship existed between - and 

During his OIG interview, cl vised that he ancl - verc involved in a sexual relationshi p rrom 
January until March 201 7.I nid that the two would meet every Monday ihrough Thursday after 
6:00p.m. in the RCDC Education Department and engage in sexual activity. 

rovidcd the OIG with a sworn affidavit denying any type of sexual relationship with any RCDC inmates. 
1cknowledgcd that she may have complained to an RCDC inmate about her personal problems but continued 

to deny that she engaged in sexual activity with any RCDC inmates. 

Th~ United States /\ttorn~y's Office for the Western District or Texas (Alpine Division) dcdincd prosecution of - · 
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- resigned from her position at the RCDC effective December 31, 2017. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to the BOP for its review. 
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II USA 
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CASE NUMBER 
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Drug Enforcement Administration 
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II OPEN II OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION !XI CLOSED 
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Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

The Depaitment of Justice Office (DOJ) Office of the Inspector General (OIG) initiated this investigation upon 
receipt from the Drug Enforcement Administration DEA , Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR), of an 
anonymous letter alleging that used DEA Foreign 
Service National (FSN) drivers at the U.S. Embassy in Bogota, Colombia, to procure sex workers (prostitutes). 

The anonymous letter also alleged that 
- • was involved with rostitutes 
separately under OIG case 

Colombia. This matter is being investigated 

The OIG investigation did not substantiate the allegation tha- solicited prostitutes or directed FSN 
drivers to procure prostitutes. 

The OIG interviewed all sixteen DEA FSN drivers assigned to the U.S. Embassy in Bogota, including 
ersonal driver - All the FSN drivers denied that they ever procured prostitutes 

fi or an other DEA ersonnel. The also denied having any knowledge of such activities. 
who , told the OIG that he re ularly checked in with them. 

None of the drivers ever reported anything involving prostitution. said this included 
- who never reported anything improper regarding 
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was one of the most honest people he knew. said that when -
watched his dog. He added that - frequently traveled with his wife and was very traveled 

family oriented. 

- was interviewed by the OIG and cate~ and unequivocally denied soliciting prostitutes or 
instructing FSN drivers to obtain prostitutes. - further stated that since he had become -

1

he had 
emphasized DEA' s Standards of Conduct for all employees. He said if he had learned of such activity he would 
have immediately reported it. 

The OIG conducted a digital forensic examination of- DEA issued iPhone and did not identify any 
information related to prostitutes or improper conduct. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to DEA for its review. 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of the Inspector General ABBREVIATED REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 
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New England Division 
Boston, Massachusetts 

OFFICE CONDUCTING INVESTIGATION 

Miami Field Office 

DISTRIBUTION 

!XI .Field Office MFO 
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IX] Component DEA 

II USA 

II Other 

CASE NUMBER 

DOJCOMPONENT 

Drug Enforcement Administration 

STATUS 

II OPEN II OPEN PENDING PROSECUTION 

PREVIOUS REPORT SUBMITTED: II YES 

Date of Previous Report: 

SYNOPSIS 

The anonymous letter also alleged that 
with prostitutes in Colombia. This matter was investigated separately under OIG case 
allegation was unsubstantiated. - is being investigated under OIG case number 

!XI CLOSED 

IXJ NO 

, was involved 
and the 

The OIG inv~ n did not substantiate the allegation tha- solicited prostitutes with or without the 
assistance of-

The OIG interviewed~ o categorically and unequivocally denied solicitin~ s. -
also denied associatin~ in anything other than brief professional contact. - said that he 
was single when he arrived in Colombia and dated some women but none of them were prostitutes. -
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initially stated that after - departed in Ma 2015. However, DEA 
records indicated tha reported t in February 2015. clarified his previous 
statement by saying that may have reported prior to his departure, but was on 
from November 2014 until March 2015, and thens ent time on tempora~ he U.S. He did not recall 
interacting with - except when just prior to departure, - introduced - to his 
Colombian Police unit. DEA records also indicated that was assigned considerable amounts of 
temporary duty in Miami after his - reporting date, which he took in conjunction with leave. The 
records indicated that fro~ 2015 to May 2015, there were a total of 11 working days when
and - were both in- and not on leave. 

The OIG conducted a digital forensic examination of- DEA issued iPhone and did not identify any 
information related to prostitutes. 

The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to DEA for its review. 
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